Building on
Our Proud
Heritage

Allianz Group
Annual Report 2015

Allianz @)



CONTENT

A —To Our Investors

5 Letter to the Investors
12 Supervisory Board Report
19 Supervisory Board
20 Board of Management
23 Allianz Share

B — Corporate Governance

27 Corporate Governance Report

32 Statement on Corporate Management pursuant to § 289a of the HGB
34 Takeover-related Statements and Explanations

37 Remuneration Report

C —Group Management Report

52 Content

YOUR ALLIANZ

53 Business Operations and Markets
58 Strategy and Steering
61 Progress in Sustainable Development

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

67 Business Environment

69 Executive Summary of 2015 Results

74 Property-Casualty Insurance Operations
80 Life/Health Insurance Operations

86 Asset Management
90 Corporate and Other
92 Outlook 2016

98 Balance Sheet Review
105 Liquidity and Funding Resources
110 Reconciliations

RISK AND OPPORTUNITY REPORT AND FINANCIAL CONTROL

112 Risk and Opportunity Report
131 Controls over Financial Reporting and Risk Capital

D — Consolidated Financial
Statements

134 Content

135 Consolidated Balance Sheets

136 Consolidated Income Statements

137 Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
138 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

139 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

141 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F _Further Information

245 Joint Advisory Council of the Allianz Companies

246 International Advisory Board

247 Mandates of the Members of the Supervisory Board

248 Mandates of the Members of the Board of Management
249 Glossary

» To go directly to any chapter,
simply click on the headline or
the page number.



Allianz at a glance

ANNUAL RESULTS

Change
from More
previous details on
2015 year 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 page
Income statement
Total revenues’ €MN 125,190 2.4% 122,253 110,773 106,383 103,560 106,451 97,385 70
Operating profit? €MN 10,735 3.2% 10,402 10,066 9,337 7,764 8,243 7,044 70
Net income from continuing operations? €MN 6,987 5.8% 6,603 6,343 5,558 2,853 5,209 4,650 -
Net income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income taxes? €MN - - - - - - - (395) -
Netincome €MN 6,987 5.8% 6,603 6,343 5,558 2,853 5,209 4,255 7
thereof: Attributable to shareholders €MN 6,616 6.3% 6,221 5,996 5,231 2,591 5,053 4,207 71
Balance sheet as of 31 December
Total assets €MN 848,942 5.4% 805,787 711,079 694,411 641,322 624,945 583,717 99
Investments €MN 509,493 4.7% 486,445 411,148 401,711 350,645 334,618 294,252 172
Total liabilities €MN 782,843 5.5% 742,085 658,230 641,448 595,575 578,383 541,488 99
thereof: Reserves for insurance
and investment contracts €MN 486,222 4.9% 463,334 404,072 390,984 361,956 349,793 323,801 190
thereof: Reserves for loss and loss
adjustment expenses €MN 72,003 4.4% 68,989 66,566 72,540 68,832 66,474 64,441 186
Shareholders’ equity €MN 63,144 3.9% 60,747 50,083 50,388 43,457 44,491 40,108 98
Non-controlling interests €MN 2,955 - 2,955 2,765 2,576 2,290 2,071 2,121 198
Share information
Basic earnings per share € 14.56 6.2% 13.71 13.23 11.56 5.74 11.20 9.33 231
Diluted earnings per share € 14.55 6.6% 13.64 13.05 11.48 5.58 11.12 9.30 231
Dividend per share € 7.304 6.6% 6.85 5.30 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.10 24
Total dividend €MN 3,32045 6.7% 3,112 2,405 2,039 2,037 2,032 1,850 7
Share price as of 31 December € 163.55 19.1% 137.35 130.35 104.80 73.91 88.93 87.15 24
Market capitalization as of 31 December €MN 74,742 19.1% 62,769 59,505 47,784 33,651 40,419 39,557 24
Other information
Return on equity®? % 107 (0.5)%p 1.2 1.9 1.1 5.9 1.9 12,5 92
Return on equity (excluding unrealized
gains/losses on bonds net of shadow DAC)®” % 12.5 (0.4)%-p 13.0 13.5 12.5 6.2 12.4 12.6 92
Conglomerate solvency? % 200 19.6%-p 181 182 197 179 173 164 98
Standard & Poor’s rating® AA - AA AA AA AA AA AA 114
Total assets under management
as of 31 December €MN 1,762,896 (2.1)% 1,801,178 1,769,551 1,852,332 1,656,993 1,517,538 1,202,122 87
thereof: Third-party assets under
management as of 31 December €MN 1,275,886 (2.8)% 1,312,910 1,360,759 1,438,425 1,281,256 1,163,982 925,699 87
Employees 142,459 (3.4)% 147,425 147,627 144,094 141,938 151,338 153,203 65

1 — Total revenues comprise statutory gross premiums written in Property-Casualty and Life/Health, operating

revenues in Asset Management, and total revenues in Corporate and Other (Banking).

2 —The Allianz Group uses operating profit as a key financial indicator to assess the performance of its business

segments and the Group as a whole.

3 —Following the announcement of the sale on 31 August 2008, Dresdner Bank was classified as held for sale
and discontinued operations. Therefore, all revenue and profit figures presented for our continuing busi-
ness do not include the parts of Dresdner Bank that we sold to Commerzbank on 12 January 2009. The
results from these operations are presented in a separate net income line “Net income (loss) from dis-

continued operations, net of income taxes”.
4 —Proposal.

5 —Total dividend reflects the treasury shares held at the time of the publication of the convocation of the

pursuant to § 71b of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG). Should there be any change in the num-

ber of treasury shares by the date of the Annual General Meeting, the total dividend will be amended

accordingly.

6 —Based on average shareholders’ equity. Average shareholders’ equity has been calculated based upon

the average of the current and the preceding year's shareholders’ equity as of 31 December.
7 —Based on net income from continuing operations after non-controlling interests.
8 — Solvency according to the E.U. Financial Conglomerates Directive. Off-balance sheet reserves are accepted
by the authorities as eligible capital only upon request. Allianz St has not submitted an application so far.

Excluding off-balance sheet reserves, the solvency ratio as of 31 December 2015 and 2014 would be 191%
and 172%, respectively.

Annual General Meeting in the Federal Gazette. Such treasury shares are not entitled to the dividend

9 — For further information about insurer financial strength ratings of Allianz S, please refer to page 114.

Disclaimer regarding roundings

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Euros (€ MN), unless otherwise stated. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not add up precisely to the totals provided and percentages may not precisely
reflect the absolute figures. Figures prior to 2013 have not been adjusted accordingly.



Group profile

Allianz is one of the strongest financial communities worldwide. More than
85 million private and corporate customers insured by Allianz rely on its
knowledge, GLOBAL REACH and CAPITAL STRENGTH to protect them
and help them realize their goals in life. Allianz stands for trust based on
INTEGRITY, RESILIENCE and the DEDICATION of its 142,459 employees.
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OLIVER BATE

Chairman of the Board of Management

D@J Juw&N S —

Your Allianz looks back on another successful year — a year in which we celebrated our
125th anniversary and generated record revenues of € 125.2 BN. Operating profit grew
3.2% to € 10.7 BN and net income attributable to shareholders was € 6.6 BN. These figures
show that your company is very well positioned and can deliver impressive results even
in difficult times.

The excellent results are due, above all, to our more than 142,000 highly motivated

employees, who have put all their energy into making 2015 a successful year for Allianz.
Twould like to extend to them my warmest thanks for their loyalty and hard work.

Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group



I am proud of this team. Allianz is a different company today from the one I joined in 2008.
Besides being more profitable, we have become more versatile, more efficient and more
responsive. This is the lasting legacy of Michael Diekmann, my predecessor as Chairman
of the Board of Management. In twelve years, many of which were plagued by crisis, he
took your company to new levels of performance and secured Allianz a place in the league
of the most reputable financial service companies worldwide. I believe I speak in your
name when I express my sincere thanks to Mr. Diekmann for his outstanding services.

At the same time, [ am delighted that the share price performed so strongly in 2015 with
the value of your shares increasing by 19.1 %. Including the dividend payment, we are
pleased to report a return of 24.6 %. As we want you to further participate in our robust per-
formance in 2015, we will propose to the Annual General Meeting to increase the dividend
by € 0.45 to € 7.30.

The performance of the Property-Casualty segment was again very strong: By growing
revenues by 6.8% and operating profit by 4.1%, Allianz has clearly confirmed its position
as global market leader. Another major reason for our continued success in 2015 is the
accelerating reorientation of our Life/Health insurance business towards unit-linked
and capital-efficient products. We have successfully adjusted the product offer to match
the low-yield environment in our key markets, such as Germany. The new products have
a balanced opportunity-risk profile, as lower guarantees come with a higher share of
the investment result. As a result they are in strong demand, allowing us to significantly
increase the share of these innovative products in our new business.

In the case of PIMCO, although the new management team successfully stabilized the
business and outflows were reduced, net outflows have not yet ceased. Overall, flows were
significantly influenced by the macroeconomic environment and in particular by the
expectation of rising interest rates in the United States, which prompted many investors
to reduce their investments in fixed-income securities. As a consequence, PIMCO will
again be an area of focus for Allianz in 2016, with the clear goal of regaining its former
momentum.

Encouraged by the very good overall results, it is now time for us to look to the future.
Rather than take our healthy position in the insurance market and asset management
business for granted, we must adapt to the radical economic, political and global upheaval
that is taking place. We are currently affected by geopolitical instability, demographic
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and social change, a slowdown in growth in many markets, and persistently low interest
rates. In addition, digitalization is revolutionizing everything we do. It is fundamentally
changing the way in which people interact with companies and with each other.

In order for us to remain successful and strong in this constantly changing environment,
we —the Board of Management, together with more than 200 colleagues in different
countries and functions — have developed our Renewal Agenda. It was presented to you
and the entire investor community at our Capital Markets Day in November 2015.

Your company has defined five fields of action to secure growth in revenues and profit-

ability.

True Customer Centricity: We aim for an outstanding customer experience by gaining

a better understanding of our customers’ needs and tailoring our services so as to meet
those needs. Our success is measured by our customers’ willingness to recommend
Allianz, for which we use the Net Promoter Score (NPS). The results reveal the level of our
customers’ satisfaction and loyalty and indicate how we can improve even more. Since
a high Nps also means accelerated revenue growth, by 2018 we would like 75 % of our
businesses (currently 50%) to be loyalty leaders or at least above-market average in terms
of Nps.

Digital by Default: Digitalization can suddenly threaten business models that have been
successful in the past, as we have witnessed in other industries. But the good news for
you as an Allianz investor is that digitalization also opens up major opportunities for your
company. It allows us to transform Allianz and concentrate on the things that promote
positive customer experience and customer growth, and at the same time to increase our
productivity.

We are working throughout the Group on simplifying products and processes and on
common technologies and platforms that will fully digitalize the business step by step.
The resulting productivity gains will be invested in future business model improvements.
Our ambition is that these initiatives will bring about a sustained increase in productivity
of atleast € 1 BN per year by 2018. In order to reach this goal, we will have to consistently
align business models, products, and processes across country and company borders and
minimize paper at each element of the value chain.

Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group



Technical Excellence: Our aim is to raise the quality of our insurance business to a level
that generates superior margins and growth rates by leveraging the best analytical methods
and our highly-talented experts and managers. The advantages offered by digitalization
will be used to optimize our risk-adequate pricing and to streamline and speed up claims
processing. We also seek to increase growth and effectiveness in our business with
medium-sized enterprises and commercial firms. In the Property-Casualty segment, our
goal is to achieve a combined ratio of 94% or better by 2018, with the support of the best
technical experts, and to receive consistently positive feedback from brokers and custom-
ers. In the Life/Health business segment we are targeting a return on equity of 10% or
higher and a new business margin of at least 3%. This also requires us to selectively wind
down unprofitable business.

Growth Engines: We will consolidate our leading positions in mature markets and expand
our presence in growth regions with the aim of generating stronger growth and improving
margins. Our new joint venture with the Chinese web portal Baidu, which reaches 90%

of Chinese internet users, is one good example. It puts us in a prominent position in one
of the most dynamic digital insurance markets with annual growth rates of 40% and
expected annual revenues of € 100 BN by 2020.

Inclusive Meritocracy: Our corporate culture will be refined to make not only high per-
formance matter, but also the way in which our employees go about achieving it, for
example by collaborating closely in cross-functional teams. The aim is to promote an
entrepreneurial spirit that concentrates on finding the best ideas and implementing
them productively together with others in the organization. For this to succeed, we are
adjusting our remuneration and incentive systems. The Inclusive Meritocracy Index
(mMi1x), which is based on our annual employee surveys, shows the progress we have made
towards renewing our management culture. It currently stands at 68 % throughout the
Group, and we aim to increase it to 72 % by 2018.

We are implementing the Renewal Agenda together — full of optimism, ideas and con-
fidence in our own capabilities because we have excellent and in many cases unique
resources. Even in adverse conditions, our financial strength has firm foundations.

Allianz stands for trust based on competence, integrity, and resilience. That is why our

customers and shareholders place their trust in us. We have a strong brand and it is
getting even stronger — Allianz is the only insurer among the top 50 companies in the

Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group



A— To Our Investors

5 Letter to the Investors 20 Board of Management
12 Supervisory Board Report 23 Allianz Share
19 Supervisory Board

Brand Finance brand value ranking. We must now use our existing strengths to become
even stronger, so we can consistently make the most of the opportunities presented

by change. But we can only continue to be resilient if we constantly adapt to our environ-
ment. We believe we have set ourselves the right priorities to achieve this with our
Renewal Agenda program.

[ feel particularly encouraged by the exciting and innovative initiatives that are being
developed and launched in our strategic project groups covering these five fields of
action. We have brought together a large number of enthusiastic colleagues from all
continents who know what needs to be done and how important their mission is. They
are already working hard to implement our plans in the operating businesses.

As the Board of Management of Allianz, it is particularly important to us that the orga-
nization develops a clearer market orientation. If we want to grow in the digital era, we
will have to pay closer attention to our customers and our competition in the future.
This includes competitors that have not been the primary focus of our benchmarking in
the past.

Itis also essential that we exercise discipline when allocating capital. Business segments
that do not have market leadership are at a competitive disadvantage. We cannot afford
to tie up valuable capital and personnel that offer greater earnings potential when re-
deployed to businesses with higher margins and stronger growth. With this in mind, we
will carefully reshape our portfolio with sound judgement to create even more leading
and superior business units. Smaller, highly profitable companies will benefit from the
advantages of using common regional platforms.

Allianz will become even more flexible and focused on its customers. At the same time,
our intrinsic values will remain the same as in the past 125 years: integrity, competence,
and resilience. We will not follow every trend that comes along. But if and when funda-
mental opportunities emerge we will take the lead in our industry and carry out any
changes required. This includes our decision to gradually adapt our investment policy to
sustainable investment criteria and stop financing the coal industry.

Although the operating environment poses growing risks and macroeconomic forces

are unlikely to lead to an additional surge in growth, we will do everything we can to make
2016 another successful year for Allianz. 2016 will test our ability to implement the
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Renewal Agenda in our operating businesses and to take concrete steps towards becoming
an Allianz that is consistently customer-focused and digital throughout its business.

I am encouraged by the strengths of our business, by the solidarity of our management,
and by our employees, who know what is at stake.

Itis clear to the employees of Allianz that both the future success of our company and
your success as an investor depend, directly and entirely, on our ability to understand our
customers and to tailor our products and services even more consistently to their require-
ments — or in other words, to provide simple, modern, and outstanding service quality at
all times.

I would like to thank you for your support and the trust you have placed in us and would
be delighted if you remain a part of Allianz in the future.

Sun c_a.,:tQ"/ ?"9‘“33 )

Qo Sie
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Supervisory Board Report

Ladies and Gentlemen,

During the 2015 fiscal year, the Supervisory Board fulfilled all its duties and obligations as laid
out in the company statutes and applicable law. It monitored the management of the company,

advised the Board of Management regarding the conduct of business and dealt with personnel
matters related to the Board of Management as well as to succession planning.

OVERVIEW

Within the framework of our activities, the Board of Management informed us on a regular
basis and in a timely and comprehensive manner, both verbally and in writing, on the course of
business as well as on the development of the Allianz Group and Allianz Sk, including devia-
tions in actual business developments from the planning. The annual financial statements of
Allianz SE and the consolidated financial statements with its respective auditor’s reports as
well as the half-yearly and quarterly financial reports were thoroughly examined by the Super-
visory Board and the Audit Committee.
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Further key areas the Board of Management reported on were the Renewal Agenda on busi-
ness strategy of the Board of Management, capital adequacy, the ongoing challenges facing
the life insurance business due to low interest rates, exceptional developments at certain
subsidiaries, and implementation of the German Act on Equal Participation of Women and
Men in Executive Positions. In addition, we were extensively involved in the Board of Manage-
ment’s planning for both the 2016 fiscal year and the three-year period from 2016 to 2018.

In the 2015 fiscal year, the Supervisory Board held six meetings. The meetings took place in
February, March, May, August, October and December. The Board of Management's verbal
reports at the meetings were accompanied by written documents, which were sent to each
member of the Supervisory Board in time for the relevant meeting. The Board of Management
also informed us in writing of important events that occurred between meetings. The chair-
men of the Supervisory and Management Boards also had regular discussions about major
developments and decisions.

Details on each member’s participation at meetings of the Supervisory Board and its commit-
tees can be found in the Corporate Governance Report, starting on (3) page 27. Members of

the Supervisory Board who were unable to attend meetings of the Supervisory Board or its
committees were excused and, as a rule, cast their votes in writing.

ISSUES DISCUSSED IN THE SUPERVISORY BOARD PLENARY SESSIONS

In all of the Supervisory Board’s 2015 meetings, the Board of Management reported on Group
revenues and results by addressing the developments in individual business segments. Further-
more, we were regularly informed by the Board of Management about the capital, financial
and risk situation, the impact of natural catastrophes, the status of major legal disputes and
other essential developments.

In the meeting of 25 February 2015, the Supervisory Board dealt comprehensively with the
provisional financial figures for the 2014 fiscal year and the Board of Management's recom-
mended dividend. The appointed audit firm, KPMG AG Wirtschaftspriiffungsgesellschaft (kPMG),
Munich, reported in detail on the provisional results of their audit. Underwriting reserves

and IT systems were among the focal points of the audit. The Chief Compliance Officer then
provided the annual report on the compliance organization and key compliance-related
matters. During the further course of the meeting, the Supervisory Board also reviewed the
extent to which individual members of the Board of Management had achieved their targets
and set their variable remuneration for the 2014 fiscal year. We also verified the fitness and
propriety of the members of the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board.

Allianz Group
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In the meeting of 12 March 2015, the Supervisory Board discussed the audited annual Allianz SE
and consolidated financial statements as well as the recommendation for the appropriation
of earnings by the Board of Management for the 2014 fiscal year. KPMG confirmed, that there
were no discrepancies to their February report and issued an unqualified auditor’s report for
the individual and consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Board of Management
submitted its report on risk developments in 2014. The Supervisory Board also dealt with the
agenda for the 2015 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Allianz SE and the respective proposals
for resolution. The Supervisory Board also resolved to appoint KPMG as auditor for the individual
and consolidated financial statements for the 2015 fiscal year and for the auditor’s review of
the 2015 half-yearly interim report. In addition, the Supervisory Board was informed about the
developments in digitalization and the strategic importance of this topic.

On 6 May 2015, just before the AGM, the Board of Management briefed us on the first quarter
2015 performance and on the Allianz Group’s current situation, particularly on the capitaliza-
tion, the share price development, and the impact of certain loss events.

In our meeting on 6 August 2015, the Board of Management reported in depth on the half-yearly
results and also dealt with the issuance of Allianz shares to employees of the Allianz Group

as well as the future Common European Sales Law. We then dealt extensively with the effects
of the low interest rate environment on the life insurance sector and, in particular, the mea-
sures adopted by Allianz. The Supervisory Board agreed to the early termination of Mr. Manuel
Bauer’s appointment as a member of the Board of Management of Allianz st with effect from
31 August 2015. In the course of the subsequent re-alignment of the schedule of responsibilities
of the Board of Management, it appointed Mr. Oliver Bite as the member of the Board of Man-
agement responsible for “employment and social welfare”. The Supervisory Board also elected
Mr. Jiirgen Lawrenz to the Risk Committee as the successor of Mr. Franz Heil3, who stepped
down from the Supervisory Board, and dealt extensively with the matter of implementing the
German Act on Equal Participation of Women and Men in Executive Positions. The meeting
was preceded by a separate information session for members of the Supervisory Board, at which
Allianz managers gave presentations on current life insurance topics.

The main focus of the meeting on 1 October 2015 was the future strategy of the Allianz Group.
Mr. Bate and his colleagues from the Board of Management presented the Renewal Agenda
and initial implementation measures regarding the strategic topics True Customer Centricity,
Digital by Default, Technical Excellence, Growth Engines, and Inclusive Meritocracy. The
Supervisory Board discussed in detail the key points and further steps toward implementing
the new strategic initiatives.
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At the 10 December 2015 meeting, the Board of Management provided us with information
about the third-quarter results and further business developments as well as on further
specifics of the Renewal Agenda. We also discussed the planning for the 2016 fiscal year and
the 2016—2018 three-year period, the remuneration system within the Allianz Group and

the Declaration of Conformity with the German Corporate Governance Code. The Supervisory
Board reviewed the appropriateness of the remuneration of the Board of Management and
adopted a resolution, on the recommendation of the Personnel Committee, to adjust the con-
tributions to the pension plan. In addition, the Supervisory Board set targets for the variable
remuneration of members of the Board of Management and discussed succession planning
with regard to the Board of Management. Finally, we took a detailed look at the results of the
Supervisory Board’s efficiency review and adopted a 15-year limit to the term of membership
on the Supervisory Board.

DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY WITH THE GERMAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

On 10 December 2015, the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board issued the Decla-
ration of Conformity in accordance with § 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (“Aktien-
gesetz”). The Declaration was posted on the company website, where it is available to
shareholders at all times. Allianz SE fully complies and will continue to fully comply with the
recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code made in the Code’s version of
5 May 2015.

Further explanations of corporate governance in the Allianz Group can be found in the
Corporate Governance Report starting on (3) page27 and the Statement on Corporate Manage-
ment pursuant to § 289a HGB starting on (3) page32. More information on corporate gover-
nance can also be found on the Allianz website at (3) www.allianz.com/corporate-governance.

COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

The Supervisory Board has formed various committees in order to perform its duties efficiently:
the Standing Committee, the Personnel Committee, the Audit Committee, the Risk Committee
and the Nomination Committee. The committees prepare the discussion and adoption of
resolutions in the plenary sessions. Furthermore, in appropriate cases, the authority to adopt
resolutions has been delegated to the committees. There is no Conciliation Committee
because the German Co-Determination Act (“Mitbestimmungsgesetz”), which provides for
such a committee, does not apply to Allianz SE as a European Company (SE).

The Standing Committee held three meetings in 2015. These related primarily to corporate
governance issues, the preparation for the AGM, the matter of implementing the German Act
on Equal Participation of Women and Men in Executive Positions, and the internal review of
the Supervisory Board’s efficiency. During the fiscal year the committee passed resolutions to
approve loans to senior executives.

Allianz Group
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The Personnel Committee held four regular meetings and two extraordinary meetings by tele-
phone conference in the 2015 financial year. Areas of focus were the re-alignment of the
schedule of responsibilities of the Board of Management following the departure of Mr. Bauer,
and further succession planning. The committee also dealt with other mandate matters for
active and former members of the Board of Management and with the proportion of women
on Allianz SE’s Board of Management. In addition to preparing the target achievement of
Board of Management members for the 2014 fiscal year, the committee prepared the review of
the remuneration system, and the setting of targets for variable remuneration.

The Audit Committee held five meetings in 2015. In the presence of the auditor, it discussed the
annual financial statements of Allianz Sk and the consolidated financial statements of the
Allianz Group, the management reports and auditor’s reports, as well as the half-yearly and
quarterly financial reports. After carrying out these reviews, the Audit Committee saw no
objections. The committee also dealt with the auditor’s engagement, established priorities for
the annual audit in the fiscal year 2015, and discussed assignments to the auditors for services
not connected to the audit itself. In addition, the committee dealt extensively with the com-
pliance system, the internal auditing system as well as the accounting process and internal
financial reporting control mechanisms. The committee received regular reports on the audit
department’s work and on legal and compliance issues. Furthermore, in a presentation on
cyber-security, the committee was informed about the measures to protect Allianz’s IT systems,
and it also familiarized itself with the implementation status of the governance requirements
according to Solvency 11.

The Risk Committee held two meetings in 2015, at which it discussed the current risk situation
of the Allianz Group with the Board of Management. The risk report and other risk-related
statements in the annual Allianz SE and consolidated financial statements, as well as in man-
agement and group management reports, were reviewed with the auditor and the Audit
Committee was informed of the result. The appropriateness of the early risk recognition system
at Allianz was also discussed. The committee looked in detail at the effectiveness of the risk
management system, in particular behavioral risk in property insurance. Other matters con-
sidered were the new supervisory regime according to Solvency 11, the risk strategy of Allianz SE
and of the Allianz Group, a MaRisk (Minimum Requirements for Risk Management) audit,

the effects of the enduring low interest rate environment, and the Allianz SE’s classification as
a Global Systemically Important Insurer (G-SI1).

In November 2015, the Nomination Committee held a meeting by telephone conference to

discuss the vacant position on the Supervisory Board that will materialise at the end of the
AGM on 4 May 2016.
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The Supervisory Board was regularly and comprehensively informed of the committees’ work.

Chair and committees of the Supervisory Board — as of 31 December 2015

Chairman of the Supervisory Board: Dr. Helmut Perlet

Deputy Chairmen: Dr. Wulf H. Bernotat, Rolf Zimmermann

Standing Committee: Dr. Helmut Perlet (Chairman), Dr. Wulf H. Bernotat,

Prof. Dr.Renate Kocher, Gabriele Burkhardt-Berg, Rolf Zimmermann

Personnel Committee: Dr.Helmut Perlet (Chairman), Christine Bosse, Rolf Zimmermann
Audit Committee: Dr.Wulf H. Bernotat (Chairman), Dr. Helmut Perlet, Jim Hagemann Snabe,
Jean-Jacques Cette, Ira Gloe-Semler

Risk Committee: Dr. Helmut Perlet (Chairman), Christine Bosse, Peter Denis Sutherland,
Dante Barban, Jiirgen Lawrenz

Nomination Committee: Dr. Helmut Perlet (Chairman), Prof. Dr. Renate Kocher,

Peter Denis Sutherland

AUDIT OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In compliance with the special legal provisions applying to insurance companies, the statutory
auditor and the auditor for the review of the half-yearly financial report are appointed by the
Supervisory Board of Allianz SE and not by the AGM. The Supervisory Board has appointed KPMG
as statutory auditor for the annual Allianz st and consolidated financial statements, as well
as for the review of the half-yearly financial report of the fiscal year 2015. kPMG audited the
financial statements of Allianz SE and the Allianz Group as well as the respective management
reports. They issued an auditor’s report without any reservations. The consolidated financial
statements were prepared on the basis of the international financial reporting standards (IFRS),
as adopted in the European Union. kPMG performed a review of the half-yearly and quarterly
financial reports.

All Supervisory Board members received the documentation relating to the annual financial
statements and the auditor’s reports from KPMG on schedule. The provisional financial state-
ments and KPMG's audit results were discussed in the Audit Committee on 17 February 2016
and in the plenary session of the Supervisory Board on 18 February 2016. The final financial
statements and KPMG's audit reports were reviewed on 10 March 2016 by the Audit Committee
and in the Supervisory Board plenary session. The auditors participated in these discussions
and presented the main results from the audit. No material weaknesses in the internal financial
reporting control process were discovered. There were no circumstances that might give
cause for concern about the auditor’s independence.

Allianz Group
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On the basis of our own reviews of the annual Allianz SE and consolidated financial state-
ments, the management and group management reports and the recommendation for appro-
priation of earnings, we raised no objections and agreed with the results of the kPMG audit.
We approved the Allianz SE and consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board of
Management. The company’s financial statements are therefore adopted. We agree with the
Board of Management’s proposal on the appropriation of earnings.

The Supervisory Board would like to thank all Allianz Group employees for their great personal
commitment over the past year.

MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Mr. Franz Heil? retired on 31 July 2015 and thus stepped down from his position as employee
representative on the Supervisory Board of Allianz Se. The Supervisory Board thanked Mr. Heild
and expressed its appreciation of his efforts during his period of office. Mr. Jurgen Lawrenz
replaced Mr. Heil3 as elected employee representative on the Supervisory Board of Allianz SE
with effect from 1 August 2015. The current term of the Supervisory Board will expire following
the 2017 AGM.

The fiscal year 2015 also saw personnel changes within Allianz SE's Board of Management.
Mr. Michael Diekmann left the Board of Management with effect from 6 May 2015. Mr. Oliver
Béte took over as Chairman of the Board of Management with effect from 7 May 2015.

Mr. Manuel Bauer left the Board of Management with effect from 31 August 2015 and his areas
of responsibility were allocated to other Board departments.

Munich, 10 March 2016

For the Supervisory Board:

Ch

Dr.Helmut Perlet
Chairman
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Supervisory Board

DR.HELMUT PERLET

Chairman

Former Member of the Board of Management
of Allianz SE

DR. WULF H. BERNOTAT

Vice Chairman

Former Chairman of the Board of Management
of EEON AG

ROLF ZIMMERMANN

Vice Chairman

Chairman of the (European) SE Works Council
of Allianz SE

DANTE BARBAN
Employee of Allianz S.p.A.

CHRISTINE BOSSE
Former Chief Executive Officer of Tryg A/S

GABRIELE BURKHARDT-BERG

Chairwoman of the Group Works Council
of Allianz SE
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JEAN-JACQUES CETTE
Chairman of the Group Works Council
of Allianz France S.A.

IRA GLOE-SEMLER
Regional Representative Financial Services
of ver.di Hamburg

FRANZ HEISS
until 31 July 2015
Employee of Allianz Beratungs- und Vertriebs-AG

PROF. DR. RENATE KOCHER

Head of “Institut fiir Demoskopie Allensbach”
(Allensbach Institute)

JURGEN LAWRENZ

since 1 August 2015

Employee of Allianz Managed Operations & Services SE

JIM HAGEMANN SNABE

Chairman of World Economic Forum USA

PETER DENIS SUTHERLAND
Former Chairman of the Board of Directors
of Goldman Sachs International
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Board of Management

OLIVER BATE

DR. HELGA JUNG
SERGIO BALBINOT
(from left to right)

DR. CHRISTOF MASCHER
DR. WERNER ZEDELIUS
(from left to right)
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DR. DIETER WEMMER
DR. MAXIMILIAN ZIMMERER
(from left to right)

JAY RALPH
DR. AXEL THEIS
(from left to right)
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Board of Management

OLIVER BATE

Chairman of the Board of Management
since 7 May 2015

Global Property-Casualty

until 6 May 2015

MICHAEL DIEKMANN
until 6 May 2015
Chairman of the Board of Management

SERGIO BALBINOT

Insurance Western & Southern Europe
Insurance Middle East, Africa, India
since 1 September 2015

MANUEL BAUER
until 31 August 2015
Insurance Growth Markets

DR.HELGA JUNG
Insurance Iberia & Latin America,
Legal & Compliance, Mergers & Acquisitions
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DR. CHRISTOF MASCHER

Operations, Allianz Worldwide Partners

JAY RALPH

Asset Management, US Life Insurance

DR. AXEL THEIS

Global Insurance Lines & Anglo Markets
Global Property-Casualty

since 7 May 2015

DR. DIETER WEMMER

Finance, Controlling, Risk

DR. WERNER ZEDELIUS
Insurance German Speaking Countries
Insurance Central & Eastern Europe
since 1 September 2015

DR. MAXIMILIAN ZIMMERER
Investments, Global Life/Health

Insurance Asia Pacific

since 1 September 2015
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Allianz Share

— Allianz shares up by 19%.
— Dividend increases to € 7.30.

Double-digit returns on investment
fouryearsin a row

Following a year of turbulent developments in share prices, European
stock markets reported a slight increase as the year drew to a close.
Back in spring, stock markets set new records, driven mainly by the
expansionary monetary policy of the European Central Bank, as well
as a weaker Euro. It was then, however, that a change occurred in the
fundamental data, as the Euro embarked on a recovery course and
the Greek crisis flared up again. Moreover, there were growing con-
cerns about a possible slowdown in the Chinese economy. In circum-
stances like these, a 19.1% increase in the value of Allianz shares to
€163.55 is substantial, outperforming the sToxx Europe 600 Insur-
ance sector index (+14.0%) and the EURO STOXX 50 cross-sector index
(+3.8%). Provided the dividend was reinvested in Allianz shares,
investments in the company would have seen an increase of 24.6 %.
This year's gain constitutes a double-digit rise in value for the fourth
time in a row. Not only is this a reflection of favorable business devel-
opments, it is also testament to the positive reaction to an investor
event, in which our Renewal Agenda was introduced in detail. You can
find more detailed information in the Strategy and Steering starting
on (3) page s5s. Following the publication of the 2015 results on 19 Feb-
ruary 2016, 63% of analysts issued a “buy” recommendation for Allianz
shares —with an average price target of € 174. You can find the current
analyst recommendations and profit forecasts online at (3) wwuw.
allianz.com/analystrecommendations.

Arising share price in 2015 lends further credibility to the appeal
of along-term investment in Allianz shares. Investors who have had
our shares in their portfolios for five years and opted to reinvest their
dividends achieved an average annual performance of 18.1 % over this
period of time. Over the last ten years the corresponding gain came
t06.7%.

ALLIANZ SHARE PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISON

1year 5 years 10 years
average annual performance in % 2015 2011-2015 2006-2015
Allianz (excl. dividends) 19.1 13.0 2.5
Allianz (incl. dividends) 24.6 18.1 6.7
STOXX Europe 600 Insurance 14.0 131 1.6
EURO STOXX 50 3.8 3.2 (0.9)
DAX 9.6 9.2 7.1

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group

DEVELOPMENT OF THE ALLIANZ SHARE PRICE VERSUS STOXX EUROPE 600 INSURANCE

AND EURO STOXX 50

indexed on the Allianz share price in €

€137.35
(1/1/2015)

1Q 20

W Allianz M stoxx Europe 600 Insurance EURO STOXX 50

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

3Q

£163.55
(31/12/2015)

4Q

SHARE PRICE DEVELOPMENT AGAINST STOXX EUROPE 600 INSURANCE

€

57.47
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
B Allianz share price M Allianz highs and lows
sToxx Europe 600 Insurance (indexed on the Allianz share price)
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream
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Higher dividend

In line with our dividend policy, we will be proposing to the Annual
General Meeting a dividend increase of € 0.45 to € 7.30. This corre-
sponds to a dividend yield of 4.5% on the year-end share price. The
payout ratio will remain unchanged at 50%. You can find more
detailed information in the Outlook 2016 starting on (3) page 92 and
at @www.allianz.com/dividend.

Weighting in major indices

The Allianz share is strongly represented in major German and Euro-
pean indices, as well as included in important global indices.

WEIGHTING OF ALLIANZ SHARES IN MAJOR INDICES

Shareholder structure

With around 470,000 shareholders, Allianz is one of the most widely
held listed public corporations in Europe. Apart from approximately
0.5% of Allianz shares held in treasury, all our shares are held in free
float. At the end of the year, 85% were held by institutional investors
and 15% by private investors. The breakdown by region shows that 74%
of Allianz shares were owned by European investors and 26 % by non-
European investors. For more detailed information on our share-
holder structure, please refer to @ www.allianz.com/shareholders.

BASIC SHARE INFORMATION

Share type Registered shares with restricted transfer

Security codes WKN 840 400

ISIN DE 000 840 400 5

Bloomberg ALV GR
Weighting Index Reuters 0#ALVG.DEU

as of 31 December 2015 in% Ranking members
DAX 8.3 3 30
EURO STOXX 50 3.5 6 50
STOXX Europe 600 Insurance 14.7 1 36 Service and contact
mscl World Financials 1.2 9 361 Allianz Investor Line
msc) World 0.3 69 1664 Monday to Friday, 8 am to 8 pm CET
Source: Deutsche Borse Group, STOxx Limited, MsCI Phone: +49.89.3800-7555

E-mail: investor.relations@allianz.com

www.allianz.com/investor-relations

Allianz Investor Relations app for i0S and Android

Financial calendar: see back cover.
ALLIANZ SHARE KEY INDICATORS AT A GLANCE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total number of issued shares as of 31 December 457,000,000 457,000,000 456,500,000 455,950,000 455,300,000
Share price as of 31 December € 163.55 137.35 130.35 104.80 73.91
High of the year € 169.70 139.70 130.80 105.85 108.05
Low of the year € 133.35 117.20 101.75 70.02 57.47
Share price performance in the year % 19.1 5.4 24.4 41.8 (16.9)
Beta coefficient? 0.9 0.8 1.3 1.1 1.5
Market capitalization as of 31 December €BN 74.7 62.8 59.5 47.8 33.7
Basic earnings per share € 14.56 13.71 13.23 11.56 5.74
Price-earnings ratio 11.2 10.0 9.9 9.2 13.1
Dividend per share € 7.302 6.85 5.30 4.50 4.50
Total dividend €MN 3,32023 3,112 2,405 2,039 2,037
Dividend yield as of 31 December % 4.52 5.0 4.1 43 6.1
Payout ratio® % 5023 50 40 39 79

1 —In comparison with EURO STOXX 50, source: Bloomberg.

2 — Proposal.

3 —Total dividend reflects the treasury shares held at the time of the publication of the convocation of the
Annual General Meeting in the Federal Gazette. Such treasury shares are not entitled to the dividend

pursuant to § 71b of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG). Should there be any change in the number
of treasury shares by the date of the Annual General Meeting, the total dividend will be amended
accordingly.

4—Based on net income after non-controlling interests.
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32 Statement on Corporate Management
pursuant to § 289a of the HGB

Corporate Governance Report

Good corporate governance is essential for sustainable business per-
formance. The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board of
Allianz st thus attach great importance to complying with the recom-
mendations of the German Corporate Governance Code (referred to
hereinafter as the “Code”). The Declaration of Conformity with the
recommendations of the Code issued by the Board of Management
and the Supervisory Board on 10 December 2015 and the company’s
position regarding the Code’s suggestions can be found in the State-
ment on Corporate Management pursuant to § 289a of the HGB starting

on () pages2.

Corporate Constitution
of the European Company (SE)

As a European Company, Allianz SE is subject to special European SE
regulations and the German SE Implementation Act (“sE-Ausfiih-
rungsgesetz”) in addition to German stock corporation Act. However,
the main features of a German stock corporation — in particular the
two-tier board system (Board of Management and Supervisory Board)
and the principle of equal employee representation on the Super-
visory Board — have been maintained by Allianz SE.

Function of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of Allianz SE comprises nine members. It
is responsible for setting business objectives and the strategic direc-
tion, coordinating and supervising the operating entities, as well as
implementing and overseeing an efficient risk management system.
The Board of Management also prepares the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the annual financial statements of Allianz SE,
as well as interim reports.

The members of the Board of Management are jointly responsible
for management and for complying with legal requirements. Not-
withstanding this overall responsibility, the individual members
head the departments they have been assigned independently. There
are divisional responsibilities for business segments as well as func-
tional responsibilities. The latter include the Finance-, Risk Manage-
ment- and Controlling-Function, Investments, Operations — includ-
ing IT—, Human Resources, Legal and Compliance, Internal Audit and
Mergers & Acquisitions. Business division responsibilities focus on
geographical regions or Global Lines, such as Asset Management.
Rules of procedure specify in more detail the structure and depart-
mental responsibilities of the Board of Management.
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Regular Board of Management meetings are led by the Chair-
man. Each member of the Board may request a meeting, providing
notification of the proposed subject. The Board takes decisions by a
simple majority of participating members. In the event of a tie, the
Chairman casts the deciding vote. The Chairman can also veto deci-
sions, but cannot impose any decisions against the majority vote.

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND GROUP COMMITTEES
In the financial year 2015, there were the following Board of Manage-

ment committees:

BOARD COMMITTEES

BOARD COMMITTEES

GROUP CAPITAL COMMITTEE

Michael Diekmann (Chairman)

until 6 May 2015,

Oliver Béte (Chairman) from 7 May 2015,
Dr. Dieter Wemmer,

Dr. Maximilian Zimmerer

GROUP FINANCE AND RISK COMMITTEE
Dr. Dieter Wemmer (Chairman),

Sergio Balbinot,

Dr.Helga Jung,

Jay Ralph,

Dr. Axel Theis,

Dr. Maximilian Zimmerer

GROUP IT COMMITTEE

Dr. Christof Mascher (Chairman),
Jay Ralph,

Dr. Axel Theis from 21 May 2015,
Dr. Dieter Wemmer,

Dr. Werner Zedelius

GROUP MERGERS

AND ACQUISITIONS COMMITTEE
Dr. Helga Jung (Chairwoman),
Dr. Dieter Wemmer,

Dr. Maximilian Zimmerer

as of 31 December 2015

RESPONSIBILITIES

Proposals to the Board of Management
concerning risk capital management,
including Group-wide capital and
liquidity planning, as well as investment
strategy.

Implementing and overseeing the
principles of Group-wide capital and
liquidity planning, as well as investment
strategy and preparing risk strategy.
This includes, in particular, significant
individual investments and guidelines
for currency management, Group
financing and internal Group capital
management, as well as establishing
and overseeing a Group-wide risk
management and monitoring system
including dynamic stress tests.

Developing, proposing, implementing
and monitoring a Group-wide IT
strategy, approval of relevant IT
investments.

Managing and overseeing Group M & A
transactions, including approval of
individual transactions within certain
thresholds.

Besides Board committees, there are also Group committees whose
jobitis to prepare decisions for the Board of Management of Allianz SE,
submit proposals for resolutions, and ensure the smooth flow of
information within the Group.
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In the financial year 2015, there were the following Group committees:

GROUP COMMITTEES

GROUP COMMITTEES

GROUP COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Board members of Allianz Se and
executives below Allianz s Board level

GROUP UNDERWRITING COMMITTEE
Members of the Board of Management,
executives below Allianz se Board level
and Chief Underwriting Officers of Group
companies

GROUP INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Members of the Board of Management
and executives below Allianz se Board
level

INTERNATIONAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Chairman of the Allianz st Board of

RESPONSIBILITIES

Designing, monitoring and improving
Group-wide compensation systems in line
with regulatory requirements and sub-
mitting an annual report on the results of
its monitoring, along with proposals for
improvement.

Monitoring of the underwriting business, of
the related risk management and strategy
as well as developing an underwriting
policy.

Implementing Group investment strategy,
including monitoring Group-wide invest-
ment activities as well as approving invest-
ment-related frameworks and guidelines
and individual investments within certain
thresholds.

Discussion of overall strategic issues for
the Allianz Group.

Management (Chairman), all other
members of the Allianz se Board of
Management and Managing Directors
of major Group companies

The Allianz Group runs its operating entities and business segments
via an integrated management and control process. The Holding and
the operating entities first define the business strategies and goals.
On this basis, joint plans are then prepared for the Supervisory
Board’s consideration when setting targets for performance-based
remuneration of the members of the Board of Management. For details,
see the Remuneration Report starting on (3) page 37.

The Board of Management reports regularly and comprehen-
sively to the Supervisory Board on business development, the financial
position and earnings, planning and achievement of objectives, busi-
ness strategy and risk exposure. Details of the Board of Management's
reporting to the Supervisory Board are laid down in the reporting
rules issued by the Supervisory Board.

Important decisions of the Board of Management require
approval by the Supervisory Board. These requirements are stipu-
lated by law, by the Statutes, or in individual cases by decisions of the
Annual General Meeting (AGM). Supervisory Board approval is
required, for example, for certain capital transactions, intercompany
agreements and the launch of new business segments or the closure
of existing ones. Approval is also required for acquisitions of compa-
nies and holdings in companies, as well as divestments of Group
companies which exceed certain threshold levels. The Agreement
concerning the Participation of Employees in Allianz SE in the version
dated 3July, 2014 (hereinafter “sg Agreement”) requires the approval
of the Supervisory Board for the appointment of the member of the
Board of Management responsible for employment and social welfare.
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Principles and function
of the Supervisory Board

The German Co-Determination Act (“Mitbestimmungsgesetz”) does
not apply to Allianz SE because it has the legal form of a European
Company (SE). The size and composition of the Supervisory Board are
instead determined by general European Sk regulations. These regu-
lations are implemented in the Statutes and by the SE Agreement.

The Supervisory Board comprises twelve members, including six
shareholder representatives appointed by the AGM. The six employee
representatives are appointed by the sg works council. The specific
procedure for their appointment is laid down in the SE Agreement.
This agreement stipulates that the six employee representatives
must be allocated in proportion to the number of Allianz employees
in the different countries. The Supervisory Board currently in office
comprises four employee representatives from Germany and one
each from France and Italy. The last regular election of the Super-
visory Board took place in May 2012 for a term lasting until the end of
the ordinary AGM in 2017. According to § 17(2) of the German SE Imple-
mentation Act (“se-Ausfiihrungsgesetz”) the Supervisory Board of
Allianz Sk shall be composed of at least 30% women and at least 30%
men as of 1January 2016.

The Supervisory Board oversees and advises the Board of Man-
agementon managing the business. Itis also responsible for appoint-
ing the members of the Board of Management, determining their
overall remuneration and reviewing Allianz SE’s and the Allianz
Group’s annual financial statements. The Supervisory Board’s activi-
ties in the 2015 financial year are described in the Supervisory Board
Report starting on () page 12.

The Supervisory Board held six regular meetings in the 2015
financial year and is scheduled to meet three times each half calendar
yearin the future. Extraordinary meetings may be convened as needed.
The committees also hold regular meetings. The Supervisory Board
takes all decisions based on a simple majority. The special require-
ments for appointing members to the Board of Management con-
tained in the German Co-Determination Act and the requirement for
a Conciliation Committee do not apply to an SE. In the event of a tie,
the casting vote lies with the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, who
atAllianz SE must be a shareholder representative. If the Chairman is
not present in the event of a tie, the casting vote lies with the deputy
chairperson from the shareholder side. A second deputy chairperson
is elected on the proposal of the employee representatives.

The Supervisory Board regularly reviews the efficiency of its
activities. The Supervisory Board discusses recommendations for
improvements and adopts appropriate measures on the basis of rec-
ommendations from the Standing Committee.
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SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES

Part of the Supervisory Board’s work is carried out by its committees.
The Supervisory Board receives regular reports on the activities of its
committees. The composition of committees and the tasks assigned
to them are regulated by the Supervisory Board’s Rules of Procedure.

SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES

PUBLICATION OF DETAILS
OF MEMBERS' PARTICIPATION IN MEETINGS

The Supervisory Board considers it good corporate governance to
publish the details of individual members’ participation in plenary

sessions and committee meetings.

PUBLICATION OF DETAILS OF MEMBERS' PARTICIPATION IN MEETINGS

SUPERVISORY BOARD
COMMITTEES

RESPONSIBILITIES

STANDING COMMITTEE

5 members

— Chairman: Chairman
of the Supervisory Board
(Dr.Helmut Perlet)

— Two further shareholder
representatives (Prof. Dr.Renate
Kocher, Dr. Wulf H. Bernotat)

— Two employee representatives
(Gabriele Burkhardt-Berg,

Rolf Zimmermann)

— Approval of certain transactions which require
the approval of the Supervisory Board, e.g. capital
measures, acquisitions and disposals of
participations

— Preparation of the Declaration of Conformity
pursuant to § 161 “Aktiengesetz” (German Stock
Corporation Act) and checks on corporate
governance

— Preparation of the efficiency review of the
Supervisory Board

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5 members

— Chairman: appointed
by the Supervisory Board
(Dr.Wulf H. Bernotat)

— Three shareholder
representatives (in addition to
Dr. Wulf H. Bernotat: Dr. Helmut
Perlet, Jim Hagemann Snabe)

— Two employee representatives
(Ira Gloe-Semler,

Jean-Jacques Cette)

— Initial review of the annual Allianz st and
consolidated financial statements, management
reports (incl. Risk Report) and the dividend
proposal, review of half-yearly reports or, where
applicable, quarterly financial reports or
statements

— Monitoring of the financial reporting process, the
effectiveness of the internal control and audit
system and legal and compliance issues

— Monitoring of the audit procedures, including the
independence of the auditor and the services addi-
tionally rendered, awarding of the audit contract
and determining the focal points of the audit

RISK COMMITTEE

5 members

— Chairman: appointed by
the Supervisory Board
(Dr.Helmut Perlet)

— Three shareholder
representatives (in addition to
Dr.Helmut Perlet: Christine
Bosse, Peter Denis Sutherland)

— Two employee representatives
(Dante Barban, Franz Heil3 until
31]July 2015, Jirgen Lawrenz
from 6 August 2015)

— Monitoring of the general risk situation and
special risk developments in the Allianz Group

— Monitoring of the effectiveness of the risk
management system

— Initial review of the Risk Report and other
risk-related statements in the annual financial
statements and management reports of
Allianz st and the Allianz Group, informing the
Audit Committee of the results of such reviews

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

3 members

— Chairman: Chairman
of the Supervisory Board
(Dr.Helmut Perlet)

— One further shareholder
representative
(Christine Bosse)

— One employee representative
(Rolf Zimmermann)

— Preparation of the appointment of Board of
Management members

— Preparation of plenary session resolutions on
the compensation system and the overall
compensation of Board of Management members

— Conclusion, amendment and termination of
service contracts of Board of Management
members unless reserved for the plenary session

— Long-term succession planning for the Board of
Management

— Approval of the assumption of other mandates
by Board of Management members

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

3 members

— Chairman: Chairman
of the Supervisory Board
(Dr.Helmut Perlet)

— Two further shareholder
representatives (Prof. Dr.Renate
Kdcher, Peter Denis Sutherland)

— Setting of concrete objectives for the composition
of the Supervisory Board

— Establishment of selection criteria for shareholder
representatives on the Supervisory Board in
compliance with the Code’s recommendations
on the composition of the Supervisory Board

— Selection of suitable candidates for election to the
Supervisory Board as shareholder representatives
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PRESENCE IN PERCENT
PLENARY SESSIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
Dr.Helmut Perlet (Chairman) 6/6 100
Dr. Wulf H. Bernotat (Vice Chairman) 5/6 83.33
Rolf Zimmermann (Vice Chairman) 6/6 100
Dante Barban 6/6 100
Christine Bosse 6/6 100
Gabriele Burkhardt-Berg 6/6 100
Jean-Jacques Cette 6/6 100
Ira Gloe-Semler 6/6 100
Franz Hei 3/31 100
Prof. Dr.Renate Kécher 6/6 100
Jirgen Lawrenz 3/32 100
Jim Hagemann Snabe 6/6 100
Peter Denis Sutherland 5/6 83.33
STANDING COMMITTEE
Dr.Helmut Perlet (Chairman) 3/3 100
Dr.Wulf H. Bernotat 1/3 33.33
Gabriele Burkhardt-Berg 3/3 100
Prof. Dr.Renate Kécher 2/3 66.67
Rolf Zimmermann 3/3 100
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
Dr.Helmut Perlet (Chairman) 6/6 100
Christine Bosse 5/6 83.33
Rolf Zimmermann 6/6 100
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dr. Wulf H. Bernotat (Chairman) 4/5 80
Jean-Jacques Cette 5/5 100
Ira Gloe-Semler 5/5 100
Jim Hagemann Snabe 5/5 100
Dr.Helmut Perlet 5/5 100
RISK COMMITTEE
Dr. Helmut Perlet (Chairman) 2/2 100
Dante Barban 2/2 100
Christine Bosse 2/2 100
Franz HeiR /1 100
Jirgen Lawrenz 1/12 100
Peter Denis Sutherland 1/2 50
NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Dr.Helmut Perlet (Chairman) 1/1 100
Prof. Dr.Renate Kécher 1,1 100
Peter Denis Sutherland 1,1 100
1 — Mr. Heil left the Supervisory Board on 31July 2015.
2 — Mr. Lawrenz joined the Supervisory Board on 1 August 2015.

29



OBJECTIVES OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
REGARDING ITS COMPOSITION

In

order to implement a recommendation by the Code, the Super-

visory Board specified the following objectives for its composition at

its

meeting on 10 December 2015:

OBJECTIVES OF ALLIANZ SE'S SUPERVISORY BOARD REGARDING ITS COMPOSITION

“The aim of Allianz Ses Supervisory Board is to have members who are equipped with
the necessary skills and competence to properly supervise and advise Allianz Se's
management. Supervisory Board candidates should possess the professional expertise
and experience, integrity, motivation and commitment, independence and personality
required to successfully carry out the responsibilities of a Supervisory Board member
in a financial-services institution with international operations. To promote additional
cooperation among Supervisory Board members, care should be taken in selecting
the candidates to ensure that adequate attention is paid to ensuring diversity in
occupational backgrounds, professional expertise and experience.

Employee representation within Allianz Sk, as provided for by the SE Agreement
concerning the Participation of Employees dated 3 July 2014, contributes to diversity of
work experience and cultural background. Pursuant to § 6 (2) sentence 2 of the Act on
the Participation of Employees in a European Company (SEBG), the number of women
and men appointed as German employee representatives should be proportional to
the number of women and men working in the German companies. However, the
Supervisory Board does not have the right to select the employee representatives.

The following requirements and objectives apply to the composition of Allianz Se’s
Supervisory Board:!

I. Requirements relating to the individual members
of the Supervisory Board

1. General selection criteria

- Managerial or operational experience

— General knowledge of the insurance and financial services business

- Willingness and ability to make sufficient commitments on substance

— Fulfillment of the regulatory requirements, in particular™:
- Reliability
- Knowledge of the field of corporate governance and supervisory law
- Knowledge of the main features of accounting and risk management

— Compliance with the limitation on the number of mandates as recommended by
the German Corporate Governance Code and required by § 24 (4) of the German
Insurance Supervision Act 2016 (“Versicherungsaufsichtsgesetz — VAG 2016").

2. Independence

At least eight members of the Supervisory Board should be independent as defined
by No. 5.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code, i.e. they may not have any business
or personal relations with Allianz St or its Executive Bodies, a controlling shareholder
or an enterprise associated with the latter, which may cause a substantial and not
merely temporary conflict of interests. In case shareholder representatives and
employee representatives are viewed separately, at least four members should be
independent within the meaning of No. 5.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code.
Regarding employee representatives, however, the mere fact of employee repre-
sentation and the existence of a working relationship with the company shall not
itself affect independence.

In addition, at least one member must be independent within the meaning of
§100 (5) of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG).

It must be taken into account that the possible emergence of conflicts of interest in
individual cases cannot, as a general rule, be excluded. Potential conflicts of interest
must be disclosed to the chairman of the Supervisory Board and will be resolved by
appropriate measures.

3. Time of availability

Each member of the Supervisory Board must ensure that it has sufficient time to

dedicate to the proper fulfilment of the Supervisory Board mandate. It has to be taken

into account that

- there are six ordinary Supervisory Board meetings per year, each of which requires
adequate preparation;

- sufficient time has to be dedicated for the audit of the annual and consolidated
financial statements;

- attendance of the General Meeting is required;

- depending on possible memberships in one or more of the currently five Super-
visory Board committees, extra time planning to participate in the committee
meetings and to prepare for such meetings is required; this applies in particular to
the Audit and Risk Committees;

- extraordinary meetings of the Supervisory Board or of a committee may be
necessary to deal with special matters.

4. Retirement age
According to the Supervisory Board's Rules of Procedure, its members may not,
in general, be older than 70 years of age.

5. Term of membership
The continuous period of membership for any member of the Supervisory Board
should, as a rule, not exceed 15 years.

Il. Requirements relating to the composition of the Board as a whole

1. Specialist knowledge

- Atleast one member must have considerable experience in the insurance and
financial-services fields

- Atleast one member must have expert knowledge of accounting and auditing
as defined by § 100 (5) of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG).

- Specialist knowledge of, or experience in, other economic sectors.

2. International character
At least four of the members must, on the basis of their origin or function, represent
regions or cultural areas in which Allianz se conducts significant business.

Since the establishment of Allianz SE as a Societas Europaea (European Company),
Allianz employees from different Member States of the Eu are considered in the
distribution of Supervisory Board seats for employee representatives, according to the
Agreement concerning the Participation of Employees in Allianz St dated 3 July 2014.

3. Diversity and appropriate representation of women

The members of the Supervisory Board shall complement one another regarding their
background, professional experience and specialist knowledge, in order to provide the
Supervisory Board with the most diverse sources of experience and specialist knowledge
possible.

The Supervisory Board shall be composed of at least 30 % women and at least 30% men.
The representation of women is generally considered to be the joint responsibility of
the shareholder and employee representatives. *

1—

For further details, please see BaFin Guidance Notice on Vetting Members of Administrative and Super-

visory Bodies in accordance with the German Banking Act and the German Insurance Supervision Act in
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The composition of the Supervisory Board of Allianz Sk reflects these
objectives. It has an appropriate number of independent members
with international backgrounds. With four female Supervisory Board
members, the current legislation for equal participation of women
and men in leadership positions (statutory gender quota of 30%) is
being met. The current composition of the Supervisory Board and its
committees is described on (3) page17.

Shares held by members of the Board of
Management and the Supervisory Board

The total holdings of members of the Board of Management and the
Supervisory Board of Allianz s amounted to less than 1% of the com-
pany’s issued shares as of 31 December 2015.

Directors’ dealings

Members of the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board are
obliged by the German Securities Trading Act (“Wertpapierhandels-
gesetz”) to disclose any transactions involving shares of Allianz SE or
financial instruments based on them to both Allianz St and the Ger-
man Federal Financial Supervisory Authority should the value of the
shares acquired or divested by the member or a person closely asso-
ciated to the member amount to five thousand Euros or more within
a calendar year. Such disclosures are published on our website at
@ www.allianz.com/management-board and @ www.allianz.com/
supervisory-board.

Annual General Meeting

Shareholders exercise their rights at the Annual General Meeting.
When adopting resolutions, each share carries one vote. Shareholders
can follow the AGM’s proceedings on the internet and be represented
by proxies. These proxies exercise voting rights exclusively on the
basis of instructions given by the shareholder. Shareholders are also
able to cast their votes via the internet in the form of online voting.
Allianz Sk regularly promotes the use of internet services.

The AGM elects the shareholder representatives of the Super-
visory Board and approves the actions taken by the Board of Manage-
ment and the Supervisory Board. It decides on the use of profits,
capital transactions and the approval of intercompany agreements,
as well as the remuneration of the Supervisory Board and changes to
the company’s Statutes. In accordance with European regulations
and the Statutes, changes to the Statutes require a two-thirds major-
ity of votes cast in case less than half of the share capital is repre-
sented in the AGM. Each year, an ordinary AGM takes place at which
the Board of Management and Supervisory Board give an account of
the preceding financial year. For special decisions, the German Stock
Corporation Act provides for the convening of an extraordinary AGM.
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Accounting and auditing

The Allianz Group prepares its accounts according to § 315a of the
German Commercial Code (“Handelsgesetzbuch—HGB”) on the basis
of IFRs international accounting standards as adopted within the
European Union. The annual financial statements of Allianz SE are
prepared in accordance with German law, in particular the HGB.

In compliance with special legal provisions that apply to insur-
ance companies, the auditor of the annual financial statements and
of the half-yearly financial report is appointed by the Supervisory
Board, and not by the AGM. The audit of the financial statements covers
the individual financial statements of Allianz St and also the consoli-
dated financial statements of the Allianz Group.

To ensure maximum transparency, we inform our shareholders,
financial analysts, the media and the general public of the company’s
situation on a regular basis and in a timely manner. The annual
financial statements of Allianz Sk, the Allianz Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the respective management reports are
published within 90 days of the end of each financial year. Additional
information is provided in the Allianz Group’s quarterly and half-
yearly financial reports. As of the fiscal year 2016, the quarterly finan-
cial reports will be replaced by quarterly statements; the half-yearly
financial reports will still be reviewed by the auditor. Information is
also made available at the AGM, at press and analysts’ conferences,
as well as on the Allianz Group'’s website. Our website also provides
a financial calendar listing the dates of major publications and
events, such as annual reports, quarterly statements and half-yearly
financial reports, AGMS as well as analyst conference calls and Finan-
cial press conferences.

You can find the 2016 financial calendar on our website at
@ www.allianz.com/financialcalendar.

Outlook

The regulatory environment still remains in a state of flux. The pro-
posed recast of the Directive on shareholder rights, which could
prompt some changes to the corporate governance structure, is at an
advanced stage. The reform of the legislation regarding external
auditors will primarily impact the work of the Supervisory Board. The
Allianz Group’s classification as a Global Systemically Important
Insurer will also have a tangible effect on corporate governance.
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Statement on Corporate Management
pursuant to § 289a of the HGB

The Statement on Corporate Management pursuant to § 289a of the
German Commercial Code (“Handelsgesetzbuch — HGB”) forms part
of the Group Management Report. According to § 317 (2), sentence 4
of the HGB, this Statement does not have to be included within the
scope of the audit.

Declaration of Conformity with the
German Corporate Governance Code

On 10 December 2015, the Board of Management and the Supervisory
Board issued the following Declaration of Conformity of Allianz SE
with the German Corporate Governance Code (hereinafter the “Code”):

DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH § 161
OF THE GERMAN STOCK CORPORATION ACT (AKTG)

“Declaration of Conformity by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of
Allianz st with the recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code
Commission in accordance with § 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)

. All recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code (GCGC) in
the version of May 5, 2015 are currently complied with and will be complied with
in the future.

N

. Since the last Declaration of Conformity as of December 11, 2014, all recommen-
dations of the GcGe in the version of June 24, 2014 were complied with except
for the following deviation:

According to Item 5.3.2 G¢Gc, the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board
shall be responsible for the monitoring of the risk management system. The
Supervisory Board of Allianz st has additionally established a specific Risk
Committee, which is responsible for the monitoring of the risk management
system.

However, such deviation ceases to exist due to the amendment of Item
5.3.2 GCGC in the version of May 5, 2015.

Munich, December 10, 2015
Allianz se

For the Board of Management:
Signed Oliver Béte Signed Dr.Helga Jung
For the Supervisory Board:
Signed Dr. Helmut Perlet”
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In addition, Allianz Sk follows all the suggestions of the Code in its
5 May 2015 version and also followed all suggestions in the previous
version of 24 June 2014.

The Declaration of Conformity and further information on
corporate governance at Allianz can be found on our website at
@www.aIIianz.com/corporate-governance.

The listed Group company Oldenburgische Landesbank AG
issued its own Declaration of Conformity in December 2015, which
states that Oldenburgische Landesbank AG complies with all of the
recommendations of the Code in the version of 5 May 2015 (as well as
in the previous year's version of 24 June 2014).

Corporate governance practices

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Allianz Group has an effective internal control system for verify-
ing and monitoring its operating activities and business processes,
in particular the control of financial reporting. The requirements
placed on the internal control systems are essential not only for the
survival of the company, but also to maintain the confidence of the
capital market, our customers and the public. A comprehensive risk
management system regularly assesses the appropriateness of the
internal control system, taking into account not only qualitative and
quantitative guidelines, but also specific controls for individual busi-
ness activities. For further information on the risk organization and
risk principles, please refer to (3) page 127. For further information on
the internal Controls over Financial Reporting and Risk Capital,
please referto (3) page 131.

In addition, the quality of the internal control system is assessed
by the Allianz Group’s internal audit staff. Internal Audit conducts
independent audit procedures, analyzing the structure and efficacy
of the internal control systems as a whole. In addition, it also exam-
ines the potential for additional value and improvement of our orga-
nization’s operations. Fully compliant with all international auditing
principles and standards, Internal Audit contributes to the evalua-
tion and improvement of the effectiveness of the risk management,
control and governance processes. Therefore, internal audit activities
are geared towards helping the company to mitigate risks and further
assist in strengthening its governance processes and structures.
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COMPLIANCE PROGRAM

The sustained success of the Allianz Group is based on the respon-
sible behavior of all Group employees, who embody trust, respect and
integrity. By means of the global compliance program coordinated by
its central compliance function, Allianz supports and follows inter-
nationally and nationally recognized guidelines and standards for
rules-compliant and value-based corporate governance. These
include the principles of the United Nations (UN Global Compact),
the Guidelines of the Organization for Economic Co-operation and
Development (0ECD guidelines) for Multinational Enterprises, and
European and international standards on data and consumer protec-
tion, economic and financial sanctions and combating corruption,
bribery, money laundering and terrorism financing. Through its sup-
port for and acceptance of these standards, Allianz aims to avoid the
risks that might arise from non-compliance. The central compliance
function is responsible —in close cooperation with local compliance
departments — for ensuring the effective implementation and moni-
toring of the compliance program within the Allianz Group, as well
as for investigating potential compliance infringements.

The standards of conduct established by the Allianz Group’s
Code of Conduct for Business Ethics and Compliance are obligatory
for all employees worldwide. The Code of Conduct is available on our
website at (3) www.allianz.com/corporate-governance.

The Code of Conduct and the internal guidelines derived from it
provide all employees with clear guidance on behavior that lives up
to the values of the Allianz Group. In order to transmit the principles
of the Code of Conduct and the internal compliance program based
on these principles, Allianz has implemented interactive training
programs around the world. These provide practical guidelines
which enable employees to come to their own decisions. The Code of
Conduct also forms the basis for guidelines and controls to ensure
fair dealings with Allianz Group customers (sales compliance).

There are legal provisions against corruption and bribery in
almost all countries in which Allianz has a presence. The global Anti-
Corruption Program of the Allianz Group ensures the continuous
monitoring and improvement of the internal anti-corruption con-
trols. More information on the Anti-Corruption Program can be found
in the Sustainability Report on our website at (3) www.allianz.com/
sustainability.

Amajor component of the Allianz Group’s compliance program
is a whistleblower system that allows employees to alert the relevant
compliance department confidentially about irregularities. No
employee voicing concerns about irregularities in good faith needs
to fear retribution, even if the concerns turn out to be unfounded at
alater date.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD

OF MANAGEMENT AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD AND

OF THE COMPOSITION AND FUNCTIONS OF THEIR
COMMITTEES

A description of the composition of the Supervisory Board and its
committees can be found on (3) page17and 19 of the Annual Report.
Adescription of the composition of the Board of Management can be
found on (3) page 20 to 22, while the composition of the Committees
of the Board of Management is described in the Corporate Governance
Report startingon (3) page27. This information is also available on our
website at (3) www.allianz.com/corporate-governance.

A general description of the functions of the Board of Manage-
ment, the Supervisory Board and their committees can be found in
the Corporate Governance Report starting on () page 27, and on our
website at @ www.allianz.com/corporate-governance.

German Act on Equal Participation of
Women and Men in Executive Positions in
the Private and the Public Sector

To implement the German Act on Equal Participation of Women and
Men in Executive Positions in the Private and the Public Sector,
Allianz SE has set the following objectives for the proportion of women
on the Board of Management and the two management levels below
the Board of Management, which are to be achieved by 30 June 2017.

The objective for the proportion of women on Allianz Sg’s Board
of Management is 11 %. This figure is based on the status quo, as it is
not easily possible to intervene in ongoing Board appointments and
the first legal implementation period runs only until mid-2017. How-
ever, the Supervisory Board of Allianz St has already declared its
intention to increase the proportion of women on the Board of Man-
agement to at least 20% by the end of 2018.

As regards the proportion of women on the first and the second
management level below the Board of Management of Allianz SE, the
Board of Management has set a target quota of at least 20%. Over the
longer term, Allianz is aiming for at least 30% of positions on these
two management levels to be held by women.

§17(2) of the SE Implementation Act (“sE-Ausfihrungsgesetz”)
states that the Supervisory Board of Allianz SE must be composed of
atleast 30% of both women and men as of 1 January 2016. This require-
ment was already met in the 2015 financial year, as the Supervisory
Board consisted of four female and eight male members throughout
the year.
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Takeover-related Statements and Explanations

Statements pursuant to § 289 (4) and § 315 (4) of the German Commercial Code
(“Handelsgesetzbuch — HGB”) and explanatory report.

COMPOSITION OF SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2015, the share capital of Allianz SE was
€1,169,920,000. It was divided into 457,000,000 registered and fully
paid-up shares with no-par value and a corresponding share capital
amount of € 2.56 per share. All shares carry the same rights and obli-
gations. Each no-par value share carries one vote.

RESTRICTIONS ON VOTING RIGHTS AND

SHARE TRANSFERS; EXERCISE OF VOTING RIGHTS

IN CASE OF EMPLOYEE EQUITY PARTICIPATIONS

Shares may only be transferred with the consent of the company. The
company may withhold a duly applied approval only if it deems this
to be necessaryin the interest of the company on exceptional grounds.
The applicant will be informed of the reasons.

Shares acquired by employees of the Allianz Group as part of the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan are in principle subject to a one-year
lock-up period. Outside Germany, the lock-up period may in some
cases be up to five years. In some countries, in order to ensure that
thelock-up period is observed, the employee shares are held through-
out that period by a bank, another natural person or a legal entity
acting as a trustee. Nevertheless, employees may instruct the trustee
to exercise voting rights or have power of attorney granted to them to
exercise such voting rights. Lock-up periods contribute to the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan’s aims of committing employees to
the company and letting them benefit from the performance of the
share price.

INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL

EXCEEDING 10 9% OF THE VOTING RIGHTS

No direct or indirect interests in the share capital of Allianz SE that
exceed 10% of the voting rights have been reported to Allianz SE; nor
are we otherwise aware of any such interests.

SHARES WITH SPECIAL RIGHTS

CONFERRING POWERS OF CONTROL
There are no shares with special rights conferring powers of control.
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LEGAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS APPLICABLE

TO THE APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF MEMBERS OF
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND TO AMENDMENTS

OF THE STATUTES

The Supervisory Board appoints the members of Allianz SE’s Board of
Management for a maximum term of five years (Article 9(1), Article
39(2) and Article 46 of the SE Regulation, §§ 84, 85 of the German Stock
Corporation Act and § 5 (3) of the Statutes). Reappointments, in each
case for a maximum of five years, are permitted. A simple majority of
the votes cast in the Supervisory Board is required to appoint mem-
bers of the Board of Management. In the case of a tie vote, the Chair-
person of the Supervisory Board, who pursuant to Article 42, sen-
tence 2 of the SE Regulation must be a shareholder representative,
shall have the casting vote (§ 8 (3) of the Statutes). If the Chairperson
does not participate in the vote the Deputy Chairperson shall have
the casting vote, provided he or she is a shareholder representative.
A Deputy Chairperson who is an employee representative has no
casting vote (§ 8 (3) of the Statutes). If a required member of the Board
of Management is missing, in urgent cases the courts must appoint
such member upon the application of an interested party (§ 85 of the
German Stock Corporation Act). The Supervisory Board may dismiss
members of the Board of Management if there is an important reason
(§84(3) of the German Stock Corporation Act).

According to §5(1) of the Statutes, the Board of Management
shall consist of at least two persons. Otherwise, the Supervisory Board
determines the number of members. The Supervisory Board has
appointed a Chairman of the Board of Management pursuant to
§ 84(2) of the German Stock Corporation Act.

German insurance supervisory law requires that members of the
Board of Management have the reliability and professional compe-
tence needed to manage an insurance company. A person cannot
become a member of the Board of Management if he or she is already
a manager of two other insurance undertakings, pension funds,
insurance holding companies or insurance special purpose vehicles.
However, the supervisory authority may permit more than two such
mandates if they are held within the same group (§ 24 (3) of the German
Insurance Supervision Act (“Versicherungsaufsichtsgesetz” in the
version applicable as from 1January 2016, VAG). The Federal Financial
Services Supervisory Authority (“Bundesanstalt fiir Finanzdienst-
leistungsaufsicht”) must be notified about the intention of appointing
a Board of Management member pursuant to § 47 No. 1 VAG.
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Amendments to the Statutes must be adopted by the General
Meeting. § 13 (4) sentence 2 of the Statutes of Allianz SE stipulates that,
unless this conflicts with mandatory law, changes to the Statutes
require a two-thirds majority of the votes cast, or, if at least one half
ofthe share capital is represented, a simple majority of the votes cast.
The Statutes thereby make use of the option set outin § 51 sentence 1
of the s Implementation Act (“SE-Ausfiihrungsgesetz”) which is
based upon Article 59 (1) and (2) of the SE Regulation. A larger major-
ity is, inter alia, required for a change in the corporate object or
the relocation of the registered office to another E.U. member state
(851 sentence 2 of the SE Implementation Act). The Supervisory Board
may alter the wording of the Statutes (§ 179 (1) sentence 2 of the Ger-
man Stock Corporation Act and § 10 of the Statutes).

AUTHORIZATION OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

TO ISSUE AND REPURCHASE SHARES

The Board of Management is authorized to issue shares as well as to
acquire and use treasury shares as follows:

It may increase the company’s share capital, on or before 6 May
2019, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, by issuing new reg-
istered no-par value shares against contributions in cash and/or in
kind, on one or more occasions:

— Up to a total of € 550,000,000 (Authorized Capital 2014/1). In case
of a capital increase against cash contribution, the Board of
Management may exclude the shareholders’ subscription rights
for these shares with the consent of the Supervisory Board, (i) for
fractional amounts, (ii) in order to safeguard the rights pertain-
ing to holders of convertible bonds or bonds with warrants,
including mandatory convertible bonds, and (iii) in the event of
acapital increase of up to 10%, if the issue price of the new shares
is not significantly less than the stock market price. The Board of
Management may furthermore exclude the shareholders’ sub-
scription rights with the consent of the Supervisory Board, in the
event of a capital increase against contributions in kind.

— Uptoatotal of € 13,720,000 (Authorized Capital 2014/11). The share-
holders’ subscription rights can be excluded in order to issue the
new shares to employees of Allianz SE and its Group companies
as well as for fractional amounts.

The company’s share capital is conditionally increased by up to
€250,000,000 (Conditional Capital 2010/2014). This conditional capital
increase will only be carried out to the extent that conversion or option
rights resulting from bonds issued by Allianz SE or its subsidiaries on
the basis of the authorization of the General Meeting of 5 May 2010 or
on the basis of the authorization of the General Meeting of 7 May 2014
are exercised, or that conversion obligations tied to such bonds are
fulfilled.
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The Board of Management may buy back and use Allianz shares
for other purposes until 6 May 2019 on the basis of the authorization
of the General Meeting of 7 May 2014 (§ 71 (1) No. 8 of the German Stock
Corporation Act). Together with other treasury shares that are held by
Allianz Sg, or which are attributable to it under §§ 71a et seq. of the
German Stock Corporation Act, such shares may not exceed 10% of
the share capital at any time. The shares acquired pursuant to this
authorization may be used, under exclusion of the shareholders’ sub-
scription rights, for any legally admissible purposes, and in particular
those specified in the authorization. Furthermore, the acquisition of
treasury shares under this authorization may also be carried out
using derivatives such as put options, call options, forward purchases
or a combination thereof, provided such derivatives do not relate to
more than 5% of the share capital.

Domestic or foreign banks that are majority-owned by Allianz SE
may buy and sell Allianz shares for trading purposes (§ 71 (1) No.7
and (2) of the German Stock Corporation Act) under an authorization
of the General Meeting valid until 6 May 2019. The total number of
shares acquired thereunder, together with treasury shares held by
Allianz Sk or attributable to it under §§ 71a et seq. of the German Stock
Corporation Act, shall at no time exceed 10% of the share capital of
Allianz SE.

ESSENTIAL AGREEMENTS OF ALLIANZ SE WITH CHANGE
OF CONTROL CLAUSES AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENTS
PROVIDING FOR TAKEOVER SCENARIOS

The following essential agreements of the company are subject to a
change of control condition following a takeover bid:

— Our reinsurance contracts, in principle, include a clause under
which both parties to the contract have an extraordinary termi-
nation right in the case where the other party to the contract
merges or its ownership or control situation changes materially.
Agreements with brokers regarding services connected with the
purchase of reinsurance cover also provide for termination
rights in case of a change of control. Such clauses are standard
market practice.

— The exclusive bancassurance distribution agreement between
Allianz and HsBc for life insurance products in Asia (China, Indo-
nesia, Malaysia, Australia, Sri Lanka, Taiwan, Brunei, Philippines)
includes a clause under which both parties have an extraordi-
nary termination right in case there is a change of control of the
other party’s ultimate holding company.

— The exclusive bancassurance distribution agreement between
Allianz st and HsBc for life insurance products in Turkey includes
aclause under which both parties have an extraordinary termina-
tion right in case there is a change of control of the other party’s
ultimate holding company.
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— The framework agreements between Allianz St and the subsi-
diaries of various car manufacturers (FCE Bank plc, Volkswagen
Financial Services AG, respectively) relating to the distribution of
car insurance by the respective car manufacturers each include
a clause under which each party has an extraordinary termina-
tion right in case there is a change of control of the other party.

— Bilateral credit agreements in some cases provide for termina-
tion rights if there is a change of control, mostly defined as the
acquisition of at least 30 % of the voting rights within the meaning
of §29(2) of the German Takeover Act (“Wertpapiererwerbs- und
Ubernahmegesetz”, WpUG). If such termination rights are exer-
cised, the respective credit lines have to be replaced by new
credit lines under conditions then applicable.

The company has entered into the following compensation agree-
ments with members of the Board of Management and employees
providing for the event of a takeover bid:

A change of control clause in the service contracts of the mem-
bers of Allianz sg’s Board of Management provides that, if within
twelve months after the acquisition of more than 50% of the compa-
ny’s share capital by one shareholder or several shareholders acting
in concert (change of control) the appointment as a member of the
Board of Management is revoked unilaterally by the Supervisory
Board, or if the mandate is ended by mutual agreement, or if the
Management Board member resigns his or her office because the
responsibilities as a Board member are significantly reduced through
no fault of the Board member, he or she shall receive his or her con-
tractual remuneration for the remaining term of the service contract,
but limited, for the purpose hereof, to three years, in the form of a
one-off payment. The one-off payment is based on the fixed remu-
neration plus 50% of the variable remuneration, however, this basis
being limited to the amount paid for the last fiscal year. To the extent
that the remaining term of the service contract is less than three
years, the one-off payment is generally increased in line with a term
of three years. This applies accordingly if, within two years of a change
of control, a mandate in the Board of Management is coming to an
end and is not extended; the one-off payment will then be granted for
the period between the end of the mandate and the end of the three-
year period after the change of control. For further details, please
refer to the Remuneration Report starting on @ page37.
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Under the Allianz Sustained Performance Plan (Aspp), Restricted
Stock Units (RSU) —i.e. virtual Allianz shares — are granted as a stock-
based remuneration component to senior management of the Allianz
Group worldwide. In addition, under the Group Equity Incentive (GEI)
scheme, Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) — i.e. virtual options on
Allianz shares — were also granted until 2010. Some of these are still
outstanding. The conditions for these RSU and SAR contain change of
control clauses, which apply if a majority of the voting share capital
in Allianz SE is acquired, directly or indirectly, by one or more third
parties who do not belong to the Allianz Group and which provide for
an exception from the usual vesting and exercise periods. The RSU
will be released, in line with their general conditions, by the company
for the relevant plan participants on the day of the change of control
without observing any vesting period that would otherwise apply. The
cash amount payable per RsU must equal the average market value
of the Allianz share and be at least the price offered per Allianz share
in a preceding tender offer. In case of a change of control as described
above, SAR will be exercised, in line with their general conditions, by
the company for the relevant plan participants on the day of the
change of control without observing any vesting period. By providing
for the non-application of the vesting period in the event of a change
of control, the terms take into account the fact that the conditions
under which the share price moves are very different when there is a
change in control.
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Remuneration Report

This report covers the remuneration arrangements for the Board of
Management and the Supervisory Board of Allianz SE.

The report has been prepared in accordance with the require-
ments of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFrS). It also takes into account the
relevant regulatory provisions and the recommendations of the
German Corporate Governance Code.

Allianz se Board of Management
remuneration

GOVERNANCE SYSTEM

The remuneration of the Board of Management is decided upon by
the entire Supervisory Board based on proposals prepared by the
Personnel Committee. If required, outside advice is sought from inde-
pendent external consultants. The Personnel Committee and the
Supervisory Board consult with the Chairman of the Board of Ma-
nagement, as appropriate, in assessing the performance and remu-
neration of members of the Board of Management. The Chairman of
the Board of Management is not present when his own remuneration
is discussed. Regarding the activities and decisions taken by the Per-
sonnel Committee and the Supervisory Board, please refer to the
Supervisory Board Report.

REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES AND MARKET POSITIONING
The key principles of Board of Management remuneration are as
follows:

Support of the Group'’s strategy: Performance targets reflect the
Allianz Group’s business strategy.

— Alignment of pay and performance: The performance-based,
variable component forms a significant portion of the overall
remuneration.

— Variable remuneration focused on sustainability: Two thirds of
the variable remuneration reflect longer-term performance. One
third is a deferred payout after three years, based on a sustain-
ability assessment covering the three-year period. The other third
rewards the sustained performance of the share price with a
deferred payout four years after grant.

— Alignment with shareholder interests: One third of the variable
remuneration is dependent upon share price performance.
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The structure, weighting and level of remuneration is decided by the
Supervisory Board. Remuneration survey data of DAX 30 companies
and international insurance peers is provided by external consul-
tants. Compensation levels are around the third quartile of this
group. The structure of the Allianz Group’s total remuneration is
more strongly weighted to variable, longer-term components than in
most DAX 30 companies. Remuneration and benefit arrangements
are also periodically compared with best practices. In addition, the
Supervisory Board takes remuneration levels within the Group into
account when reviewing the adequateness and the appropriateness
of the remuneration of the Board of Management.

REMUNERATION STRUCTURE,

COMPONENTS, AND TARGET SETTING PROCESS

There are four main remuneration components. Each has the same
weighting within annual target remuneration: base salary, annual
bonus, annualized mid-term bonus (MTB), and equity-related remu-
neration. The target compensation of each variable component does
not exceed the base salary, with the total target variable compensation
not exceeding three times the base salary. In addition, Allianz offers
pensions and similar benefits and perquisites.

Base salary
Base salary is the fixed remuneration component, expressed as an
annual cash sum and paid in twelve monthly installments.

Variable remuneration
Variable remuneration is designed to balance short-term perfor-
mance, longer-term success and sustained value creation.

Each year, the Supervisory Board agrees on performance targets
for the variable remuneration component with members of the Board
of Management. These are documented for the upcoming financial
year. Every three years, the MTB sustainability criteria are set for the
following mid-term period.

All variable awards are made under the rules and conditions of
the “Allianz Sustained Performance Plan” (Aspp). The grant of variable
remuneration components is related to performance and can vary
between 0% and 150% of the respective target values. If performance
was rated at 0% no variable component would be granted. Conse-
quently, the minimum total direct compensation for a regular mem-
ber of the Board of Management equals the base salary of € 750 THOU
(excluding perquisites and pension contributions). The maximum
total direct compensation (excluding perquisites and pension con-
tributions) is € 4,125 THOU: base salary € 750 THOU plus € 3,375 THOU
(150% of the sum of all three variable compensation components at
target).
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Details on the variable compensation components:

Annual bonus (short-term): A cash payment which rewards the
achievement of quantitative and qualitative targets for the
respective financial year and is paid the year following the perfor-
mance year. Quantitative targets represent 75% and consist of 50%
Group targets (equally divided between annual operating profit
and annual net income) and 25 % divisional targets. For members
of the Board of Management with business division responsibili-
ties, divisional targets are set with the following split: 10% annual
operating profit, 10% annual net income before minorities and 5%
dividends. For members of the Board of Management with a func-
tional focus, the divisional quantitative targets are determined
based on their key responsibilities. Qualitative targets represent
25% and reflect the specific individual priorities for the perfor-
mance year per member of the Board of Management. The perfor-
mance of the Chairman of the Allianz St Board of Management is
determined by the average target achievement of the other Board
of Management members and can be adjusted by the Supervisory
Board based on the Chairman’s personal performance.

Based on the 2015 target achievement for the Group, the
business division/corporate functions, and the qualitative per-
formance, the total annual bonus awards ranged between 101 %
and 133% of the target with an average bonus award of 121 % of
the target.

— MTB (mid-term): A deferred award which reflects the achieve-

ment of the annual targets by accruing an amount identical to
the annual bonus. The payout of the award at the end of a three-
year cycle is subject to a sustainability assessment for these three
years. The following criteria are considered:

— adjusted capital growth vs. planned development in light
of risk capital employed (adjusted capital essentially repre-
sents the fair value of shareholders’ equity),

— balance sheet strength,

— comparison with peers,

— “partner of choice” for stakeholders, and

— extraordinary events.

Following the final performance and sustainability assessment
of the MTB 20132015, a total payout of € 29,176 THOU was approved
by the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board conducted the
sustainability assessment in accordance with the agreed criteria.
This analysis concluded that the years 2013-2015 represented a
period of solid and sustainable performance for Allianz with over-
all positive development against the criteria — in particular with
regard to balance sheet strength. The final distributions have
been differentiated according to the assessments made across
the business divisions with adjustments ranging from 0% to+10%
of the target value.

ILLUSTRATION OF THE PROCESS AND THE UNDERLYING TIMELINE OF THE MTB CYCLE, FROM TARGET SETTING TO FINAL PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT!

€THOU

Notional accruals

Sustainability criteria

setting for the three-year —— Accrual
performance period 650
Accrual
620
Accrual
930
Dec 2012 20132 20142 20152

Sustainability criteria setting

Performance period

M Year1 M Year2 M Years

1 — Example based on target values of a regular member of the Board of Management with an annual target
of € 700 THoU for 2013 and € 750 THOU for the MTB in 2014 and 2015. Accrual is only a notional indication.

2 — Actual accrual for the MTB (mid-term) usually equals the annual bonus payout of the respective financial
year. Since the performance assessment and the final payout occur after completion of the performance
cycle, this value is only a notional indication.

Max: 3,300 150%
Total 2,200 Initial accrued Target:
amounts 2:200
Accrual _— +
650 Sustainability
assessment
Accrual =
620 Final payout
Accrual
930
Min: 0 0%
2016°

Sustainability assessment & payout

3 —Final payout is subject to the sustainability assessment of the Supervisory Board and may vary between
0% and 150% of the cumulative target values, independent of the notional accruals.
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— Equity-related remuneration (long-term): A virtual share award,
known as “Restricted Stock Units” (Rsus). The grant value of the
RsUs allocated equals the annual bonus of the performance year.
The number of RsUs allocated is derived from dividing the grant
value by the fair market value of an RsU at the time of grant.

The fair market value is calculated based on the ten-day
average Xetra closing price of the Allianz stock following the
financial press conference on the annual results. As RSUs are
virtual stocks without dividend payments, the average Xetra
closing price is reduced! by the net present value of the expected
future dividend payments during the vesting period. The expected
dividend stream is discounted with the respective swap rates as
of the valuation day.

Following the end of the four-year vesting period, the com-
pany makes a cash payment based on the number of RSUs granted
and the ten-day average Xetra closing price of the Allianz stock
following the annual financial press conference in the year of
expiry of the respective RSU plan. The RSU payout is capped at
200% above grant price to avoid extreme payouts?. Outstanding
RSU holdings are forfeited should a Board member leave at his/
her own request or be terminated for cause.

Variable remuneration components may not be paid, or payment
may be restricted in the case of a breach of the Allianz Code of Con-
duct, risk limits, or compliance requirements. Additionally, a reduc-
tion or cancellation of variable remuneration may occur if the super-
visory authority (BaFin) requires this in accordance with its statutory
powers.

To provide competitive and cost-effective retirement and disability
benefits, Board of Management members have participated in a con-
tribution-based system since 1January 2005 which was modified to
My Allianz Pension in 2015 for all Board members born after 31 Decem-
ber 1957. Before 2005, Board members participated in a defined benefit
plan that provided fixed benefits not linked to base salary increases.
Benefits generated under this plan were frozen at the end of 2004.
Additionally, most Board members participate in the Allianz Versor-
gungskasse VVaG (AVK), a contribution-based pension plan, and the
Allianz Pensionsverein e.V. (APv) —which provide pension benefits for
salaries up to the German social security ceiling.

1 —The fair market value of the rRsus is further subject to a small reduction of a few Euro cents due to the
200% cap on the RsU payout. This reduction is calculated based on a standard option price formula.

2 —The relevant share price used to determine the final number of RsUs granted and the 200% cap is only
available after sign-off by the external auditors.
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Company contributions to the current pension plan depend on
the years of service on the Board of Management. For most members
ofthe Allianz s Board of Management, the contributions are invested
in a fund with a guarantee for the contributions paid, but no further
interest guarantee. On retirement, the accumulated capital is paid
out as lump sum or can be converted into a lifetime annuity. Each
year the Supervisory Board decides whether and to what extent a bud-
get is provided, also taking into account the targeted pension level.
This budget includes a risk premium paid to cover death and dis-
ability. The earliest age a pension can be drawn is 62, except for cases
of occupational or general disability for medical reasons. In these
cases, it may become payable earlier and an increase by projection
may apply. In the case of death, a pension may be paid to dependents.
Surviving dependents normally receive 60% (surviving partner) and
20% (per child) of the original Board member’s pension, with the
aggregate not to exceed 100%. Should Board membership cease
before retirement age for other reasons, the accrued pension rights
are maintained if vesting requirements are met.

For members of the Allianz St Board of Management who were
born before 1January 1958 and for rights accrued before 2015 the
guaranteed minimum interest rate remains at 2.75% and the retire-
ment age is still 60.

Perquisites mainly consist of contributions to accident and liability
insurances and the provision of a company car. Perquisites are not
linked to performance. Each member of the Board of Management is
responsible for the income tax on these perquisites. The Supervisory
Board regularly reviews the level of perquisites.
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REMUNERATION FOR 2015

The following remuneration disclosure is based on and compliant
with the German Corporate Governance Code and illustrates indi-
vidual remuneration for 2014 and 2015, including fixed and variable
remuneration and pension service cost. The “grant” column below
shows the remuneration at target and minimum and maximum
levels. The “payout” column discloses the 2014 and 2015 payments.
The base salary, annual bonus and perquisites are linked to the
reported performance years 2014 and 2015, whereas the Group Equity
Incentive (GEI) and Allianz Equity Incentive (AEI) payouts result from
grants related to the performance years 2008 —2010.

INDIVIDUAL REMUNERATION: 2015 AND 2014

To make the remuneration related to the performance year 2015
more transparent, the additional column “actual grant” includes the
2015 fixed compensation, the bonus paid for 2015, the MTB 2013-2015
tranche accrued for the performance year 2015, and the fair value of
the RSU grant in 2016 for the performance year 2015.

The 2015 payout is significantly higher than in 2014 due to the
fact that the payout of the MTB 20132015 is disclosed. This compris-
es payment for three performance years in total.

€THOU Oliver Bate® (Appointed: 01/2008; CEO since 05/2015)
Actual |
Grant Grant | Payout’

1
2014 2015 2015 2014 2015

Target Target Min Max :
Base Salary 750 994 994 994 994 , 750 994
Perquisites 7 15 15 15 15 ; 7 15
Total fixed compensation 757 1,009 1,009 1,009 1,009 | 757 1,009
Annual Variable Compensation — Annual Bonus 750 996 - 1,494 1,260 ; 1,009 1,260

Deferred Compensation E
MTB (2013—-2015)?2 750 996 - 1,494 1,260 . - 3,516
AEl 2016/RSU3 - 996 - 1,494 1,260 , - -
AEI 2015/RSU3 750 - - - - - -
AEI 2011/RSU3 - - - - - - 1,704
GEI 2010/RSU3 - - - - - - 916
GEI 2009/RSU3 - - - - - , 228 -
GEI 2010/SAR? - - - - - 438 -
GEI 2008/SAR? - - - - - - 263
Total 3,007 3,997 1,009 5,491 4,790 ; 2,432 8,668
Pensions Service Cost® 368 483 483 483 483 ; 368 483
Total 3,375 4,480 1,492 5,974 5,273 . 2,800 9,151

1 —Inaccordance with the German Corporate Governance Code, the annual bonus disclosed for performance
year 2015 is paid in 2016 and for performance year 2014 in 2015. The payments for equity related deferred
compensation (GEl and AEl), however, are disclosed for the year in which the actual payment was made.

2 —The M8 figure included in the Actual Grant column shows the annual accrual. The payout 2015 figure
includes the 2015 allocation and the accruals from the performance years 2013 and 2014, as adjusted by
the sustainability assessment. The MTB 2013—2015 is paid out in spring 2016.

3 —Payout is capped at 200% above grant price. The relevant share price used to determine the fair market
value, and hence the final number of RSus granted, and the 200% cap are only available after sign-off by
the external auditors.

4 —The equity-related remuneration that applied before 2010 consisted of two vehicles, virtual stock awards
known as rRsus and virtual stock options known as “Stock Appreciation Rights” (sAR). Only RsUs have been
awarded as of 1January 2010. The remuneration system valid until December 2009 is disclosed in the
Annual Report 2009 (starting on page 17). Whereas the GEI/RSU grants are automatically exercised at the
vesting date, the GEI/SAR grants are exercised by the Board member within the exercise period following
the vesting date. Hence the total payout from sArs depends on the individual decision by the Board

member. SARs are released to plan participants upon expiry of the vesting period, assuming all other
exercise hurdles are met. For sARs granted until and including 2008, the vesting period was two years and
the exercise period five years. For SARs granted 2009, the vesting period is four years and the exercise
period three years. SARs can be exercised on the condition that the price of the Allianz SE stock is at least
20% above the strike price at the time of grant. During the term of the plan, at least once on five consecu-
tive trading days the Allianz S stock must relatively appreciate at least 0.01 percentage points ahead of
the appreciation of the Dow Jones EURO STOXX Price Index (600).

5— Pension Service Cost in accordance with I1AS 19: represents the company cost not the actual entitlement
nor a payment, however, according to the German Corporate Governance Code the Pension Service Cost
is to be included in all columns.

6 — Oliver Bate's base salary and his target for the annual bonus, the MT8 tranche, and equity-related com-
pensation are disclosed based on his pro-rated base salary of € 750 THOU until 6 May 2015 and his pro-rated
base salary of € 1,125 THou from 7 May 2015. The different pro-rated amounts for base salary and target
amounts result from different pro-rating methodologies, which are generally applied.
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Michael Diekmann? (Appointed: 10/1998; CEO 04/2003 -05/2015)

Sergio Balbinot® (Appointed: 01/2015)

Actual | Actual |
Grant Grant | Payout’ Grant Grant | Payout’
i 1
2014 2015 2015 E 2014 2015 2014 2015 2015 E 2014 2015
Target Target Min Max : Target Target Min Max :
1,280 447 447 447 447 E 1,280 447 - 750 750 750 750 E - 750
24 12 12 12 12 g 24 12 - 33 33 33 33 g - 33
1,304 459 459 459 459 g 1,304 459 - 783 783 783 783 g - 783
1,280 442 — 663 534 E 1,546 534 - 750 - 1,125 999 E - 999
1,280 442 - 663 534 . - 3,952 - 750 - 1,125 999 . - 999
- 442 - 663 534 E - - - 750 - 1,125 999 E - -
1,280 - - - = g - - - - - - = g - -
- - - - - - 2,776 - - - - - - -
- - - - . - 1,569 - - - - . - -
- - - - = E 376 - - - - - = E - -
- - - - = g 963 - - - - - = g - -
- - - - - - 450 - - - - - - -
5,144 1,785 459 2,448 2,061 E 4,189 9,740 - 3,033 783 4,158 3,780 E - 2,781
998 235 235 235 235 g 998 235 - 222 222 222 222 g - 222
6,142 2,020 694 2,683 2,296 5 5,187 9,975 - 3,255 1,005 4,380 4,002 5 - 3,003
7 — Michael Diekmann retired on 7 May 2015. He received a pro-rated base salary, annual bonus, and equity-
related compensation. The different pro-rated amounts for base salary and target amounts result from
different pro-rating methodologies, which are generally applied. According to his service contract, he will
receive his fixed salary of € 106.7 THOU per month for a period of 6 months from December 2015 as a
transition payment, which will be set off against the regular pension payment. As part of the transition
payment he will receive a payment of 25% of the annual variable target compensation (€ 960 THOU) in
spring 2017.
8 —In addition to the amounts disclosed in the table, Sergio Balbinot received a buyout award of €6 MN to
compensate for forfeited grants from his previous employer: € 3 MN in cash and € 3 MN in RSUs. 50% of the
cash amount was paid in February 2015 and 50% will be paid in 2016 and are subject to clawback.
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INDIVIDUAL REMUNERATION: 2015 AND 2014

€THOU Manuel Bauer® (Appointed: 01/2011; End of Service: 09/2015)
Actual |
Grant Grant | Payout?
1
2014 2015 2015 2014 2015
Target Target Min Max :
Base Salary 750 563 563 563 563 . 750 563
Perquisites 15 1687 1687 1687 16875 15 1687
Total fixed compensation 765 731 731 731 731 : 765 731
Annual Variable Compensation — Annual Bonus 750 561 - 842 629 E 778 629
Deferred Compensation E
MTB (2013 -2015)?2 750 561 - 842 629 : - 2,335
AEI 2016/RSU3 - 561 - 842 629 . - -
AEI 2015/RSU3 750 - - - - . - -
AEI 2011/RSU3 - - - - - - -
GEI 2010/RSU? - - - - - - -
GEI 2009/RSU3 - - - - - - -
GEI 2010/SAR% - - - - - . - -
GEI 2008/SAR* - - - - - - -
Total 3,015 2,414 731 3,257 2,619 . 1,543 3,695
Pensions Service Cost® 317 296 296 296 296 : 317 296
Total 3,332 2,710 1,027 3,553 2,915 . 1,860 3,991
€THOU Jay Ralph (Appointed: 01/2010)
Actual |
Grant Grant | Payout’
2014 2015 2015 2014 2015
Target Target Min Max :
Base Salary 750 750 750 750 750 : 750 750
Perquisites 30 19 19 19 19 : 30 19
Total fixed compensation 780 769 769 769 769 | 780 769
Annual Variable Compensation — Annual Bonus 750 750 - 1,125 870 E 912 870
Deferred Compensation E
MTB (2013—-2015)?2 750 750 - 1,125 870 - 2,784
AEl 2016/RSU3 - 750 - 1,125 870 . - -
AEI 2015/RSU3 750 - - - - - -
AEI 2011/RSU3 - - - - - - 1,520
GEI 2010/RSU3 - - - - - - 876
GEI 2009/RSU3 - - - - - . - -
GEI 2010/SAR* - - - - N - 719
GEI 2008/SAR* - - - - - - -
Total 3,030 3,019 769 4,144 3,379 : 1,692 7,538
Pensions Service Cost® 254 283 283 283 283 : 254 283
Total 3,284 3,302 1,052 4,427 3,662 . 1,946 7,821

1 —In accordance with the German Corporate Governance Code, the annual bonus disclosed for performance
year 2015 is paid in 2016 and for performance year 2014 in 2015. The payments for equity related deferred
compensation (GEl and AEr), however, are disclosed for the year in which the actual payment was made.

2 —The M8 figure included in the Actual Grant column shows the annual accrual. The payout 2015 figure
includes the 2015 accrual and the accruals from the performance years 2013 and 2014, as adjusted by the
sustainability assessment. The MTB 2013—2015 is paid out in spring 2016.

3 — Payout is capped at 200% above grant price. The relevant share price used to determine the fair market
value, and hence the final number of Rsus granted, and the 200% cap are only available after sign-off by
the external auditors.

4 —The equity-related remuneration that applied before 2010 consisted of two vehicles, virtual stock awards
known as rRsus and virtual stock options known as “Stock Appreciation Rights” (sAR). Only Rsus have been

awarded as of 1January 2010. The remuneration system valid until December 2009 is disclosed in the
Annual Report 2009 (starting on page 17). Whereas the GEI/RsU grants are automatically exercised at the
vesting date, the GEI/SAR grants are exercised by the Board member within the exercise period following
the vesting date. Hence the total payout from sARs depends on the individual decision by the Board
member. SARs are released to plan participants upon expiry of the vesting period, assuming all other
exercise hurdles are met. For sARs granted until and including 2008, the vesting period was two years and
the exercise period five years. For SARs granted 2009, the vesting period is four years and the exercise
period three years. SARs can be exercised on the condition that the price of the Allianz St stock is at least
20% above the strike price at the time of grant. During the term of the plan, at least once on five consecu-
tive trading days the Allianz SE stock must relatively appreciate at least 0.01 percentage points ahead of
the appreciation of the Dow Jones EURO STOXX Price Index (600).
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Dr.Helga Jung (Appointed: 01/2012)

Dr. Christof Mascher (Appointed: 09/2009)

Actual

| Actual !
Grant Grant | Payout’ Grant Grant | Payout!
1 1
2014 2015 2015 E 2014 2015 2014 2015 2015 E 2014 2015
Target Target Min Max : Target Target Min Max :
750 750 750 750 750 | 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 | 750 750
14 14 14 14 14 E 14 14 1628 2 2 2 2 E 1628 2
764 764 764 764 764 E 764 764 912 752 752 752 752 E 912 752
750 750 - 1,125 758 E 763 758 750 750 - 1,125 859 E 907 859
750 750 - 1,125 758 g - 2,534 750 750 - 1,125 859 g - 2,885
- 750 - 1,125 758 1 - - - 750 - 1,125 859 . - -
750 - - - = E - - 750 - - - = E - -
- - - - = g - - - - - - = g - 1,584
- - - - = g - - - - - - = g - 593
- - - - - - - - - - - - 131° -
3,014 3,014 764 4,139 3,037 | 1,527 4,056 3,162 3,002 752 4,127 3,330 : 1,950 6,673
302 274 274 274 274 E 302 274 339 348 348 348 348 E 339 348
3,316 3,288 1,038 4,413 3,311 5 1,829 4,330 3,501 3,350 1,100 4,475 3,678 5 2,289 7,021
Dr.Axel Theis (Appointed: 01/2015) Dr.Dieter Wemmer (Appointed: 01/2012)
Actual | Actual |
Grant Grant | Payout' Grant Grant | Payout’
2014 2015 2015 E 2014 2015 2014 2015 2015 E 2014 2015
Target Target Min Max : Target Target Min Max :
- 750 750 750 750 E - 750 750 750 750 750 750 E 750 750
- 27 27 27 27 . - 27 17 16 16 16 16 1 17 16
- 777 777 777 777 . - 777 767 766 766 766 766 . 767 766
- 750 - 1,125 956 E - 956 750 750 - 1,125 961 E 996 961
- 750 - s 956 | - 956 750 750 - s 961 | - 315
- 750 - 1,125 956 E - 750 - 1,125 961 E - -
- - - - = g - - 750 - - - = g - -
- 3,027 777 4,152 3,644 E - 2,689 3,017 3,016 766 4,141 3,649 E 1,763 4,883
- 397 397 397 397 g - 397 249 282 282 282 282 g 249 282
- 3,424 1,174 4,549 4,041 . - 3,086 3,266 3,298 1,048 4,423 3,931 ; 2,012 5,165
5 — Pension Service Cost in accordance with 1As 19: represents the company cost, not the actual entitlement
nor a payment; however, according to the German Corporate Governance Code, the Pension Service Cost
is to be included in all columns.
6 — According to his cancellation agreement and in addition to the amounts disclosed in the table, Manuel Bauer
receives a payment of € 281.3 THOU in spring 2016 and according to his severance agreement, a payment
of €187.5 THOU in 2015. The different pro-rated amounts for base salary and target amounts result from
different pro-rating methodologies, which are generally applied.
7 —Manuel Bauer received a payment of € 156 THOU in 2015 for 25 years of service to Allianz.
8 — Dr. Christof Mascher received a payment of € 156 THOU in 2014 for 25 years of service for Allianz.
9 — Since Dr. Christof Mascher joined the Board of Management in September 2009, his pay-out from the
GEI 2009 plans are shown pro rata temporis.
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INDIVIDUAL REMUNERATION: 2015 AND 2014

€THOU Dr.Werner Zedelius (Appointed: 01/2002)
Actual |
Grant Grant | Payout?

1
2014 2015 2015 2014 2015

Target Target Min Max :
Base Salary 750 750 750 750 750 : 750 750
Perquisites 17 19 19 19 19 : 17 19
Total fixed compensation 767 769 769 769 769 : 767 769
Annual Variable Compensation — Annual Bonus 750 750 - 1,125 959 E 1,032 959

Deferred Compensation E
MTB (2013 -2015)?2 750 750 - 1,125 959 : - 3,066
AEI 2016/RSU3 - 750 - 1,125 959 , - -
AEI 2015/RSU3 750 - - - - . - -
AEI 2011/RSU3 - - - - - - 1,505
GEI 2010/RSU3 - - - - - - 1,225
GEI 2009/RSU3 - - - - - 1,048 -
GEI 2010/SAR? - - - - - . 187 591
GEI 2008/SAR? - - - - - - 328
Total 3,017 3,019 769 4,144 3,646 . 3,034 8,443
Pensions Service Cost® 576 646 646 646 646 : 576 646
Total 3,593 3,665 1,415 4,790 4,292 . 3,610 9,089

€THOU Dr.Maximilian Zimmerer (Appointed: 06/2012)
Actual |
Grant Grant | Payout?

1
2014 2015 2015 2014 2015

Target Target Min Max :
Base Salary 750 750 750 750 750 : 750 750
Perquisites 10 16 16 16 16 : 10 16
Total fixed compensation 760 766 766 766 766 : 760 766
Annual Variable Compensation — Annual Bonus 750 750 - 1,125 940 E 909 940

Deferred Compensation E
MTB (2013-2015)?2 750 750 - 1,125 940 : - 2,993
AEI 2016/RSU3 - 750 - 1,125 940 - -
AEI 2015/RSU3 750 - - - - . - -
AEI 2011/RSU? - - - - - - -
GEI 2010/RSU3 - - - - - - -
GEI 2009/RSU3 - - - - - - -
GEI 2010/SAR? - - - - - . - -
GEI 2008/SAR? - - - - - - -
Total 3,010 3,016 766 4,141 3,585 : 1,669 4,699
Pensions Service Cost® 409 386 386 386 386 : 409 386
Total 3,419 3,402 1,152 4,527 3,971 . 2,078 5,085

1 —Inaccordance with the German Corporate Governance Code, the annual bonus disclosed for performance
year 2015 is paid in 2016 and for performance year 2014 in 2015. The payments for equity related deferred
compensation (GEl and AEl), however, are disclosed for the year in which the actual payment was made.

2 —The wmTB figure included in the Actual Grant column shows the annual accrual. The payout 2015 figure
includes the 2015 accrual and the accruals from the performance years 2013 and 2014, as adjusted by the
sustainability assessment. The MTB 20132015 is paid out in spring 2016.

3 — Payout is capped at 200% above grant price. The relevant share price used to determine the fair market
value, and hence the final number of Rsus granted, and the 200% cap are only available after sign-off by
the external auditors.

4 —The equity-related remuneration that applied before 2010 consisted of two vehicles, virtual stock awards
known as rRsus and virtual stock options known as “Stock Appreciation Rights” (SAR). Only Rsus have been
awarded as of 1January 2010. The remuneration system valid until December 2009 is disclosed in the
Annual Report 2009 (starting on page 17). Whereas the GEI/RSU grants are automatically exercised at the

5

vesting date, the GEI/SAR grants are exercised by the Board member within the exercise period following
the vesting date. Hence the total payout from sARs depends on the individual decision by the Board
member. SARs are released to plan participants upon expiry of the vesting period, assuming all other
exercise hurdles are met. For SARs granted until and including 2008, the vesting period was two years and
the exercise period five years. For SARs granted 2009, the vesting period is four years and the exercise
period three years. SARs can be exercised on the condition that the price of the Allianz St stock is at least
20% above the strike price at the time of grant. During the term of the plan, at least once on five consecu-
tive trading days the Allianz S stock must relatively appreciate at least 0.01 percentage points ahead of
the appreciation of the Dow Jones EURO STOXX Price Index (600).

Pension Service Cost in accordance with IAS 19: represents the company cost not the actual entitlement
nor a payment, however, according to the German Corporate Governance Code the Pension Service Cost
is to be included in all columns.

44

Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group



B— Corporate Governance

34 Takeover-related Statements
and Explanations
37 Remuneration Report

27 Corporate Governance Report

32 Statement on Corporate Management
pursuant to § 289a of the HGB

GERMAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 17 DISCLOSURE

The total remuneration to be disclosed in accordance with German
Accounting Standard 17 for 2015 is defined differently than in the Ger-
man Corporate Governance Code and is composed of the base salary,
perquisites, annual bonus, the fair value of the Rsu grant and the pay-
out of the MTB 2013-2015. However, it excludes the pension service
cost. The information on remuneration for 2014 (in parentheses)
does not disclose the notional accruals for the MTB 2013-2015:

Oliver Bate € 7,046 (2,774) THOU,

Michael Diekmann € 5,479 (4,397) THOU,
Sergio Balbinot € 3,780 (-) THOU,

Manuel Bauer € 4,325 (2,322) THOU,
Dr.HelgaJung € 4,813 (2,290) THOU,

Dr. Christof Mascher € 5,356 (2,726) THOU,
Jay Ralph € 5,293 (2,603) THOU,

Dr.Axel Theis € 3,644 (=) THOU,

Dr.Dieter Wemmer € 5,844 (2,760) THOU,
Dr.Werner Zedelius € 5,753 (2,831) THOU,
Dr.Maximilian Zimmerer € 5,638 (2,578) THOU.

The sum of the total remuneration of the Board of Management for
2015, including the payments of the MTB 20132015 and excluding the
pension service cost, amounts to € 57 MN (2014 excluding the notional
accruals for the MTB 2013-2015: € 30 MN). The corresponding amount,
including pension service cost, equals € 61 MN (2014 excluding the
notional accruals for the MTB 2013—2015: € 35 MN).

EQUITY-RELATED REMUNERATION

In accordance with the approach described earlier, a number of RSUs
were granted to each member of the Board of Management in March
2016, which will vest and be settled in 2020.

GRANTS, OUTSTANDING HOLDINGS, AND EQUITY COMPENSATION EXPENSE UNDER THE ALLIANZ EQUITY PROGRAM

RSU SAR

Number of RsU Number of RsU Number of SAR Equity Compensation

granted on held at held at Strike Price Expense 20152

Board members 4/3/20167 31/12/20157 31/12/2015 € €THOU
Oliver Béte (Chairman since 7/5/2015) 10,898 38,613 - - 2,363
Michael Diekmann (Chairman until 6/5/2015) 4,618 60,292 - - 3,493
Sergio Balbinot? 8,638 24,820 - - 1,345
Manuel Bauer 5,443 32,973 - - 1,821
Dr.Helga Jung 6,551 27,331 3,167 87.36 1,508
Dr. Christof Mascher 7,430 34,260 7,892 87.36 2,223
Jay Ralph 7,521 34,968 - - 2,195
Dr. Alex Theis 8,263 23,005 - - 1,442
Dr. Dieter Wemmer 8,311 28,740 - - 1,370
Dr. Werner Zedelius 8,291 35,513 - - 2,176
Dr. Maximilian Zimmerer 8,124 29,892 - - 1,718
Total 84,088 370,407 11,059 - 21,653

1—The relevant share price used to determine the fair market value, and hence the final number of Rsus
granted, is only available after sign-off of the Annual Report by the external auditors, thus numbers are
based on a best estimate. As disclosed in the Annual Report 2014, the equity-related grant in 2015 was
made to participants as part of their 2014 remuneration. The disclosure in the Annual Report 2014 was
based on a best estimate of the RsuU grants. The actual grants deviated from the estimated values and
have to be disclosed accordingly. The actual Rsu grants as of 12 March 2015 under the Allianz Equity
Incentive are as follows: Oliver Bate: 8,187, Michael Diekmann: 12,554, Manuel Bauer: 6,319, Dr. HelgaJung:
6,192, Dr. Christof Mascher: 7,364, Jay Ralph: 7,401, Dr. Dieter Wemmer: 8,088, Dr. Werner Zedelius: 8,379,
Dr.Maximilian Zimmerer: 7,379.

2 —Crants of equity-related remuneration are accounted for as cash settled awards. The fair market value of
the granted RsUs and SARs is remeasured at each reporting date and accrued, as a compensation expense,
proportionately over the vesting and service period. Upon vesting, any subsequent changes in the fair
value of the unexercised SARs are also recognized as a compensation expense.

3 —24,820 RsUs granted in March 2015 include Rsus granted for his December 2014 employment contract.
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PENSIONS

Company contributions for the current plan remain unchanged from
2014 and are set at 27.98 % of the base salary, increasing to 34.98 % after
five years and to 41.98 % after ten years of service on the Board of Man-
agement. These are invested in a fund and have a guarantee for the
contributions paid, but no further interest guarantee (for members
of the Board of Management who were born before 1January 1958, the
guaranteed minimum interest rate remains at 2.75% p.a.). For mem-
bers with pension rights in the frozen defined benefit plan, the above
contribution rates are reduced by 19% of the expected annual pension
from that frozen plan.

INDIVIDUAL PENSIONS: 2015 AND 2014

The Allianz Group paid € 4 MN (2014: € 4 MN) to increase reserves
for pensions and similar benefits for active members of the Board of
Management. As of 31 December 2015, reserves for pensions and
similar benefits for active members of the Board of Management
amounted to € 38 MN (2014: € 56 MN).

Total might not sum up due to rounding

€THOU
Defined benefit pension plan
(frozen) Current pension plan AVK/APV! Transition payment? Total
Annual
pension
Board of Management payment? sc4 DBOS sc4 DBO* sc4 DBOS sc4 DBOS sc4 DBOS
Oliver Bate 2015 - - - 283 2,916 6 31 194 495 483 3,442
(Chairman since 7/5/2015) 2014 - - - 322 2,722 3 26 44 284 368 3,032
Michael Diekmanné 2015 337 - - 230 - 3 - 3 - 235 -
(Chairman until 6/5/2015) 2014 337 306 9,963 577 6,373 10 253 105 1,278 998 17,867
Sergio Balbinot 2015 - - - 219 243 2 2 1 1 222 246
2014 - - - - - - - - - - -
Manuel Bauer? 2015 57 - - 287 - 9 - - - 296 -
2014 57 58 1,678 249 1,818 9 162 - - 317 3,658
Dr.Helga Jung 2015 62 56 1,187 210 1,800 8 147 - - 274 3,134
2014 62 43 1,175 251 1,629 9 221 - - 302 3,025
Dr. Christof Mascher 2015 - - - 280 3,016 5 37 63 508 348 3,562
2014 - - - 273 2,802 3 29 63 453 339 3,284
Jay Ralph 2015 - - - 278 1,860 5 23 - 1 283 1,884
2014 - - - 251 1,618 3 17 - 1 254 1,635
Dr. Axel Theis 2015 120 110 3,085 199 2,450 10 214 78 722 397 6,471
2014 - - - - - - - - - - -
Dr. Dieter Wemmer 2015 - - - 278 1,181 4 8 - 1 282 1,190
2014 - - - 247 905 2 9 - 1 249 915
Dr. Werner Zedelius 2015 225 213 5,751 398 4,151 9 203 26 641 646 10,746
2014 225 170 5,700 350 3,823 10 268 47 618 576 10,409
Dr. Maximilian Zimmerer 2015 161 150 3,897 191 2,672 9 196 36 656 386 7,422
2014 161 118 3,869 232 2,524 9 264 49 627 409 7,285

1 — Plan participants contribute 3% of their relevant salary to the Avk. For the Avk the minimum guaranteed
interest rate is 2.75%—3.50% depending on the date of joining Allianz. In general, the company funds
the balance required via the Apv. Before Allianz's founding of the Apv in 1998, both Allianz and the plan
participants were contributing to the Avk.

2 —For details on the transition payment, see section Termination of service. In any event a death benefit is
included.

3 — Expected annual pension payment at assumed retirement age (age 60), excluding current pension plan.

4 —SC=service cost. Service costs are calculatory costs for the DBO related to the reported business year.

5—DBO = defined benefit obligation, end of year. The figures show the obligation for Allianz resulting from
defined benefit plans taking into account realistic assumptions with regard to interest rate, dynamics and
biometric probabilities.

6—As Michael Diekmann retired on 7 May 2015, his employer-financed D80 of € 17,277 THou (thereof
€9,256 THOU for the frozen DB-Pension-Plan, € 6,416 THOU for the Current Pension Plan, €303 THOU Avk/
APV and € 1,301 THOU for the transition payment) is covered with former Board members.

7 —As Manuel Bauer left Allianz on 30 September 2015, his employer-financed D8O of € 3,924 THoU (thereof
€1,699 THOU for the frozen DB-Pension-Plan, € 2,030 THou for the Current Pension Plan and € 195 THOU
AVK/APV) is covered with former Board members.
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In 2015, remuneration and other benefits totaling € 7 MN (2014: € 6 MN)
were paid to former members of the Board of Management and
dependents, while reserves for current pension obligations and
accrued pension rights totaled € 122 MN (2014: € 102 MN).

LOANS TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
As of 31 December 2015, there were no outstanding loans granted by
Allianz Group companies to members of the Board of Management.

TERMINATION OF SERVICE

Board of Management contracts are limited to a period of five years.
For new appointments, in compliance with the German Corporate
Governance Code, a shorter period is typical.

Arrangements for termination of service including retirement are as
follows:

. Board members who were appointed before 1January 2010 — and
who have served a term of at least five years — are eligible for a six-
month transition payment after leaving the Board of Management.

2. Severance payments made to Board members in case of an early
termination comply with the German Corporate Governance Code.

. Special terms, also compliant with the German Corporate Gover-
nance Code, apply if service is ended as a result of a “change of
control”. This requires that a shareholder of Allianz Sk, acting alone
or together with other shareholders, holds more than 50 % of voting
rights in Allianz SE.

Contracts do not contain provisions for any other cases of early ter-
mination from the Board of Management.

Board members who were appointed before 1January 2011 are
eligible to use a company car for a period of one year after their
retirement.
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Termination of service —
details of the payment arrangements

Transition payment (appointment before 1 January 2010)
Board members receiving a transition payment are subject to a six-
months non-compete clause.

The payment is calculated based on the last base salary (paid for
a period of six months) and 25 % of the target variable remuneration
at the date when notice is given. A Board member with a base salary
of € 750 THOU would receive a maximum of € 937.5 THOU.

Where an Allianz pension is immediately payable, transition
payment amounts are set off accordingly.

Severance payment cap

Payments to Board members for early termination with a remaining
term of contract of more than two years are capped at two years’ com-
pensation.

Whereby the annual compensation:

1. is calculated on the basis of the previous year’s annual base sal-
ary plus 50% of the target variable remuneration (annual bonus,
accrued MTB and equity-related remuneration: For a Board
member with a fixed base salary of € 750 THOU, the annual com-
pensation would amount to € 1,875 THOU. Hence, he/she would
receive a maximum severance payment of € 3,750 THOU) and

2. shall not exceed the latest year’s actual total compensation.

If the remaining term of contract is less than two years, the payment
is pro-rated according to the remaining term of the contract.

Change of control

In case of early termination as a result of a change of control, sever-
ance payments made to Board members generally amount to three
years’ compensation (annual compensation as defined above) and
shall not exceed 150 % of the severance payment cap (a Board mem-
ber with a base salary of € 750 THOU would receive a maximum of
€5,625 THOU).
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MISCELLANEOUS

When a member of the Board of Management holds an appointment
in another company within the Allianz Group, the full remuneration
amount is transferred to Allianz SE. In recognition of the benefits to
the organization, Board of Management members are allowed to
accept a limited number of non-executive supervisory roles in appro-
priate external organizations. In these cases, 50% of the remunera-
tion received is paid to Allianz SE. A Board member retains the full
remuneration only when the Supervisory Board qualifies the appoint-
ment as a personal one. Remuneration paid by external organiza-
tions is shown in the annual reports of the companies concerned. The
remuneration relating to the external appointment is set by the gov-
erning body of the relevant organization.

OUTLOOK FOR 2016

The Supervisory Board approved the following changes to the remu-
neration of the Board of Management on 10 December 2015, and the
Board of Management for all executives of Allianz Group from 2016
and 2017 in a phased approach:

The Performance Management system has been adjusted to support
Allianz’s strategic Renewal Agenda. Under the new Inclusive Meritoc-
racy approach, Group or company related financial kpis make up half
the performance equation. The other halfis linked to individual per-
formance, which consists of quantitative and predominantly qualita-
tive criteria. The new approach places greater emphasis on behav-
ioral aspects of performance through a common standard designed
to drive cultural change across the Group. These are:

— Customer and Market Excellence,
— Collaborative Leadership,

— Entrepreneurship,

— Trust.

The new MTB 2016—2018 comprises sustainability (performance and
health) indicators, which are aligned with the Group's external targets:

— Performance indicators:
— Sustainable improvement/stabilization of Return on Equity
(excluding unrealized gains/losses on bonds),
— Compliance with economic capitalization guidance (capital-
ization level and volatility limit);

— Health indicators (aligned with the Renewal Agenda):
— True Customer Centricity,
— Digital by Default,
— Technical Excellence,
— Growth Engines,
— Inclusive Meritocracy (including gender diversity —
women in leadership).
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The pension contributions as a percentage of base salary paid by the
company to the contribution-based pension plan will have a unified
level of 50% of base salary in 2016.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

The remuneration of the Supervisory Board is governed by the Statutes
of Allianz st and the German Stock Corporation Act. The structure of
the Supervisory Board’s remuneration is regularly reviewed with
respect to German, European and international corporate gover-
nance recommendations and regulations.

REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES

— Settotal remuneration at a level aligned with the scale and scope
of the Supervisory Board’s duties, and appropriate to the com-
pany’s activities and business and financial situation.

— Set a remuneration structure that takes into account the indi-
vidual functions and responsibilities of Supervisory Board mem-
bers, such as chair, vice-chair or committee mandates.

— Set a remuneration structure to allow for proper oversight of
business as well as for adequate decisions on executive personnel
and remuneration.

REMUNERATION STRUCTURE AND COMPONENTS

The remuneration structure, which comprises fixed and committee-
related remuneration only, was approved by the Annual General
Meeting 2011 and is laid down in the Statutes of Allianz SE.

The remuneration of a Supervisory Board member consists of a fixed
cash amount paid after the end of each business year for services
rendered over that period. As in 2014, a regular Supervisory Board
member receives a fixed remuneration of € 100 THOU per year. Each
deputy Chairperson receives € 150 THOU and the Chairperson
€200 THOU.

The Chairperson and members of the Supervisory Board committees
receive additional committee-related remuneration. The committee-
related remuneration is as follows:

COMMITTEE-RELATED REMUNERATION

€THOU

Committee Chair Member
Personnel Committee, Standing

Committee, Risk Committee 40 20
Audit Committee 80 40
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Attendance fees and expenses

In addition to the fixed and committee-related remuneration, mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board receive an attendance fee of € 750 for
each Supervisory Board or committee meeting they attend. Should
several meetings be held on the same or consecutive days, the atten-
dance fee will be paid only once. Allianz SE reimburses the members
of the Supervisory Board for their out-of-pocket expenses and the vAT
payable on their Supervisory Board activity. For the performance of
his duties, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board is furthermore

INDIVIDUAL REMUNERATION: 2015 AND 2014

entitled to an office with secretarial support and use of the Allianz
carpool service. In the financial year 2015, Allianz SE reimbursed
expenses totaling € 54,424.

REMUNERATION FOR 2015

The total remuneration for all Supervisory Board members, including
attendance fees, amounted to € 2,021 THOU in 2015 (€ 2,035 THOU in
2014). The following table shows the individual remuneration for 2015
and 2014:

Total might not sum up due to rounding

€THOU
Committees’

Fixed Committee Attendance Total
Members of the Supervisory Board A N P R S remuneration  remuneration fees remuneration
Dr. Helmut Perlet M C C ¢ C 2015 200.0 160.0 6.7 366.7
(Chairman) M C C C 2014 200.0 160.0 8.2 368.2
Dr. Wulf H. Bernotat C M 2015 150.0 100.0 45 254.5
(Deputy Chairman) C M 2014 150.0 100.0 6.0 256.0
Rolf Zimmermann M M 2015 150.0 40.0 5.2 195.2
(Deputy Chairman) M M 2014 150.0 40.0 6.0 196.0
Dante Barban M 2015 100.0 20.0 4.5 124.5
M 2014 100.0 20.0 3.7 123.7
Christine Bosse M M 2015 100.0 40.0 5.2 145.2
M M 2014 100.0 40.0 6.0 146.0
Gabriele Burkhardt-Berg M 2015 100.0 20.0 45 1245
M 2014 100.0 20.0 4.5 124.5
Jean-Jacques Cette M 2015 100.0 40.0 6.0 146.0
M 2014 100.0 40.0 5.2 145.2
Ira Gloe-Semler M 2015 100.0 40.0 6.0 146.0
M 2014 100.0 40.0 5.2 145.2
Franz HeiR2 M 2015 58.3 11.7 2.2 72.2
M 2014 100.0 20.0 4.5 124.5
Prof. Dr.Renate Kécher M M 2015 100.0 20.0 45 124.5
M M 2014 100.0 20.0 4.5 124.5
Jirgen Lawrenz3 M 2015 .7 83 2.2 52.2
2014 - - - -
Jim Hagemann Snabe* M 2015 100.0 40.0 5.2 145.2
M 2014 66.7 26.7 3.8 97.2
Peter Denis Sutherland M M 2015 100.0 20.0 3.7 123.7
M M 2014 100.0 20.0 3.7 123.7
Totals 2015 1,400.0 560.0 60.7 2,020.7
2014 1,408.4 563.4 63.5 2,035.3

Legend: C = Chairperson of the respective committee, M = Member of the respective committee

1 — Abbreviations: A—Audit, N—Nomination, P—Personnel, R—Risk, S—Standing.
2 —Until 31July 2015.
3 —Since 1 August 2015.

4—Since 7 May 2014.
5 —The total remuneration reflects the remuneration of the full Supervisory Board in the respective year.
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Remuneration for mandates in other

Allianz companies and for other functions

All current employee representatives of the Supervisory Board except
for Mrs. Ira Gloe-Semler are employed by Allianz Group companies
and receive a market-aligned remuneration for their services.

Loans to members of the Supervisory Board

On 31 December 2015 there was one outstanding loan granted by
Allianz Group companies to members of the Supervisory Board of
Allianz SE. One member received a mortgage loan of € 80 THOU from
Allianz Bank in 2010. The loan has a duration of ten years and was
granted at a normal market interest rate.
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Business Operations and Markets

Allianz offers a comprehensive range of insurance and asset management
products and services and has 85.4 million insured customers.

Allianz Group structure

Allianz sk and its subsidiaries (the Allianz Group) offer property-
casualty insurance, life/health insurance and asset management
products and services in over 70 countries, with the largest of its
operations in Europe. Allianz SE, the parent company of the Allianz
Group, has its headquarters in Munich, Germany.

The Allianz Group structure reflects both business segments
and geographical regions. The business activities are first organized
by product and type of service, based on how these are strategically

ALLIANZ GROUP STRUCTURE — BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

managed: insurance activities, asset management activities, and cor-
porate and other activities. Due to differences in the nature of prod-
ucts, risks, and capital allocation, insurance activities are further
divided into property-casualty and life/health categories. In accor-
dance with the responsibilities of the Board of Management, each of
the insurance categories is grouped into regional reportable seg-
ments. Corporate and other activities are divided into three different
reportable segments in order to differentiate between the respective
products, risks, and capital allocation. In 2015, the Allianz Group had
16 reportable segments.

PROPERTY-CASUALTY LIFE/HEALTH
— German Speaking Countries
and Central & Eastern Europe
— Western & Southern Europe,
Middle East, Africa, India
— Iberia & Latin America
—Global Insurance Lines & Anglo Markets
— Asia Pacific
—USA

- German Speaking Countries
and Central & Eastern Europe
- Western & Southern Europe,
Middle East, Africa, India
- Iberia & Latin America
—Global Insurance Lines & Anglo Markets
— Asia Pacific
— Allianz Worldwide Partners

ASSET MANAGEMENT CORPORATE AND OTHER
- Holding & Treasury
—Banking

- Alternative Investments

—Asset Management

Insurance operations

We offer a wide range of property-casualty and life/health insurance
products to both retail and corporate customers. We are the leading
property-casualty insurer globally and rank among the top five in the
life/health insurance business. Our key markets, based on premiums,
are Germany, France, Italy, and the United States.

Most of our insurance markets are served by local Allianz com-
panies. However, some business lines —such as Allianz Global Corpo-
rate & Specialty (AGcs), Allianz Worldwide Partners (AwP) and Credit
Insurance — are run globally.
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SELECTED PRODUCT RANGE INSURANCE

PROPERTY-CASUALTY

Retail Clients Corporate Clients

—Motor (liability/own damage) - Property

— Liability — Liability

—Property —Motor fleets

—Accident - Directors’ and Officers’ liability
—Travel and assistance - Credit

—Marine, aviation and transport

LIFE/HEALTH

Retail Clients Corporate Clients

—Endowment - Group life products

- Annuity - Group health and disability products
—Term - Pension products for employees

- Disability

- Investment-oriented products
— Private health insurance
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Asset Management

Our two major investment management businesses, PIMCO and
AllianzGl, operate under Allianz Asset Management (AAM). With
€1,763 BN total assets under management (AuM) (including those of
the Allianz Group), we are one of the largest asset managers in the
world actively managing assets. Our core markets are the United
States, Germany, France, Italy, the United Kingdom and the Asia-
Pacific region.

SELECTED PRODUCT RANGE ASSET MANAGEMENT

RETAIL AND INSTITUTIONAL CLIENTS

Equity — Systematic - Style funds
- Sector/theme funds —Small cap funds
- Region/country funds —Stocks plus

Fixed Income —Money market - Diversified income

- Low duration - Highyield

—Real return —Emerging markets
—Global — Convertible bonds
- Investment grade

Alternatives — Structured products
- Commodity funds

— Certificate funds

—Equity long/short
—Relative value
—Infrastructure debt/

— Currency funds equity
Solutions - Life-cycle concepts — Asset/liability
— Multi-asset solution management
— Variable annuity - Risk management
solutions concepts

54 Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group

Corporate and Other

The Corporate and Other business segment’s activities include the
management and support of the Allianz Group’s businesses through
its central holding functions, as well as Banking and Alternative
Investments.

HOLDING & TREASURY

Holding & Treasury includes the management and support of the
Group’s businesses through its strategy, risk, corporate finance, trea-
sury, financial reporting, controlling, communication, legal, human
resources, technology, and other functions.

BANKING

Our banking operations —with a primary focus on retail clients — sup-
port our insurance business and complement the products we offer
in Germany, Italy, France, the Netherlands, and Bulgaria. As a division
of Allianz Deutschland AG, Oldenburgische Landesbank AG (OLB) is
Allianz’s main own banking product and service provider in Germany.
OLB, Germany's largest private regional bank, covers the northwest of
Germany.

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS

Alternative Investments provides global alternative investment man-
agement services in the private equity, real estate, renewable energy,
and infrastructure sectors, mainly on behalf of our insurance opera-
tions. The Alternative Investments reportable segment also included
a fully consolidated private equity investment, which was sold in
December 2015.
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Worldwide presence and business segments

MARKET POSITIONS OF OUR BUSINESS OPERATIONS'
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1 — This overview is based on our organizational structure in place as of 31 December 2015. For further informa- 3 —Based on foreign competitor market ranking (excluding domestic competitors).

tion, please refer to the Executive Summary of 2015 Results starting on page 69. 4— Source: Own local estimations as of 2014.

2 — Property-Casualty business belongs to Allianz Global Corporate & Specialty.
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Our markets

The following sections provide an overview of our business operations
in our insurance core markets by business division.

INSURANCE CORE MARKETS!

INSURANCE CORE MARKETS

Statutory/

gross premiums Operating Number of
written profit customers
Core markets €MN €MN MN
Germany l. 30,629 2,687 20.6
France I 12,383 1,015 5.6
Italy 1. 16,691 1,343 7.4
United States 10,475 841 1.2

Market position M Property-Casualty Life/Health

Market position by gross premiums written:
I Position 1 II. Position2to 5 lll. Position 6 to 10 IV. Notamong the top 10

We offer our customers in Germany a full range of insurance and
financial services through Allianz Deutschland AG. Our products are
mainly provided by Allianz Versicherungs-AG (Allianz Sach), Allianz
Lebensversicherungs-AG (Allianz Leben) and Allianz Private Kranken-
versicherungs-AG (Allianz Private Kranken). They are distributed
through a broad network of distribution channels, such as agencies,
brokers and direct, with a strong focus on our tied-agents network.
Here, Allianz Beratungs- und Vertriebs-AG serves as our distribution
company.

As the market leader in the German property-casualty market,
we provide our products and services to retail and commercial cus-
tomers. For retail customers the product world of Allianz became
more digital with the launch of an online configuration tool for the
modular product “Privatschutz” on Allianz.de. For purely direct cus-
tomers the product range of AllSecur was broadened to liability and
household. In July 2015, a new modular commercial product called
“Firmenkonzept” — which is sold via tied agents — was successfully
launched. The product combines property, liability and legal protec-
tion insurance and targets small and medium-sized companies.

Our life insurance business is active in retail and commercial
markets and provides a comprehensive range of products. The main
coverage offered includes annuity, endowment, term, disability, and
long-term care insurance. In 2015, Komfort Dynamik — a new product
that combines traditional guarantees with a stronger upside potential
through a higher share of equity investment —was launched. More

1 — The following sections do not cover our global insurance lines, e.g. Allianz Global Corporate & Specialty,
our credit insurer Euler Hermes, or Allianz Worldwide Partners, even if those entities also operate in the
respective market.
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than 9,000 products have been sold by year-end 2015. Overall, less
than one third of total new business in life came from traditional
products.

Through Allianz Private Kranken (APkv) we provide a wide range
of health insurance products, including full private health care cover-
age, supplementary health and long-term care insurance, as well as
foreign travel medical insurance. In 2015, we expanded our product
portfolio in comprehensive health insurance with the launch of a new
tariff (AktiMed9oP) and an additional module for fitness-oriented
customers. Also, within the Allianz digitalization strategy, APKvV
established a number of digital services and processes, such as the
photo app for claims, which enables customers to interact more
easily and efficiently in all matters of health insurance.

Our Italian insurance entity Allianz Italy has a very strong multi-
channel footprint and is the digital leader in the Italian market. We
are strongly dedicated to the agent channel, and we also offer our
products through Genialloyd — the leading company in the Italian
direct business —, the broker channel, Allianz Bank Financial Advi-
sors S.p.A., and bancassurance, with UniCredit as our main distribu-
tion partner.

In our property-casualty business, Allianz Italy again significantly
outperformed the market in terms of premium growth and profit-
ability, increased our market share for the fourth consecutive year,
and maintained a superior profitability with a combined ratio about
10 percentage points better than the rest of the market.

Our agent network was key to this performance. In 2015, we com-
pleted the integration of the insurance business of UnipolSai Assi-
curazioni S.p.A., which we acquired in 2014, including its 725 agencies.
We also completed the introduction in the network of the common
Digital Agency platform, which benefits from simple, mobile and
paperless processes that drastically reduce administrative tasks for
both the agents and our back offices. Another innovation for our agent
network was the introduction of the Allianz1 Business modular offer
for small enterprises, complementing the Allianz1 retail offer that we
introduced in 2014 and which has since reached 240,000 contracts.

In direct, Genialloyd premiums were up by 9.0%, outperforming
a contracting market. Property-casualty bancassurance premiums
also grew strongly, especially thanks to retail motor products distrib-
uted through the Italian branches of UniCredit.

Allianz Italy has also received strong market recognition with
awards from primary institutions such as “MilanoFinanza” (Allianz1
Business, Digital Agency, and Genialloyd) and “Istituto Tedesco di
Qualita e Finanza” (Best Motor insurer in terms of quality for Agents
and the Direct channel).
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In our life business, we had another year of strong premium vol-
umes, particularly supported by bancassurance and our personal
financial advisor network. Sales of low-capital-consuming unit-
linked products accounted for 81% of new business, compared to an
estimated market average of around 41 %.

The corporate structure in Italy was also streamlined in 2015
through the following transactions: We acquired the outstanding 50 %
stake of Antoniana Veneta Popolare Vita, the Life Bancassurance joint
venture with Banca Monte Paschi di Siena, which had been held by the
partner bank. We also merged ACIF S.p.A., the financial holding com-
pany, into Allianz S.p.A. to simplify corporate governance. At the same
time we acquired the minority shareholdings of Allianz S.p.A. held by
Allianz Subalpina Holding S.p.A. and Lloyd Adriatico Holding S.p.A.
Allianz S.p.A. is thus now fully owned by the Allianz Group.

Allianz France S.A. is a major provider of insurance and financial ser-
vices in the French retail and commercial markets, offering a broad
range of property-casualty and life/health products for individuals
and corporate customers. We distribute these offerings mostly via
agents, life and health consultants, brokers and independent finan-
cial advisors, as well as selected external partners. In addition, our
customers can research and buy products online — either through
‘eAllianz’ or via our direct sales channel ‘AllSecur’. In 2015 a new stra-
tegic plan ‘Innovation & Trust’ was launched for 2020. Capitalizing on
past successes such as the partnership with Drivy (car sharing),
Allianz France has given priority to fostering innovation. Examples
include a crowdfunding equity fund in partnership with SmartAngels,
a Pay As You Drive offer with TomTom as the first insurer in the French
market, as well as hackathons and a start-up accelerator.

Since local regulatory changes regarding cancellation rules were
introduced in 2014, the French retail property-casualty market has
seen higher customer churn. However, our constant focus on innova-
tive solutions, such as fast quotes, has allowed us to grow our cus-
tomer base, for example in motor insurance. Furthermore, we con-
tinue to be one of the leaders in the midcorp market (ranked as third
in midcorp and second in commercial property-casualty insurance).

With regards to the life market in France, we have responded to
the needs of our clients with a range of traditional and unit-linked
products in both group and individual business, combining financial
strength with the opportunity for more attractive yields. Evidence of
the success of this strategy is the increase in the unit-linked proportion
of our business mix from 39% in 2014 to 48 % in 2015.

We also hold a strong position in the health market, often com-
bining elements of life, health and disability insurance as compre-
hensive solutions for individual and commercial customers.

Our retail insurance activities are also complemented by Allianz
‘Patrimoine’, which allows us to offer one-stop solutions, in particular
for our high-net-worth individual life customers.
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Our property-casualty insurance business in the United States was
primarily conducted through Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company
(FFIC) until April 2015. In January 2015, our property-casualty insur-
ance business in the United States was realigned. The reorganization
comprised the integration of Fireman'’s Fund Insurance Company’s
commercial business into Allianz Global Corporate & Specialty North
America (AGCS NA), the sale of the personal insurance business to the
global insurance company ACE, as well as the internal transfer of the
discontinued run-off business through a reinsurance agreement
within the Allianz Group. The sale, which took place by means of a
renewal rights arrangement, received regulatory approval from the
California Department of Insurance in March 2015 and closed in April
2015. We therefore focus on the Life business within this section. Our
life and annuity business is managed through Allianz Life Insurance
Company of North America (Allianz Life).

Our life and annuity business primarily underwrites fixed-index
and variable annuities and fixed-index universal life insurance prod-
ucts—all of which are sold through independent distribution channels,
as well as large financial institutions such as banks and wire houses.

Despite a competitive market environment in 2015, we main-
tained our position as the market leader in the fixed-index annuity
market as a result of an innovative index strategy introduced in 2014
and higher penetration into the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) licensed broker-dealer channel. Despite the modest interest
rate increase in December 2015, we believe the Federal Reserve is
likely to continue to raise interest rates very cautiously — leading to
only modest increases in interest yields in 2016. Although this low
interest rate environment remains challenging, we actively manage
our product pricing strategy to maintain profitability.
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Strategy and Steering

As we celebrate 125 years of Allianz, we act from a position of strength. We will
continue to protect the pillars of our success: our integrity, financial strength,
technical competence, operational excellence, and talent base. However, our
world and our industry are changing fast and fundamentally, spurring us to

renew our way of doing business.

Building on our strong foundations, we will reinforce our leading position by
focusing our efforts in five fields of action: putting our customers at the heart of
everything we do; becoming Digital by Default, everywhere; employing Technical
Excellence even more consistently; creating new Growth Engines; and fostering
a renewed corporate culture of Inclusive Meritocracy.

Operating environment

Geopolitical instability, demographic and societal shifts, persistently
low interest rates — particularly in Europe — and uncertain economic
outlooks are putting severe strains on society and the global economy.
Meanwhile, digitalization is transforming economies and economics
atincreasing speed, enabling new, easy-to-use, customized offerings
and fundamentally altering customer expectations.

Thriving in such an environment puts high demands on those
aspiring to be tomorrow’s leading players, but it also holds huge
opportunities for those that manage to truly adapt to these new real-
ities. These leaders will adapt by: carefully balancing shock resilience
with capital efficiency, establishing commanding market positions
and realizing visible benefits from skills and scale, leveraging digital
to become customer-centric and agile, and relentlessly lifting pro-
ductivity reserves in the capital, cost, and revenue base.

The Renewal Agenda

Reinforcing our leadership position means building on our existing
strengths while acting decisively where the new environment
requires step change. Since spring 2015, we have been mobilizing
management and employees globally to jointly develop our program
for the years to come in a highly inclusive and agile process. We
intend to leverage the best of Allianz to produce true scale advan-
tages and apply our strongest skills and assets even more systemati-
cally, consistently, and ubiquitously. Five mutually reinforcing levers
will help us to further expand our competitive advantage:
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True Customer Centricity: Achieving True Customer Centricity is at
the core of our agenda. Everything we do will only translate into suc-
cess if our clients trust us fully and experience superior value when-
ever dealing with us. By making superior customer experience the top
priority for all our actions, we strive to significantly increase custom-
er loyalty in all our entities. For instance, systematic customer experi-
ence management will help us identify and enhance drivers of satis-
faction along the customer journeys. “Fast” product and service
solutions —such as Fast Quote/Fast Offer —will provide an immediate
response experience to customers in all our local entities. We will
measure progress against clear targets on Net Promoter Score (NPS),
which are firmly embedded into our planning process and incentives.

Digital by Default: Building further on our existing leading digital
assets and common Group platforms, we strive to become Digital by
Default everywhere. Based on a deep understanding of customer
needs, we will roll out new digital products, processes and commu-
nication globally. This will help increase both the convenience we
offer our customers and our productivity.

Technical Excellence: In Property-Casualty, we create superior mar-
gins, innovation, and growth by having the best technical talent and
consistently applying state-of-the-art skills. We will invest further in
advanced analytics, enabling superior risk selection, pricing, and
claims management practices. Within Life/Health, we will enhance
margins and reduce capital intensity through further shifting our
new business towards unit-linked and capital-efficient products,
increasing the share of protection & health business and actively
managing our in-force business. Our investment management will
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continue to capture economies of scale and skills, especially in asset-
liability management processes and by pooling our investment
management infrastructure, and will broaden the alternative asset
allocation.

Growth Engines: We systematically exploit new sources for profitable
growth across regions, business segments, and sales channels. This
means we will both consolidate existing leadership positions in
mature markets and secure our future potential in growth markets
with dedicated strategies, including new digital distribution models
and regional partnerships. We will enhance our product range by
replicating proven products, adding services, and driving innova-
tions, for example in Health insurance.

Inclusive Meritocracy: We reinforce a corporate culture where both
people and performance matter. The Renewal Agenda implies sig-
nificant change for all our employees, including an increased degree
of agility and flexibility. Consequently, collaborative leadership,
excellence with customers and markets, entrepreneurship, and trust
are the four cornerstones of our adjusted global management incen-
tive model. We remain committed to further strengthen diversity at
Allianz. We will measure progress in the company towards incorpo-
rating our renewed leadership principles by a newly defined Inclusive
Meritocracy Index (1mix), based on global employee feedback.

We will continuously advance our business model and set-up to sus-
tainably ensure these five levers have the greatest impact. For example,
we will further strengthen our regional platforms to capture true
scale benefits, not only in terms of mere efficiency gains but also cus-
tomer service, best practice capabilities, and digital transformation.

In addition, we will move further towards greater capital alloca-
tion discipline to free up significant resources for stronger value
creation. This means we will optimize our businesses for capital pro-
ductivity (return on equity) and reduced capital intensity (Solvency It
sensitivity) and capitalize our local entities towards a more efficient
capital base. On this base, we will ensure that capital is available and
fungible within the Group and allocated appropriately to finance
growth initiatives.
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Ensuring successful execution

To enable successful execution of these policies throughout the
Allianz Group, we will systematically address the change process,
governance, and role of the corporate center:

— We will ensure mobilization of the entire global senior leader-
ship team across local entities, functions, and lines of business
in a new, horizontal change process. While the Board members
of Allianz SE commit as sponsors of the Renewal Agenda topics,
market experts and practitioners from our businesses will be
driving solutions development and implementation in agile
teams throughout the Group.

— We will enhance governance to even better facilitate capturing
skill and scale benefits. We will also promote convergence of
business models and their execution globally. Aligned incentives
will now give more weight to local management’s contribution
to Group value, beyond local business requirements.

— Toincrease agility and market focus of the corporate center, we
will bring top leaders from our strongest businesses into the
Group center while bringing functional experts from the Holding
into the markets. We will continue to streamline our holding
functions to put more focus on customer and market success
and the implementation of the Renewal Agenda.

We have defined clear ambitions for 2018. With regard to financial
performance, we strive for a return on equity (excluding unrealized
gains/losses on bonds net of shadow DAC) of 13 %, while growing our
earnings per share at a compound annual growth rate of 5%. To
ensure sustainability of performance, we have set ourselves health
targets for customer loyalty and employee engagement. We expect at
least 75 % of our businesses to be or become rated by their customers
as Loyalty Leader or above market in terms of NPs. At the same time,
we aim to increase our IMIX from 68 % to 72 %.

Building on our strong heritage, we will move forward with this
ambitious program to reinforce Allianz's leadership position for the
years to come.
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Our steering

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Allianz sk has a divisional Board structure that is split into functional
and business responsibilities. The business-related divisions reflect

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND THEIR RESPONSIBILITIES IN 2015

our business segments Property-Casualty, Life/Health, Asset Manage-
ment, and Corporate and Other and were overseen by six Board
members (five since 1 September 2015). The remaining four divisions
(i.e. Chairman of the Board of Management, Finance, Investments and
Operations) focus on Group functions, along with business-related
responsibilities.

BOARD MEMBERS RESPONSIBILITIES

Oliver Bite

Michael Diekmann

Chairman of the Board of Management

Global Property-Casualty

Sergio Balbinot
Manuel Bauer
Dr. Helga Jung

Dr. Christof Mascher

Jay Ralph

Chairman of the Board of Management

Insurance Western & Southern Europe, Insurance Middle East, Africa, India
Insurance Growth Markets

Insurance Iberia & Latin America, Legal & Compliance, Mergers & Acquisitions
Operations, Allianz Worldwide Partners

Asset Management, us Life Insurance

Dr. Axel Theis
Dr. Dieter Wemmer Finance, Controlling, Risk
Dr.Werner Zedelius

Dr.Maximilian Zimmerer

Global Insurance Lines & Anglo Markets, Global Property-Casualty

Insurance German Speaking Countries, Insurance Central & Eastern Europe
Investments, Global Life/Health, Insurance Asia Pacific

TARGET SETTING AND MONITORING

The Allianz Group steers its operating entities and business seg-
ments via an integrated management and control process. This starts
with the definition of a business-specific strategy and goals, which
are discussed and agreed upon between the Holding and operating
entities. According to this strategy, a three-year plan is prepared by
the operating entities and aggregated to form the financial plans for
the business divisions and the Allianz Group. This plan also forms the
basis for our capital management. The Supervisory Board then
approves the plan and sets corresponding targets for the Board of
Management. The performance-based remuneration of the Board of
Management is linked to short-, mid-, and long-term targets to
ensure effectiveness and emphasize sustainability. For further details
about the remuneration structure, including target setting and per-
formance assessment, please refer to the Remuneration Report start-
ingon (3)page 37.

We continuously monitor our business performance against
these targets through monthly reviews to ensure that appropriate
measures can be taken in the event of negative developments. During
these reviews, we monitor key operational and financial metrics.
Operating profit and net income are the main financial performance
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indicators across all business segments for the Allianz Group. In
addition, we also use segment-specific figures such as the combined
ratio for Property-Casualty, in-force and new business margins as
well as margin on reserves for Life/Health, and the cost-income ratio
for Asset Management. Furthermore, we use Return on Risk Capital
(RORC) for new business steering purposes in the Property-Casualty
and Life/Health business segments. For a comprehensive view of our
business segment performance, please refer to the Management Dis-
cussion and Analysis starting on (%) page 67.

Besides performance steering, we also have a risk steering pro-
cess in place, which is described in the Risk and Opportunity Report
starting on (3) page 112.

Non-financial key performance indicators (kpis) are mainly
used for the sustainability assessment of the mid-term bonus. Under
the category “partner of choice” the following kpis are considered:
Allianz Engagement Survey and Nps results, brand performance
(measured by the Funnel Performance Index), diversity development,
organizational transparency (as measured by the Transparency
International Corporate Reporting ranking) and sustainable develop-
ment (as measured by widely-recognized indices and rankings).
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Progress in Sustainable Development

Sustainable development means creating long-term economic value
with a forward-thinking approach to corporate governance, environ-
mental stewardship, and social responsibility. This is fundamental to
our day-to-day insurance and asset management business, as we
have to deliver on our promises to customers not only today, but also
in 20 or 30 years.

We work with different stakeholder groups to identify what is
materially important for sustainable development. Our material
issues are those deemed to be crucial for business success while also
important to our stakeholders.

The following pages highlight some of our key sustainability
approaches and major developments in 2015. The Allianz Group Sus-
tainability Report, with the full details of our sustainability strategy,
approach and progress, is available on our sustainability website.!

Sustainability management
and governance

The responsibilities of our Group-level sustainability management
include managing the strategic framework for Group-wide sustain-
ability activities, developing and introducing relevant policies, and
supporting operating entities in integrating the Group’s strategic
approach and policies.

The highest governing body for sustainability-related issues is
the environmental, social and governance (EsG) Board, which was
established in 2012. It consists of three Allianz St Board members who
meet quarterly. The ESG Board is responsible for integrating ESG into
all business lines and core processes that deal with insurance and
investment decisions. It also leads associated stakeholder engage-
ment.

During 2015, we focused on further embedding sustainability
into our core business. We did this through internal debate, stake-
holder engagement, and being an incubator for new business oppor-
tunities and pilot projects.

ESG IN INSURANCE AND INVESTMENTS

The approach we take to ESG issues is not a sustainability “add-on”;
it is part of everyday decision-making. As an insurer, we carefully
manage ESG risks in underwriting. As an investor of our proprietary
assets, we incorporate ESG factors into our investment process. And as
an asset manager of third-party assets, we systematically integrate the
evaluation of ESG risk and opportunities into our investment decisions.

1 —www.allianz.com/sustainability
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At the core, ESG integration into our insurance business and our
direct investments of proprietary assets is carried out by a global EsG
screening process. We have identified 13 sensitive business sectors?
where we see significant risks across regions and lines of business. We
identify these sectors through dialogue with non-governmental orga-
nizations (NGOs) and ongoing internal stakeholder engagement. For
each sector, guidelines highlight the key ESG issues to be considered.

In 2015, we reviewed our Weapons and Hydropower guidelines
according to new best-practice information including international
standards, frameworks and guidelines. Our intention is that no busi-
ness is excluded by default, with a few exceptions such as our coal
divestments of proprietary assets (for more information please refer
to the section Responsible Investor). Instead, each transaction is
assessed on a case-by-case basis. Through this process we aim to
better understand the risks associated with an insurance or invest-
ment transaction, and to take all necessary measures to address and
mitigate these risks.

During 2015, 405 transactions (2014: 150 transactions)? for our
insurance and investment business were assessed for ESG consider-
ations against our sensitive business guidelines. Of these, 47 % were
approved, 50% were conditionally approved and 3% rejected.

Sustainable insurer

ESG IN UNDERWRITING

As an insurer and risk consultant, we mostly face EsG risks indirectly
due to the risks we accept for our insurance clients. Prudent manage-
ment of ESG issues represents a major opportunity to reduce risks in
underwriting for ourselves and our customers.

Our guidelines on sensitive business apply to our entire insur-
ance business globally, whether we act as lead insurer or as part of a
panel. A dedicated center of competence within the underwriting
division of Allianz Global Corporate & Specialty offers ESG support to
property and casualty insurance transactions. During 2015, we deliv-
ered over 16 separate training sessions to different underwriters of
various specialties and geographic responsibilities. In 2016, we will
look to develop our training concept further and integrate it into our
underwriting training academies.

We are a signatory to the Principles for Sustainable Insurance
(ps1) of the United Nations Environment Programme Finance Initia-
tive. As a signatory to the ps, Allianz is required to make an annual
disclosure on progress. In 2015, as part of a ps1 project, our subsidiary

2 —Agriculture, animal testing, animal welfare, betting and gambling, clinical trials, defense, human rights,
hydro-electric power, infrastructure, mining, nuclear energy, oil and gas, and the sex industry.
3 —Increase due to greater awareness and integration of process from March 2015.
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Euler Hermes supported a project with other insurance industry
partners examining the need for ESG principles in surety bond under-
writing of infrastructure.

The continued growth of the sustainable products market is
proof that sustainable innovation is becoming an increasingly
important business opportunity. Our offerings include insurance for
large-scale renewable-energy projects for business customers and
solutions promoting energy-efficiency at home and on the move for
retail customers.

Our own revenues generated by products such as our mileage-
based tariffs, green life insurance, renewable energy, infrastructure,
and crop protection products amounted to more than € 1.1 BN in 2015.

MICROINSURANCE

Besides our green solutions, we also provide products that improve
people’s lives. As a leader in the microinsurance sector, we already
provide 58.6 million low-income people in Asia, Africa and Latin
America with affordable insurance solutions.

In 2015, we broke through the 50-million mark for customers with
microinsurance policies, with 2015 revenues standing at € 135 MN.
Thatis around € 2.30 premium per person per year. Over 99 % of these
customers still only hold one insurance policy, mostly life insurance.

The microinsurance market has a potential of 2.7 billion custom-
ers. We see this business expanding exponentially along with the
global middle class, which is estimated to grow to around 5 billion by
2030, with growth mostly in our primary microinsurance markets of
Asia, South America, and Africa.

Responsible investor

For Allianz, responsible investment means systematically integrating
ESG factors into our investment decisions. Our role as an investor is
two-fold: Firstly, we invest our proprietary assets, which include pre-
miums collected from our insurance customers. Secondly, in our
third-party asset management business, we invest on behalf of cus-
tomers by tailoring products and solutions to best meet their needs.

As one of the world’s largest asset managers and as an institu-
tional investor, we take environmental and social risks seriously and
also seize investment opportunities arising in this area. Allianz SE, as
an asset owner, and our third-party asset managers Allianz Global
Investors (AllianzGr) and piMco are all individual signatories to the
United Nations-supported Principles for Responsible Investment
(PRI).

ESG IN OUR OWN INVESTMENTS

Allianz invests more than € 630 BN, mainly the premiums we collect
from the customers we insure, in a wide range of asset classes. We are
a signatory to the United Nations-supported PrI. Based on these prin-
ciples we have implemented and are further developing a number of
processes to systematically integrate ESG issues across different
assets.
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The EsG functional rule for investments is the foundation of our
ESG integration into investments. It binds all asset managers acting
on behalf of Allianz to integrate ESG into their investment process and
is closely monitored by Allianz Investment Management.

For our direct investments, such as real estate, infrastructure,
and private equity, ESG is integrated through our overarching ESG
screening process.

In 2015, we launched a project to strengthen and systemize the
integration of ESG into fixed-income securities and corporate equities,
which represent over 90% of our assets. We analyzed our portfolio
along 37 key EsG issues —such as greenhouse gas emissions and labor
management — based on the information provided by the rating
agency MSCI ESG Research. This transparency on ESG across the entire
investment portfolio enabled a more targeted management of risks
and opportunities.

We exclude certain sectors from our investments. We apply
exclusion criteria, restricting investments in companies producing
or associated with banned weapons! such as anti-personnel land-
mines, cluster munitions, and biological, chemical, and toxic weap-
ons. Furthermore, in November 2015, we decided to stop financing
coal-based business models. This means Allianz will no longer invest
proprietary assets in companies that derive more than 30 % of revenue
from coal mining or generate over 30% of energy from burning coal.
Equities amounting to € 225 MN will be divested by March 2016, while
bonds amounting to € 3.9 BN will be maturing.

As part of our ESG strategy, we also consider it our responsibility
to address systematic hurdles to ESG integration with peers, regula-
tors, and other market participants, as well as to promote sustainable
business practices within the companies we invest in.

As an institutional investor, we can play a key role in building a
low-carbon economy. By investing our proprietary assets in energy-
efficient real estate and renewable energy, we help reduce climate
emissions and create economic growth. Allianz Capital Partners
(Acp) is our in-house investment platform for alternative invest-
ments, with a growing portfolio of wind energy and solar power. Its
total investment in renewable energy by the end of 2015 was over
€2.5 BN (compared to € 2.0 BN in 2014), covering 60 wind farms and
7 solar parks in France, Germany, Italy, Sweden, and — new in 2015 -
Austria, Finland, and the United States. AcP’s wind and solar portfolio
generates sufficient renewable energy to supply over 800,000 house-
holds.

1 — Weapons in scope of the following international conventions:
— Ottawa Convention (anti-personnel landmines),
— Convention on Cluster Munitions (cluster ammunition/bomb; Oslo Process),
Biological and Toxin Weapons Convention (biological weapons),
— Chemical Weapons Convention (chemical weapons).
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ESG IN THIRD-PARTY ASSET MANAGEMENT

Allianz is one of the world’s largest asset managers. We run the asset
management business out of two investment management entities:
AllianzGrt and piMco, which operate under the Allianz Asset Manage-
ment holding (AAM). In addition to managing the majority of our
proprietary assets, AllianzGi and PIMCO are responsible for our third-
party asset management business.

Despite different regional focuses and investment strategies,
embedding ESG criteria into asset management is common practice
at Allianzar and piMco and they are both signatories to the PRI.

Furthermore, they offer a range of Sustainable and Responsible
Investment (SRI) products and services which provide customers
with new choices that deliver financial, social, and environmental
returns, using strategies such as the best-in-class approach, impact
investing, or negative screening. At the end of 2015, total skt managed
by AAM amounted to € 103 BN (2014: € 117 BN), corresponding to 6 % of
AAM's total assets under management. The largest share of AAM’s
total SRI assets under management is managed by PiMcO, which
totaled € 82 BN (2014: € 95 BN). In addition, AllianzGl managed € 21 BN
(2014: € 22 BN) of SRI investments.

Trusted company

Our customers’ needs and how we meet them are central to our
ambition to keep being part of the strongest financial community,
and to our aim of being the most trusted partner within our core busi-
ness of insurance and investments. As part of this, our customers
rightly expect that their personal information will be treated with
utmost care.

As we move towards a culture of Digital by Default, we remain
committed to protecting customer privacy and data security. We
know that consumers are increasingly basing their loyalty around
whether a business offers sustainable solutions that deliver both
financial and societal value. To this end, our range of responsible
products continues to grow, including insurance products that aim
to reward low-carbon lifestyles and affordable microinsurance for
individuals and small businesses around the world.

CUSTOMER CENTRICITY

Putting True Customer Centricity at the core of our Renewal Agenda
means providing a superior customer experience. By leveraging digi-
tal technology, we can provide our customers with convenient access
to Allianz at any time, creating easy, modular, and transparent offers
with the flexibility for customization. For example, through our inno-
vative Fast Quote approach, Allianz customers can get an insurance
offer simply and quickly over the internet by providing only few data
and either buy directly online or finalize their purchase at an agency.
Fast Quote solutions are now deployed in 15 countries, with more
markets to come.

Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group

The next step is to scale up the combination of Fast Quote technol-
ogywith modular offers like “Allianz1”: a product innovation launched
in Italy in 2014, providing retail customers with a set of 13 optional
modules for tailored insurance cover in line with personal needs and
budgets. A modular offer for small and medium enterprises was
launched at the end of 2015. Another approach to creating distinctive
additional value and a caring customer experience is the integration
of our global assistance services into our insurance products — for
example, of roadside assistance into motor insurance.

To continuously measure and benchmark our performance on
customer centricity, we use key feedback tools such as the Net Pro-
moter Score (NPS). NPS measures our customers’ willingness to re-
commend Allianz and is broadly established as our key global metric
for customer loyalty. Top-down NPps is conducted regularly according
to global cross-industry standards and allows benchmarking against
competitors in the respective markets. In 2015, 50% of all businesses
measured significantly outperformed their local peer average or even
achieved loyalty leadership in their market.

To steadily improve the satisfaction of our customers, we addi-
tionally apply our “Customer Experience Management” methodology:
This involves asking our customers for direct feedback regarding
their experience with Allianz. Our methodology helps us to identify key
areas for improvement and to improve customer satisfaction along
the entire customer journey, for example in sales and claims handling.

As we see a clear correlation of Nps performance with sustain-
able growth, a superior customer experience is our top priority. We
set clear customer-oriented targets, which are hardwired into our
culture, planning, processes, and incentives.

CUSTOMER BASE

The overall number of customers insured by Allianz worldwide grew
from 85 million in 2014 to 85.4 million in 2015.

CUSTOMERS BY REGION/COUNTRY'

as of 31 December 2015 [31 December 2014] in %

Anglo Markets [8.0]

USA 1.4[1.4]
Germany [23.9]
\
Rest of German Speaking
Countries [2.6]
Growth Markets [30.6] France 6.5[6.8]
Italy [7.9]
Rest of Europe &
Latin America [18.8]

1 — Customer figures exclude clients in microinsurance, pension funds, and all Global Lines. For more infor-
mation on our customer base, please refer to page 55.
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ALLIANZ — ONE OF THE WORLD'S STRONGEST BRANDS
The brand Allianz' plays a key role in driving sustainable growth. It
fosters close bonds with our customers, which are even more impor-
tant in a digital context. In turn, this helps us to build sustainable
relationships: Trust in the name Allianz helps us to attract new cus-
tomers, engage with our products and services, and maintain cus-
tomer loyalty in the long term.

In 2015, Allianz-branded revenues stood at 84% (2014: 83 %) of
total revenues. Our “one-brand” strategy leaves room for renowned
specialty brands such as piMco and Euler Hermes, which use Allianz
as their reference. Our strong brand performance was again acknowl-
edged in the annual 100 Best Global Brands Ranking from Interbrand:
In 2015, our brand value increased by 10% to USD 8.5 BN (2014: USD 7.7 BN)
and has more than doubled compared to 2007 when we first entered
the ranking. According to Interbrand, Allianz now ranks 54t among
the world’s top 100 brands.

Corporate responsibility is a vital component in our established
sports and culture partnerships strategy — be it our commitment to
the Paralympic Movement around the topics of diversity and inclu-
sion or our Road Safety program, with 41 local entities participating
in 2015. Our annual youth programs inspire and unite young genera-
tions around one common passion — for example, the Allianz Junior
Football Camp where teens from all over the world apply to train with
EC Bayern Miinchen youth coaches and meet theiridols, or the Allianz
Junior Music Camp where star pianist Lang Lang and his Lang Lang
International Music Foundation encourage the next generation of
classical musicians.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

As a business dealing with risks, managing our environmental
impact has always been very important to us. Our ESG materiality
assessment continues to show that climate change is a key environ-
mental risk and opportunity. For this reason, we prioritize carbon
reduction also in our own activities to reduce the environmental foot-
print of our operations.

Our strategic approach to reducing our carbon footprint is three-
fold: avoid and reduce our emissions, substitute with lower-carbon
alternatives, and offset our remaining emissions through direct
investments in high-quality carbon reduction projects.

1 —Our Allianz trademark is registered and protected worldwide, as are our domains. Furthermore, we have
registered our corporate design and brand claim “Allianz. With you from A—Z." in the relevant countries
worldwide.
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BREAKDOWN OF CO2 EMISSIONS!

%

as of 31 December 2015 2015
Energy 55.1
Travel 39.3
Paper 3.7
Water 0.2
Waste 1.7

1 — KPMG Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft AG has provided limited assurance on the 2015 environmental
performance information. For further information, please refer to www.allianz.com/sustainability.

Since over 98% of our emissions comes from energy consumption,
travel, and paper use, the focus of our carbon reduction activities is
in these areas. We had set ourselves a target to reduce our carbon
emissions per employee by 35% by 2015 (against a 2006 baseline) and
toreduce the energy consumption per employee by 10% (against a 2010
baseline). We achieved both targets ahead of time and our final per-
formance in the target year 2015 was at 43.3% CO2 and 25.7 % energy
reduction.

We have been a carbon-neutral company since 2012 and in 2015
301,339 credits were offset from our own projects, each one account-
ing for one metric ton of carbon.

ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT'!

as of 31 December 2015 20142 20132
Total emissions in metric

tons co,e 301,339 300,537 333,509
Per employee emissions in metric

tons coze 2.12 2.12 2.37
Total energy consumption inay 2,577,050 2,516,470 2,850,903
thereof: Renewables in% 427 41.6 42.1
Total travel - plane, train, car in TKM 908,442 901,101 906,430
Total paper consumption in metric

tons 16,941 17,112 17,656

1 —KPMG Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft AG has provided limited assurance on the 2015 environmental
performance information. For further information, please refer to www.allianz.com/sustainability.
2—2013 and 2014 figures were adjusted for a material divestment in 2015.

COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT

Our risk management framework includes compliance risks. A com-
pliance management system helps us to ensure compliance with
internationally recognized laws, rules, and regulations, while addi-
tional riskidentification exercises help us to continually improve our
approach. We take a proactive stance, working with organizations
such as the German Institute for Compliance and the Global Insur-
ance Chief Compliance Officers Forum to enhance understanding of
compliance issues and share best practice.


www.allianz.com/sustainability
www.allianz.com/sustainability
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To ensure continuous improvement, all compliance risks are
monitored and reported within the Group. Our compliance quality
assurance program comprises self-assessments, on-site reviews and
local spot checks, and our intranet-based compliance case reporting
tool provides Group-wide oversight by passing information to the
audit and integrity committees.

Committed corporate citizen

As a global company with a presence in more than 70 countries, we
believe that acting as a responsible corporate citizen is good for soci-
ety and good for business. By helping to build stronger and more
inclusive communities, we are supporting the development of a more
stable economic landscape. This, in turn, ensures resilient markets
for our products and services.

Much of our time and skill is dedicated to empowering the next
generation. That is why we have developed Future Generation, a
framework to support children, adolescents and young adults on a
range of issues. This is also why we continue to fund sos Children’s
Villages, an organization that provides orphaned and abandoned
children in 125 countries with loving family homes. We support short-
term emergency measures and long-term help for children through
local activities as well as advocacy at a global level. In 2015, we estab-
lished local partnerships with sos villages in France, Romania, India,
and Germany.

With our collective financial and business skills, we assist char-
itable organizations through employee volunteering. This helps to
build skills and motivation that can be brought back into the work-
place.In 2015, we launched ACT!, an online marketplace for employee
volunteering, starting with a pilot in Germany. The marketplace fea-
tures Allianz projects and moreover, employees can promote their
own volunteering activities.

In 2015, corporate giving totaled € 23 MN (compared to € 21 MN in
2014).!

POLITICAL ENGAGEMENT

In 2015, Allianz SE merged its regulatory and political departments to
form a Group center for Regulatory and Public Policy Affairs. It acts as
a global center of competence for all our subsidiaries and its remit is
to develop regulatory and political strategy, coordinate our engage-
ments, and analyze current and emerging issues and our positions
on them. Two key lobbying issues in 2015 were:

1 —KPMG Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft AG has provided limited assurance on the 2015 corporate giving
information. For further information, please refer to www.allianz.com/sustainability.
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— Digitalization and data security: We support the European Com-
mission’s digital agenda to foster innovation, economic growth,
and progress. We are actively contributing to public discussions
on these issues, with a special focus on the practicability of reg-
ulation for the Group.

— Consumer protection: As part of our commitment to customer
privacy and security, we support promoting transparency, sim-
plicity, and fairness in the market for consumer financial prod-
ucts and services. We contributed to the E.U. green paper on Retail
Financial Services and Insurance. This paper addresses some of
the obstacles consumers face when offering or purchasing
financial services.

Attractive employer

Globally, we employ 142,459 people in nearly 70 countries. Our busi-
ness strategy requires us to have the best people in place in order to
deliver success today and over the long term. We also apply a consis-
tent approach to human resources (HR) management across the
Group and we do this through strategic HR frameworks, principles,
and tools. This includes globally consistent people attributes along
the value chain — throughout an employee’s career at Allianz.

TALENT MANAGEMENT

To ensure the quality and performance of our employees, we focus on
managing talent and careers, developing technical and leadership
skills, and meeting future workforce needs. We work to create a sus-
tainable performance culture which empowers individuals to realize
their full potential through a wide range of learning and development
opportunities. In this way, we enhance the skills base of our Group
and build employee loyalty. We place a strong emphasis on the devel-
opment of both technical expertise and leadership skills across all
business functions as key drivers for sustainable and profitable
growth.

TRAINING KEY FIGURES'

2014 2013
Total expenses in training €MN 91 86
Training expenses per employee € 668 629
Average training days per employee, staff 3.0 3.0

1 — Figures based on the number of employees in Allianz's core business. Excluded are fully consolidated
companies which are considered pure financial investments, non-profit organizations, e.g. foundations,
and companies classified as held for sale.
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DIVERSITY

At Allianz, we recognize the importance of having a diverse, inclusive
workforce that is made up of employees from different backgrounds.
To accomplish this, we have implemented a number of initiatives, in-
cluding those focused on gender, ethnicity, age, religion, sexual orien-
tation, disability, education, and nationality.

We actively support employee rights and strive to apply core
human-rights principles based on the United Nations Declaration of
Human Rights throughout our worldwide organization. We are a par-
ticipant of the United Nations Global Compact and have integrated
its ten principles into our globally binding Code of Conduct. We also
respect the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises.

WOMEN ACROSS THE ALLIANZ GROUP'!

%

2015 2014 2013
Women in executive positions24 233 23.1 21.2
Female managers3# 36.8 36.2 35.5
Share of women in overall workforce 52.4 52.9 52.8

1 —Figures based on the number of employees in Allianz's core business. Excluded are fully consolidated
companies which are considered pure financial investments, non-profit organizations, e.g. foundations,
and companies classified as held for sale.

2 —Including women in all executive positions below the Board of Management.

3 —Including women functionally responsible for other staff, regardless of level, e.g. division, department,
and team managers.

4 —These figures do not represent the proportion of women in the two management levels below the Board
of Management of Allianz sE.

To support employee rights, we were one of the first companies to
create pan-European worker participation standards and establish
a European SE works council under the legislation for Societas Euro-
paea (SE) companies. We are also a signatory to the International
Labour Organization’s (1IL0) Declaration on Fundamental Rights and
Principles at Work, including the IL0 declaration on the freedom of
association and the right to collective bargaining.
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SUSTAINABLE VALUE APPROACH TO REMUNERATION

Our remuneration and incentive structures are designed to encourage
sustainable value creation and offer both monetary and non-mone-
tary rewards. Our remuneration system is based on the following
principles:

— Provide a transparent, fair and integrated offering to attract,
motivate, and retain highly qualified employees.

— Deliver total rewards that are competitive in the relevant markets.

— Align remuneration with the performance of the individual and
the achievement of Allianz’s financial and strategic goal to “pay
for performance”.

— Operate effectively in different performance scenarios and busi-
ness circumstances.

— Reward risk control and avoid inappropriate risk-taking.

WELLBEING AND EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

We take an active role in promoting the physical and mental health
of our employees, including a variety of stress management pro-
grams and measures. Our central Work Well program analyzes root
causes of stress to find the most effective solutions.

We also believe that committed and motivated employees bring
competitive benefits to our business. By actively engaging with our
workforce, we have developed a culture of high performance, greater
integrity, and better customer focus. Each year, we conduct the
Group-wide Allianz Engagement Survey (AES) to gather employee
feedback on a range of issues, including those identified as promot-
ing a high-performance culture. In 2015, 120,204 employees from 67
Allianz companies were invited to participate. The global response
rate of 84 % was in line with 2014.

A key measurement of the AES is the Employee Engagement
Index (EEI), which reflects employee satisfaction, loyalty, advocacy,
and pride within their organizations. In 2015, the EEI score at Group
level was 75 %. This reflects a high level of engagement among our
workforce, as well as the highest ever EEI result since the survey began.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT INDEX

%
2015 2014 2013

Employee Engagement Index 75 72 73
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Business Environment

Economic environment 2015

DIVERGING GROWTH DYNAMICS IN

INDUSTRIALIZED COUNTRIES AND EMERGING MARKETS

In 2015 the global economy offered both light and shade. Geopolitical
tensions and crises and acts of terrorism created a difficult backdrop.
The slide in the oil price and other commodity prices had a marked
impact on global income flows. Many advanced economies benefited
from purchasing power gains, whereas a host of emerging markets
saw revenues plummet. However, alongside developments in com-
modity prices, structural factors also lay behind the relative economic
weakness in emerging markets. The slowdown in China continued,
while other major emerging market economies like Brazil and Russia
experienced severe recessions. Nevertheless, there were also some
bright spots in emerging markets like India and most eastern Euro-
pean E.U. member states, which registered robust growth. Overall,
emerging markets expanded by a rather disappointing 3.3% in 2015,
the lowest growth rate in 15 years, if one ignores the Great Recession
in 2009.

Compared with 2014, economic growth in industrialized coun-
tries picked up slightly in 2015. Real gross domestic product rose by
1.8% (2014: 1.7%). The further stabilization in the Eurozone economy
was among the positive aspects witnessed in 2015. The decline in
commodity prices and the lower Euro, but also progress on the
reform front in the former crisis countries bolstered this upward
trend. As a result, real gross domestic product expanded by 1.5%.
With an increase of 1.7% the German economy recorded a slightly
higher growth rate than the Eurozone as awhole. In the United States
the six-year-long upswing continued, but given the strength of the
U.s. Dollar, growth was practically unchanged from the year before at
2.4%. Broadly speaking, consumption was the driver of growth in
industrialized countries with investment providing little impetus.
Overall, the world economy grew by an estimated 2.4 %, slightly lower
than in 2014, when global output rose by 2.7 %. Global merchandise
trade, by contrast, expanded by only about 2% in 2015. For a number
ofyears now the old rule of thumb that global trade increases at twice
the rate of global output has no longer applied. This shows that the
pace of globalization in merchandise trade has clearly abated.

Financial market developments in 2015 continued to be charac-
terized by extremely low interest rates, a strong u.s. Dollar and
increasingly volatile equity markets. In the United States, the Federal
Reserve ended its zero interest rate policy in December, lifting the
target range for the federal funds rate to 0.25 to 0.5%. By contrast, the
European Central Bank continued to ease its monetary policy stance
with a bundle of measures, for example an extension of its bond pur-
chasing program and a further lowering of its deposit rate to (0.3)%.
Yields on 10-year German government bonds ended 2015 at 0.6%, a
minor increase of 10 basis points compared with a year earlier. The
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performance of major stock market indices was mixed, with gains in
the Eurozone and Japan and losses in emerging markets. The Euro
fluctuated considerably against the u.s. Dollar, closing the year at a
rate of 1.09 U.s. Dollar to Euro, well below the level seen at the begin-
ning of 2015. The diverging monetary policies of the u.s. Federal
Reserve and the European Central Bank were a key factor behind this
downward correction. Financial markets in emerging markets had a
difficult year — substantial capital outflows exerted a sharp down-
ward pressure on both stock and currency markets.

Business environment 2015
for the insurance industry

2015 offered the now familiar cocktail of economic and political chal-
lenges that describes the business environment after the financial
crisis: modest premium growth but persistently low interest rates,
volatile financial markets and new regulatory burdens. The only
“bright” spot was the low level of insured losses —compared with his-
torical averages — resulting from natural catastrophes. This was
mainly thanks to a calm hurricane season in the North Atlantic.
Nonetheless, weather-related natural catastrophes were plentiful in
2015, from winter storms in North America to droughts and heat-
waves around the world to floods in Great Britain.

However, neither natural catastrophes nor political woes posed
the biggest challenges in 2015. It was, in addition to economic chal-
lenges, technological change, which now fully encompasses the
insurance industry. Digital technology and Big Data are transforming
the whole business model, the way the industry underwrites risks,
distributes products and communicates with customers. Against this
background, itis not surprising that industry consolidation gathered
pace in 2015, resulting in deals such as the acquisition of the Chubb
Group by ACE Limited.

In the property-casualty sector, premium growth in advanced mar-
kets was basically unchanged from the previous year. Whereas the
ongoing — albeit slow — recovery supported demand for insurance,
particularly in Europe, softening prices in some markets and busi-
ness lines put a damper on premium growth. In contrast to this,
emerging markets followed increasingly divergent trends. In par-
ticular, Latin America showed significantly slower growth than in
preceding years, dragged down by the severe recession in its biggest
economy, Brazil. The indisputable growth champion of 2015 was
again emerging Asia, with a strong Chinese market as its driving
force. Encouragingly, the other heavyweight in emerging Asia, India,
returned to healthy growth, too. Overall, according to our own esti-
mates and based on preliminary figures, global premiums rose by
around 4.5% in 2015 (in nominal terms and adjusted for foreign cur-
rency translation effects).
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Underwriting profitability remained stable on average, with
combined ratios in most markets clearly below 100 %, reflecting lower
catastrophe losses. However, overall profitability remained under
pressure as investment returns were challenged by very low interest
rates.

In the life sector, premium growth in advanced markets slowed
slightly in 2015. While the u.s. market was more or less stable, growth
in some European markets, for example in Italy, normalized after a
very strong performance in the previous year. By contrast, premium
growth in emerging markets was not only much stronger but actu-
ally picked up slightly. Even Latin America and Eastern Europe,
despite their economic troubles, kept up rather well in 2015. However,
the dominance of emerging Asia — and in particular China — is even
more pronounced in life than in the property-casualty sector: In 2015,
almost half of all premiums in emerging markets were written in
China, and more than 60% of all premium growth was generated
there. In total, according to our own estimates and based on pre-
liminary figures, global premiums grew by around 5.0% in 2015 (in
nominal terms and adjusted for foreign currency translation effects).

The stubbornly low yield environment posed the greatest chal-
lenge for profitability in the life sector. Life insurers reacted mainly by
shifting the portfolio mix towards alternative and less liquid assets,
for example infrastructure. They also started to develop new product
concepts with reduced guarantees and fostered protection-type
products. All in all, insurers managed to shift the product mix
towards less capital-intensive products, safeguarding profitability
and solvency positions.
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Business environment 2015
for the asset management industry

As described earlier, markets were highly volatile for the asset man-
agement industry. On the one hand they were supported by continu-
ously low interest rates and quantitative-easing measures. Equity
and bond markets also developed positively. On the other hand, the
third quarter of 2015, in particular, was tumultuous for global mar-
kets, which were impacted by the economic slowdown in China and
concerns about other emerging markets.

European equity indices were especially subject to strong fluc-
tuations in the second half of the year. In the fourth quarter of 2015,
European equity markets developed favorably and rose above 2014
levels, driven by the announcement in December by the European
Central Bank of further supportive monetary measures. U.S. equity
prices recovered strongly at the beginning of the fourth quarter of
2015 and the NASDAQ finished the year in positive territory. However,
the 25 basis points increase in the U.S. federal funds rate at the end of
the fourth quarter hit equity investors. In addition, the continued
sharp decline in the price of oil burdened corporates and countries
exposed to oil production, as did ongoing concerns about the Chinese
economy. The effects of slowing growth in China and weak commodity
demand made 2015 a difficult year for emerging markets. As a result,
many Asia Pacific and emerging market indices lost ground compared
to the end of December 2014.

During the year, bond markets were also impacted by uncertainty
surrounding the timing of the increase in the u.s. federal funds rate.
With the decision taken by the U.s. Federal Reserve in December 2015,
yields rose across most U.s. bond classes, which led to a weak fourth
quarter of 2015 in terms of strong net outflows from nearly all types
of mutual funds and asset classes in the United States.

Throughout the year, yields on the short end of the yield curve
grew at a faster pace than those at the long end, signaling falling
expectations for future inflation. Overall, mutual funds in 2015
recorded continued net inflows. In the United States, passive mutual
funds noted strong net inflows in 2015 driven by equities and bonds.
Active U.s. mutual funds, in contrast, suffered notable net outflows in
2015—mainlyin U.S. equities and taxable bonds. Money market funds
in the United States profited, especially in December 2015, from the
interest rate uncertainties. German mutual equity funds recorded
net inflows for the first time in years. Furthermore, net inflows in
mutual funds in Germany were again dominated by multi-asset
funds.
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Executive Summary of 2015 Results

—Total revenues increased to € 125.2 BN.

— Operating profit grew 3.2 % to € 10,735 MN.

— Net income rose to € 6,987 MN.

— Conglomerate solvency ratio up 19.6 percentage points to 200 %.!

Allianz Group overview

Key figures

Allianz st and its subsidiaries (the Allianz Group) have opera-
tions in over 70 countries. The Group's results are reported by
business segment: Property-Casualty insurance operations,
Life/Health insurance operations, Asset Management, and
Corporate and Other.

KEY FIGURES ALLIANZ GROUP

€MN

2015 2014
Total revenues 125,190 122,253
Operating profit 10,735 10,402
Net income 6,987 6,603
Conglomerate solvency ratio’2in % 200 181

Earnings summary

MANAGEMENT'S ASSESSMENT OF 2015 RESULTS

We recorded total revenues of € 125.2 BN, a growth of 2.4%. On an
internal basis?, revenues dropped by 2.1 %. In our Life/Health business
segment, premiums decreased in particular in the United States and
in Germany, where the strategic shift to capital-light products further
contributed to the decline. In our Asset Management business seg-
ment, operating revenues were primarily burdened by lower average
third-party assets under management (AuM), mainly driven by third-
party net outflows, albeit continuously diminishing over the course
of the year. These effects were partly compensated for by mainly vol-
ume driven premium growth in our Property-Casualty business seg-
ment and slightly increased revenues in our Corporate and Other
business segment.

1 — Off-balance sheet reserves are accepted by the authorities as eligible capital only upon request. Allianz s
has not submitted an application so far. Excluding off-balance sheet reserves, the conglomerate solvency
ratios would be 191% and 172% as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

2 —Figures as of 31 December.

3 —Internal total revenue growth excludes the effects of foreign currency translation as well as acquisitions
and disposals. Please refer to page 110 for a reconciliation of nominal total revenue growth to internal
total revenue growth for each of our business segments and the Allianz Group as a whole.
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Our operating profit rose 3.2% to € 10,735 MN, which is in the
upper end of our 2015 target range. Our Life/Health business segment
showed a 14.1 % increase in operating profit, driven by a higher invest-
ment margin and favorable foreign currency translation effects. Our
Property-Casualty business segment also contributed to the overall
operating profit growth, in particular due to a net gain from the sale
of Fireman’s Fund personal insurance business. These favorable
developments were partly offset by a decrease in operating profit in
our Asset Management business segment, mainly driven by the
impact from lower average third-party AuM. Our Corporate and Other
business segment was burdened by higher centralized pension costs
—which resulted in an increased operating loss.

Net income was up 5.8% to € 6,987 MN, mainly due to an improve-
ment in our non-operating result and our strong operating perfor-
mance, partly offset by the higher effective tax rate. Net income attri-
butable to shareholders rose 6.3% to € 6,616 MN (2014: € 6,221 MN). Net
income attributable to non-controlling interests was € 371 MN (2014:
€381 MN).

Our shareholders’ equity went up by € 2.4 BN to € 63.1 BN, com-
pared to 31 December 2014. Over the same period, our conglomerate
solvency ratio strengthened from 181% to 200%.! From 1January 2016
onwards, capitalization based on Solvency 11 will be utilized for regu-
latory purposes.
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Total revenues!

TOTAL REVENUES — BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Operating profit

OPERATING PROFIT — BUSINESS SEGMENTS

€MN

122,253

6355 = > 6,479
67,331
48,322
2014 2015

B Property-Casualty M Life/Health B Asset Management
---> Internal growth

Corporate and Other

1 —Total revenues include € (365) MN (2014: € (344) MN) from consolidation.

€MN

+3.2%

[ v
10,402' 10,735’

2,603 I 2,297 I
+14.1%

3327 I - = ——>37%

(11.8)%

5,382 +aT% 5,603
820) (15.1)% (95)
2014 2015

W Property-Casualty B Life/Health B Asset Management
—> Growth

Corporate and Other

1 — Total operating profitincludes € (16) MN (2014: € (91) MN) from consolidation.

Property-Casualty gross premiums written grew 6.8% and amounted
to €51.6 BN. On an internal basis?, we recorded an increase of 2.9%
mainly due to favorable volume effects. We registered strong internal
growth —particularly at Allianz Worldwide Partners, in Turkey, and at
AGCS excl. Fireman's Fund.

Life/Health statutory premiums amounted to €66.9 BN, a
decrease of 4.9% on an internal basis2. This was mainly due to a drop
in fixed-indexed annuity business in the United States and reduced
sales of traditional products in Germany and Italy. These effects out-
weighed the premium growth in the unit-linked business in Italy and
Taiwan. As a result of implementing changes in our product strategy,
premiums shifted more towards unit-linked and capital-efficient
products.

Asset Management operating revenues rose by € 92 MN to € 6.5 BN.
Excluding the strong effects from foreign currency translation,
mainly resulting from the sharp depreciation of the Euro against the
U.s. Dollar, operating revenues decreased by 11.4% on an internal
basis?. This was mainly driven by lower average third-party AuM and
the corresponding AuM-related income. It was partly offset by higher
performance fees.

Total revenues in our Banking operations (reported in our Cor-
porate and Other business segment) increased by € 21 MN to € 577 MN,
primarily driven by a higher net fee and commission result.

1 — Total revenues comprise statutory gross premiums written in Property-Casualty and in Life/Health, oper-
ating revenues in Asset Management, and total revenues in Corporate and Other (Banking).

2 —Internal total revenue growth excludes the effects of foreign currency translation as well as acquisitions
and disposals. Please refer to page 110 for a reconciliation of nominal total revenue growth to internal
total revenue growth for each of our business segments and the Allianz Group as a whole.
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Our Property-Casualty operating profit went up by € 221 MN —0r 4.1% —
to € 5,603 MN. This was mainly driven by the € 0.2 BN net gain from the
sale of the Fireman’s Fund personal insurance business to ACE Limited,
which was partly offset by restructuring charges of € 0.1 BN for the
Fireman’s Fund reorganization. Growth in operating investment
income — which rose from € 3,066 MN to € 3,120 MN — and a higher
underwriting result contributed positively.

Life/Health operating profit was up by € 468 MN to € 3,796 MN. A
higher investment margin in Germany, positive foreign currency
translation effects, a higher investment spread margin in the United
States, and increased unit-linked management fees in Italy and
France mainly drove this development. However, these increases were
negatively affected by loss recognition in South Korea amounting to
€244 MN.

Asset Management operating profit went down by € 306 MN — or
11.8% — to € 2,297 MN. On an internal basis3, the decrease was 23.5%,
mainly driven by lower third-party AuM-driven revenues, partly offset
by higher performance fees and lower operating expenses.

Our operating loss in Corporate and Other grew by € 124 MN to
€945 MN. Increases in Banking and Alternative Investments’ operat-
ing profit were more than offset by a higher operating loss in Hold-
ing & Treasury due to higher centralized pension costs.

3 —Operating profit adjusted for foreign currency translation and (de-)consolidation effects. In 2015, the
average exchange rate of the u.s. Dollar to Euro was 1.11 (2014: 1.33)
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Non-operating result

Our non-operating result improved by € 1,015 MN to a loss of € 539 MN.
This was mainly due to a lower negative impact from the reclassifica-
tion of tax benefits, compared to 2014, and increased non-operating
realized gains and losses (net). These improvements were partly off-
set by higher non-operating amortization of intangible assets.

Non-operating income from financial assets and liabilities carried
at fair value through income (net) improved by € 84 MN to a loss of
€219 MN, mainly due to favorable impacts from hedging-related
activities.

Non-operating realized gains and losses (net) increased by
€399 MN to € 1,211 MN as a result of higher realizations, mainly on
equity investments.

Non-operating impairments of investments (net) rose by € 72 MN
to €268 MN, mainly due to higher impairments on equities in line
with unfavorable market developments — predominantly in the third
quarter of 2015.

The negative impact from the reclassification of tax benefits
declined by € 839 MN to € 62 MN. The second half of 2014 included sig-
nificant one-off tax benefits, reflected within income taxes, a portion
of which were reclassified and shown within operating profit in order
to adequately reflect policyholder participation.

Non-operating amortization of intangible assets increased from
€104 MN to € 304 MN. As a result of the impairment test in 2015, all of
the goodwill of € 171 MN allocated to the cash generating unit Asia
Pacificin the business segment Life/Health was completely impaired,
mainly driven by steadily decreasing and persisting low interest rates
in South Korea. For further information, please refer to note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Income taxes

Income taxes were up by €964 MN to € 3,209 MN. The increase in
income taxes was mostly due to the higher income before income
taxes in 2015 and higher one-off tax benefits in 2014.In 2015, the effec-
tive tax rate was below our long-term average of approximately 33%
and amounted to 31.5%. The effective tax rate in 2015, adjusted for
non-tax deductible goodwill impairments and valuation allowances
on deferred tax assets, would have been approximately 30.6 %. In 2014,
our effective tax rate of 25.4% benefited from extraordinary tax ben-
efits from a favorable court decision, which amounted to € 1,120 MN.
The policyholder share in tax benefits amounted to € 892 MN. Without
policyholder participation, the Allianz Group’s 2014 effective tax rate
attributable to the shareholders would have been approximately 32 %.
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Net iIncome

Net income increased by € 384 MN to € 6,987 MN, primarily driven by our
higher non-operating result and our solid operating performance,
partly offset by the higher effective tax rate. Net income attributable
to shareholders rose 6.3% to € 6,616 MN (2014: € 6,221 MN). Net income
attributable to non-controlling interests was € 371 MN (2014: € 381 MN).
Our largest non-controlling interests in net income related to Euler
Hermes and PIMCO.

Basic earnings per share increased from € 13.71 to € 14.56 in 2015
and diluted earnings per share rose from € 13.64 to € 14.55. For further
information on earnings per share, please refer to note 51 to the con-
solidated financial statements.

Proposal for appropriation of net earnings

The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board propose that
the net earnings (“Bilanzgewinn”) of Allianz SE of € 4,228,626,130.21
for the 2015 fiscal year shall be appropriated as follows:

— Distribution of a dividend of € 7.30 per no-par share
entitled to a dividend: € 3,320,374,442.20
— Unappropriated earnings carried forward: € 908,251,688.01

The proposal for appropriation of net earnings reflects the 2,154,186
treasury shares held directly and indirectly by the company at the
time of the publication of the convocation of the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) in the Federal Gazette. Such treasury shares are not
entitled to the dividend pursuant to § 71b of the German Stock Cor-
poration Act (AktG). Should there be any change in the number of
shares entitled to the dividend by the date of the AGM, the above pro-
posal will be amended accordingly and presented for resolution on
the appropriation of net earnings at the AGM, with an unchanged
dividend of € 7.30 per each share entitled to dividend.

Munich, 16 February 2016

Allianz SE
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TOTAL REVENUES AND RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO NET INCOME

€MN
2015 2014
Total revenues? 125,190 122,253
Premiums earned (net) 70,645 68,274
Operating investment result
Interest and similar income 22,408 21,443
Operating income from financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through income (net) (2,089) (1,301)
Operating realized gains/losses (net) 6,726 3,205
Interest expenses, excluding interest expenses from external debt (375) (415)
Operating impairments of investments (net) (1,258) (697)
Investment expenses (1,094) (961)
Subtotal 24,319 21,274
Fee and commission income 10,945 10,119
Other income 476 216
Claims and insurance benefits incurred (net) (51,702) (49,650)
Change in reserves for insurance and investment contracts (net)? (14,065) (13,929)
Loan loss provisions (60) (45)
Acquisition and administrative expenses (net), excluding acquisition-related expenses and one-off effects from pension revaluation (25,729) (23,351)
Fee and commission expenses 3,777) (3,238)
Operating amortization of intangible assets (19) (19)
Restructuring charges (231) (16)
Other expenses (129) (135)
Reclassification of tax benefits 62 901
Operating profit 10,735 10,402
Non-operating investment result
Non-operating income from financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through income (net) (219) (303)
Non-operating realized gains/losses (net) 1,211 812
Non-operating impairments of investments (net) (268) (197)
Subtotal 724 312
Income from fully consolidated private equity investments (net) (60) (23)
Interest expenses from external debt (849) (846)
Acquisition-related expenses 12 7
One-off effects from pension revaluation - -
Non-operating amortization of intangible assets (304) (104)
Reclassification of tax benefits (62) (901)
Non-operating items (539) (1,554)
Income before income taxes 10,196 8,848
Income taxes (3,209) (2,245)
Net income 6,987 6,603
Net income attributable to:
Non-controlling interests 371 381
Shareholders 6,616 6,221
Basic earnings per share in € 14.56 13.71
Diluted earnings per share in € 14,55 13.64

1 — Total revenues comprise statutory gross premiums written in Property-Casualty and in Life/Health, operating
revenues in Asset Management, and total revenues in Corporate and Other (Banking).
2 —Includes expenses for premium refunds (net) in Property-Casualty of € (240) MN (2014: € (307) MN).
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Events after the balance sheet date

The Allianz Group was not subject to any subsequent events that sig-
nificantly impacted the Group’s financial results after the balance
sheet date and before the financial statements were authorized for
issue.

Other information

CHANGES IN SEGMENT STRUCTURE

Effective 1January 2015, the Allianz Group reorganized the structure
ofits insurance activities to reflect the changes in the responsibilities
of the Board of Management. The property-casualty insurance opera-
tions of the former reportable segment UsA were allocated to the
reportable segment Global Insurance Lines & Anglo Markets.

Due to further changes in the Board of Management, effective
1 September 2015, the reportable segment Growth Markets ceased to
exist. The reallocation of its former parts has led to changes in the
structure, the renaming of other reportable segments, as well as the
introduction of a new reportable segment Asia Pacific, which consists
of the insurance business in that region. The insurance business in
Central & Eastern Europe has been integrated in the previous report-
able segment German Speaking Countries, which was renamed Ger-
man Speaking Countries and Central & Eastern Europe. The insurance
business in Russia and Ukraine has been allocated to the reportable
segment Global Insurance Lines & Anglo Markets. The insurance
business in India, Middle East, and North Africa has been integrated
in the previous reportable segment Western & Southern Europe,
which was renamed to Western & Southern Europe, Middle East,
Africa, India.

Previously reported information has been adjusted to reflect this
change in the composition of the Allianz Group’s reportable segments.
Additionally, some minor reallocations between the reportable seg-
ments have been made. For information on Segment reporting, please
refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SOLVENCY II: APPROVAL OF PARTIAL INTERNAL MODEL
In November 2015, our partial internal model was approved by the
German supervisory authority. With this approval, the uncertainty
about our future Solvency 11 capital requirements has been signifi-
cantly reduced —even if some uncertainty about the future capitaliza-
tion requirements of Allianz Group remains, since the future capital
requirements applicable for Global Systemically Important Insurers
(so-called G-s11s) have not been finalized as yet. From 1January 2016
onwards, capitalization based on our partial internal model under
Solvency 11 will be utilized for regulatory purposes. We are confident
that the Allianz Group will be able to meet the capital requirements
under the new regulatory regimes. For further information please
refer to the Risk and Opportunity Report starting on (3) page 112.

Other parts of the
Group Management Report

The following information also forms part of the Group Management
Report:

— Statement on Corporate Management pursuant to § 289a
of the HGB starting on (3) page 32,

— Takeover-related Statements and Explanations starting on
(>)page3s, and the

— Remuneration Report starting on () page37.

1 — From a formalistic perspective, the German Supervisory Authority deems our model to be ‘partial’ because
it does not cover all of our operations: some of our smaller operations report under the standard model
and others under the deduction and aggregation approach.
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Property-Casualty Insurance Operations

— Gross premiums written reached € 51.6 BN —up by 6.8 %.

— Positively impacted by the net sales gain from Fireman's Fund personal
insurance business, our operating profit grew 4.1 % to € 5,603 MN.

— Combined ratio slightly increased to 94.6 %.

Business segment overview

Key figures

Our Property-Casualty business offers a wide range of products
and services for both private and corporate clients. Our offerings
cover many insurance classes such as motor, accident/disability,
property, and general liability. We conduct business worldwide
in more than 70 countries. We are also a global leader in travel
insurance, assistance services, and credit insurance. We distrib-
ute our products via a broad network of agents, brokers, banks,
and other strategic partners, as well as through direct channels.

KEY FIGURES PROPERTY-CASUALTY

€MN

2015 2014
Gross premiums written 51,597 48,322
Operating profit 5,603 5,382
Net income 4,124 3,448
Loss ratio in % 66.2 66.0
Expense ratio in % 28.4 28.3
Combined ratio in % 94.6 94.3

Gross premiums written’

On anominal basis, we recorded gross premiums written of € 51,597 MN,
an increase of € 3,274 MN or 6.8% compared to 2014.

Foreign currency translation effects amounted to € 1,529 MN,
mainly due to the strong U.s. Dollar, British Pound and Swiss Franc
against the Euro.?

Consolidation/deconsolidation effects were at € 357 MN mainly
due to positive effects from the acquisition of a part of the insurance
business of UnipolSai and the takeover of the Property-Casualty
insurance business of the Territory Insurance Office in Australia. This
was partly offset by the sale of the Fireman's Fund personal insurance
business to ACE Limited and the downscaling of our retail business
in Russia.

On an internal basis, our gross premiums went up 2.9%. This was
composed of a volume effect of 2.1% and a price effect of 0.8%. We
recorded strong internal growth at Allianz Worldwide Partners, in
Turkey, and at AGCS excl. Fireman's Fund.

1 — We comment on the development of our gross premiums written on an internal basis, meaning adjusted
for foreign currency translation and (de-)consolidation effects, in order to provide more comparable
information.

2 — Based on the average exchange rates in 2015 compared to 2014.
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Analyzing internal premium growth in terms of price and volume,
we use four clusters based on 2015 internal growth over 2014:

Cluster 1:
Overall growth — both price and volume effects are positive.

Cluster 2:
Overall growth — either price or volume effects are positive.

Cluster 3:
Overall decline — either price or volume effects are negative.

Cluster 4:
Overall decline — both price and volume effects are negative.
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CLUSTER 1

In France, gross premiums increased to € 4,330 MN. The internal
growth of 1.8% was mainly due to a positive price impact from our
commercial and retail business.

In Australia, gross premiums grew 4.9 % to € 2,991 MN on an inter-
nal basis. This was driven by positive price and volume effects across
most of our lines of business.

In Spain, gross premiums were at €2,138 MN — up 6.1% on an
internal basis. We registered positive volume effects in all our lines of
business and favorable price effects mainly in our motor and per-
sonal lines business.

In Turkey, gross premiums amounted to € 1,312 MN. The internal
growth of 26.3% resulted from higher price and volume effects across
our main lines of business, especially in our motor third party liability
insurance business.

CLUSTER 2

In Germany, we recorded gross premiums of € 9,629 MN, a rise of 1.0%
on an internal basis. This was due to positive price effects especially
in our motor insurance business. It was partly offset by unfavorable
volume impacts in our accident insurance with premium refunds
(APR).

At AGCs incl. FFIC, gross premiums increased to € 8,107 MN. The
internal growth of 1.0% was mainly driven by favorable volume effects
at Allianz Risk Transfer, while negative price impacts in our energy
and aviation lines of business had some compensating effects.

At Allianz Worldwide Partners, gross premiums went up to
€3,975 MN. The internal growth of 10.8 % was due to positive contribu-
tions from all our lines of business, but particularly due to higher
volume impacts at Worldwide Care and our U.S. travel business.

In the United Kingdom, gross premiums stood at € 3,055 MN, an
increase of 2.6 % on an internal basis. This was due to favorable price
effects in our commercial motor and pet insurance businesses.

In Latin America, gross premiums rose 8.0% to € 2,086 MN. The
internal growth was largely driven by our motor insurance business.

CLUSTER 3

In Italy, gross premiums stood at € 4,755 MN, a decline of 1.6% on an
internal basis. This mainly resulted from negative price effects in our
motor insurance business.

In Credit Insurance, gross premiums decreased by 0.1 % and were
at €2,241 MN. Negative price effects after experiencing a low claims
environment in some of our mature markets were largely offset by
positive volume effects in Asia and Italy.

In Russia, gross premiums were at € 196 MN — down by 26.4% on
an internal basis. This was the result of lower commercial volumes.
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Operating profit

OPERATING PROFIT

€MN

2015 2014
Underwriting result 2,281 2,251
Operating investment income (net) 3,120 3,066
Other result? 202 66
Operating profit 5,603 5,382

1 — Consists of fee and commission income/expenses, other income/expenses and restructuring charges.

Operating profit increased by € 221 MN to € 5,603 MN, which includes
a net gain of €0.2 BN from the sale of the Fireman'’s Fund personal
insurance business to ACE Limited in the second quarter. This was
partly offset by restructuring charges of € 0.1 BN for the Fireman’s
Fund reorganization. Both operating investment income and under-
writing result contributed positively.

Despite higher losses from natural catastrophes and a negative
motor driven impact from Argentina, our underwriting result went
up by €30 MN to € 2,281 MN, benefiting from a higher contribution
from run-off. Our combined ratio worsened by 0.3 percentage points
t0 94.6%.

UNDERWRITING RESULT

€MN
2015 2014
Premiums earned (net) 46,430 43,759
Accident year claims (32,646) (30,263)
Previous year claims (run-off) 1,924 1,385
Claims and insurance benefits incurred (net) (30,721) (28,878)
Acquisition and administrative expenses (net),
excluding one-off effects from pension revaluation (13,208) (12,400)
Change in reserves for insurance and investment
contracts (net) (without expenses for premium
refunds)? (220) (231)
Underwriting result 2,281 2,251

1 — Consists of the underwriting-related part (aggregate policy reserves and other insurance reserves) of
“change in reserves for insurance and investment contracts (net)". For further information, please refer
to note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our accident year loss ratio stood at 70.3% — a 1.2 percentage point
deterioration compared to the previous year. This was driven by an
increase in losses from natural catastrophes from an extraordinarily
low level of € 400 MN in 2014 to € 738 MN resulting in a higher impact
on our combined ratio of 1.6 percentage points compared to 0.9 per-
centage points in 2014.

Excluding losses from natural catastrophes, our accident year
loss ratio deteriorated to 68.7 % from 68.2 % in 2014. This was the result
of a worse attritional loss ratio of our motor portfolios in the United
Kingdom and Italy as well as higher weather-related losses in Australia.
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The following operation contributed positively to the development of
our accident year loss ratio:

Allianz Worldwide Partners: 0.3 percentage points. The accident
year loss ratio for our B2B2C business improved driven by Global
Assistance.

The following operations contributed negatively to the development
of our accident year loss ratio:

United Kingdom: 0.5 percentage points. The accident year loss
ratio was affected by severe storms and flooding in December, a
higher impact of large losses compared to last year, and an adverse
loss ratio development of our retail motor portfolio.

Australia: 0.3 percentage points. This stemmed from an increased
impact of losses from natural catastrophes and weather-related
events.

Germany: 0.3 percentage points. After the rather benign level of
claims from natural catastrophes in 2014, this year’s accident year
loss ratio was affected by claims caused by storms including Mike and
Niklas in the first quarter as well as Siegfried and Thompson in the
third quarter.

AGCs excl. FFIC: 0.2 percentage points. This is predominantly the
result of higher losses from natural catastrophes.

Our run-off result amounted to € 1,924 MN, compared to € 1,385 MN in
the previous year —resulting in a higher run-off contribution of 4.1 %.
The 1.0 percentage point increase compared to the 2014 run-off ratio
was the result of the strongly negative impact from reserve strength-
ening in Russia and Brazil in the previous year, a lower than prior year
reserve strengthening for the former Fireman'’s Fund portfolio and
positive run-off contributions from most operations in 2015.

Total expenses amounted to € 13,208 MN in 2015 compared to
€12,400 MN in 2014. Our expense ratio deteriorated 0.1 percentage
points to 28.4%. This was mainly driven by higher acquisition expenses.

OPERATING INVESTMENT INCOME (NET)'

€MN

2015 2014
Interest and similar income
(net of interest expenses) 3,529 3,525
Operating income from financial assets and
liabilities carried at fair value through income (net) (25) 6
Operating realized gains (net) 252 186
Operating impairments of investments (net) (59) (20)
Investment expenses (337) (323)
Expenses for premium refunds (net)? (240) (307)
Operating investment income (net) 3,120 3,066

1—The operating investment income (net) for our Property-Casualty business segment consists of the
operating investment result —as shown in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements —and expenses
for premium refunds (net) (policyholder participation) as shown in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

2 —Refers to policyholder participation, mainly from APR (accident insurance with premium refunds) busi-
ness, and consists of the investment-related part of “change in reserves for insurance and investment

contracts (net)". For further information, please refer to note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Operating investment income (net) increased slightly by € 54 MN to
€3,120 MN.

Interest and similar income (net of interest expenses) was stable
at€ 3,529 MN, whereby higher income from equities was broadly offset
by a lower contribution from fixed income. The average asset base!
grew by 4.3% from € 104.6 BN to € 109.2 BN compared to the previous
year.

Operating income from financial assets and liabilities carried at
fairvalue through income (net) fell by € 31 MN to aloss of € 25 MN. This
was due to negative developments in the foreign currency result net
of hedges with respect to emerging market bonds denominated in
local currency.

Operating realized gains (net) increased by € 66 MN to € 252 MN.
Thiswas driven by higher realizations in debt securities and was par-
tially offset by lower realized gains on equities, both mainly in the APR
business.

Operating impairments of investments (net) amounted to € 59 MN,
up €39 MN largely due to higher impairments on equities in our APR
business.

Expenses for premium refunds (net) were at € 240 MN, a decrease
of € 67 MN compared to last year. The change was mainly driven by
our APR business in Germany.

OTHER RESULT

€MN

2015 2014
Fee and commission income 1,474 1,260
Other income? 279 60
Fee and commission expenses (1,367) (1,180)
Other expenses (34) (45)
Restructuring charges (149) (30)
Other result 202 66

1 —We recorded a € 0.2 BN net gain from the sale of the Fireman’s Fund personal insurance business, which
is reported as other income.

1 — Including French health business, excluding fair value option and trading.
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Net income increased by € 676 MN to € 4,124 MN compared to 2014. We
recorded lower one-off expenses from pension revaluation and higher

non-operating realized gains.

PROPERTY-CASUALTY BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

€MN

2015 2014
Gross premiums written? 51,597 48,322
Ceded premiums written (4,933) (3,961)
Change in unearned premiums (234) (602)
Premiums earned (net) 46,430 43,759
Interest and similar income 3,601 3,595
Operating income from financial assets and
liabilities carried at fair value through income (net) (25) 6
Operating realized gains/losses (net) 252 186
Fee and commission income 1,474 1,260
Other income 279 60
Operating revenues 52,010 48,867
Claims and insurance benefits incurred (net) (30,721) (28,878)
Change in reserves for insurance
and investment contracts (net) (460) (538)
Interest expenses (72) @)
Operating impairments of investments (net) (59) (20)
Investment expenses (337) (323)
Acquisition and administrative expenses (net),
excluding one-off effects from pension revaluation (13,208) (12,400)
Fee and commission expenses (1,367) (1,180)
Restructuring charges (149) (30)
Other expenses (34) (45)
Operating expenses (46,407) (43,485)
Operating profit 5,603 5,382
Non-operating items 181 (406)
Income before income taxes 5,784 4,976
Income taxes (1,660) (1,528)
Net income 4,124 3,448
Loss ratio? in % 66.2 66.0
Expense ratio® in % 28.4 28.3
Combined ratio®in % 94.6 94.3

1 — For the Property-Casualty business segment, total revenues are measured based upon gross premiums

written.

2 —Represents claims and insurance benefits incurred (net), divided by premiums earned (net).
3 —Represents acquisition and administrative expenses (net), excluding one-off effects from pension

revaluation divided by premiums earned (net).

4 —Represents the total of acquisition and administrative expenses (net), excluding one-off effects from
pension revaluation, and claims and insurance benefits incurred (net) divided by premiums earned (net).

Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group

110 Reconciliations

77



Property-Casualty insurance operations by reportable segments

PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSURANCE OPERATIONS BY REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

€MN
Gross premiums written Premiums earned (net) Operating profit (loss)
internal

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Germany 9,629 9,532 9,629 9,532 7,877 7,824 1,216 1,303
Switzerland 1,717 1,489 1,507 1,489 1,620 1,428 245 198
Austria 983 976 983 976 831 831 81 75
Central & Eastern Europe? 1,732 1,676 1,729 1,676 1,413 1,372 141 167
Poland 409 419 408 419 344 348 ©) 17
Slovakia 336 330 336 330 267 267 56 67
Hungary 271 263 272 263 225 223 24 22
Czech Republic 316 286 313 286 269 238 34 44
Other 401 380 401 380 308 297 29 17
German Speaking Countries and Central & Eastern Europe 14,061 13,673 13,849 13,673 11,741 11,455 1,683 1,743
Italy3 4,755 4,196 4,130 4,196 4,665 3,906 1,075 932
France 4,330 4,248 4,324 4,248 4,007 3,926 465 428
Benelux 1,164 1,135 1,164 1,135 1,062 1,065 108 96
Turkey 1,312 1,082 1,366 1,082 967 906 90 90
Greece 100 108 100 108 81 89 12 16
Africa 105 96 105 96 74 65 11 11
Middle East 88 74 76 74 60 49 11 8
Western & Southern Europe, Middle East, Africa and India% 11,855 10,939 11,266 10,939 10,915 10,006 1,798 1,588
Spain 2,138 2,015 2,138 2,015 1,907 1,806 208 255
Portugal 343 320 343 320 285 271 20 4)
Latin America 2,086 2,101 2,270 2,101 1,549 1,622 (154) (147)
Iberia & Latin America 4,566 4,437 4,750 4,437 3,741 3,699 74 104
Allianz Global Corporate & Specialty® 8,107 5,389 7177 7,104 5,066 3,162 423 560
AGCS excl. Fireman’s Fund 6,227 5,389 5,605 5,376 3,604 3,162 514 560
Fireman's Fund 1,881 - 1,572 1,728 1,462 - (91) -
Reinsurance PCé 4,841 3,738 4,799 3,738 4,078 3,118 625 464
Reinsurance PC excl. San Francisco RE 4,841 3,738 4,799 3,738 4,078 3,118 584 464
San Francisco RE - - - - - - M -
Credit Insurance 2,241 2,158 2,157 2,158 1,549 1,482 400 401
United Kingdom 3,055 2,684 2,754 2,684 2,322 2,439 56 178
Ireland 496 439 496 439 432 385 42 85
United States? - 1,958 - - - 1,874 - (151)
Australiad 2,991 2,763 2,898 2,763 2,362 2,180 307 353
Russia 196 537 269 365 183 528 2 (194)
Ukraine 4 13 7 13 3 8 - (1)
Global Insurance Lines & Anglo Markets® 21,931 19,680 20,556 19,265 15,994 15,176 1,846 1,699
Asia Pacific 774 722 738 722 501 443 74 57
Allianz Worldwide Partners® 3,975 3,341 3,703 3,341 3,538 2,981 128 105
Consolidation and Other112 (5,565) (4,469) (5,552) (4,455) - - - 86
Total 51,597 48,322 49,310 47,920 46,430 43,759 5,603 5,382

1 —This reflects gross premiums written on an internal basis, adjusted for foreign currency translation and
(de-)consolidation effects.

2 —Includes income and expense items from a management holding and consolidations between countries
in this region.

3 — Effective 1July 2014, the Allianz Group acquired parts of the insurance business of UnipolSai Assicurazioni
S.p.A., Bologna.

4—Includes € 4 MN and € 7 MN operating profit for 2015 and 2014, respectively, from a management holding
located in Luxembourg. Includes € 21 MN operating profit for 2015 from an associated entity in Asia Pacific.

5 — Effective 1January 2015, Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company was integrated into AGCS Group. Previous
period figures were not adjusted. The sale of the renewal rights for personal lines was effective 1 April 2015.
12M2015 figures include the net gain on the sale of the personal insurance business to ACE Limited of € 0.2 BN.

6— The results from the run-off portfolio included in San Francisco Reinsurance Company Corp., a former
subsidiary of Fireman's Fund Insurance Company, have been reported within Reinsurance PC since 1January
2015.

7 — Previous period figures for the United States were not adjusted and include the prior year's business of
Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company.
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%
Combined ratio Loss ratio Expense ratio

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Germany 91.9 91.5 66.8 65.7 25.1 25.9
Switzerland 89.5 91.0 65.8 67.8 23.7 23.2
Austria 94.0 94.4 68.2 69.0 25.9 25.4
Central & Eastern Europe? 95.5 93.3 62.5 60.7 33.0 32.6
Poland 104.3 99.5 71.5 64.0 32.8 35.5
Slovakia 83.8 79.5 51.7 53.2 32.2 26.3
Hungary 101.5 102.7 60.6 62.4 40.9 40.3
Czech Republic 90.7 85.0 64.2 56.9 26.5 28.1
Other 13 13 13 13 13 —_
German Speaking Countries and Central & Eastern Europe 92.1 91.9 66.2 65.6 25.9 26.3
Italy3 83.1 82.5 56.5 55.0 26.6 27.5
France 95.9 96.3 66.8 67.6 29.1 28.7
Benelux 96.2 97.6 66.9 67.6 29.3 30.0
Turkey 102.2 97.8 79.0 75.1 23.1 22.6
Greece 89.1 86.1 53.8 51.1 35.3 35.0
Africa 92.7 92.6 56.3 48.4 36.5 44.2
Middle East 93.9 97.4 60.4 62.6 33.6 34.7
Western & Southern Europe, Middle East, Africa and India* 90.9 91.1 63.3 63.1 27.6 28.0
Spain 92.7 89.9 71.6 68.8 21.1 211
Portugal 96.5 105.7 72.9 82.7 23.6 23.0
Latin America 116.6 116.1 79.2 79.7 37.4 36.5
Iberia & Latin America 102.9 102.6 74.8 74.6 28.0 28.0
Allianz Global Corporate & Specialty> 102.9 93.1 72.0 65.2 31.0 27.9
AGCS excl. Fireman’s Fund 94.0 93.1 66.2 65.2 27.8 27.9
Fireman’s Fund 124.8 - 86.1 - 38.7 -
Reinsurance PC® 89.5 88.6 60.6 60.5 28.9 28.0
Reinsurance PC excl. San Francisco RE 89.2 88.6 60.6 60.5 28.6 28.0
San Francisco RE - - - - - -
Credit Insurance 83.2 78.6 53.3 48.8 29.8 29.7
United Kingdom 102.6 97.6 73.1 65.9 29.5 31.6
Ireland 94.9 84.7 67.4 55.6 27.5 29.2
United States? - 120.0 - 85.6 - 34.4
Australiad 96.2 94.6 69.7 69.7 26.5 24.9
Russia 111.9 141.6 70.6 98.7 41.3 42.9
Ukraine 113.5 114.9 56.4 62.3 57.1 52.6
Global Insurance Lines & Anglo Markets® 96.5 96.5 67.0 66.8 29.5 29.7
Asia Pacific 93.5 95.2 61.1 64.5 325 30.6
Allianz Worldwide Partners® 97.4 96.6 62.7 65.6 34.6 31.0
Consolidation and Other'.12 - - - - - -
Total 94.6 94.3 66.2 66.0 284 28.3

8 — Effective 1January 2015, the Allianz Group acquired the Property-Casualty insurance business of the

Territory Insurance Office (Ti0 Business), Darwin.

9—Includes € 8 MN operating loss and € 3 MN operating profit for 2015 and 2014, respectively, from AGF UK.
10 — The reportable segment Allianz Worldwide Partners includes the Global Assistance business as well as
the business of Allianz Worldwide Care and the reinsurance business of Allianz Global Automotive, in

addition to income and expenses from a management holding.

regions.

11 —Represents elimination of transactions between Allianz Group companies in different geographic

12 —The 2014 analysis of the Allianz Group's asbestos risks resulted in a reduction of reserves and a positive
run-off result of € 86 MN, as reflected in the operating profit for 2014.
13 — Presentation not meaningful.
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Life/Health Insurance Operations

— Statutory premiums stable at € 66.9 BN: continued targeted shift towards
unit-linked and capital-efficient products.
— Operating profitincreased 14.1% to € 3,796 MN, driven by a higher investment

margin.

Business segment overview

Key figures

Allianz offers a broad range of life, health, savings, and invest-
ment-oriented products, including individual and group life
insurance contracts. Via our distribution channels - mainly tied
agents, brokers, and bank partnerships — we offer life and health
products to both retail and corporate clients. As one of the world-
wide market leaders in life business, we serve customers in more
than 45 countries.

KEY FIGURES LIFE/HEALTH

€MN

2015 2014
Statutory premiums 66,903 67,331
Operating profit 3,796 3,327
Net income 2,621 2,320
Margin on reserves (BpS)' 67 65

Statutory premiums?3

On a nominal basis, we recorded statutory premiums of € 66,903 MN,
down by 0.6%. This includes favorable foreign currency translation
effects of € 2,848 MN.

On an internal basis?, statutory premiums decreased by € 3,276 MN
— 0T 4.9%—10 € 64,055 MN. As a result of changes in our product strategy,
premiums shifted towards unit-linked and capital-efficient products.
Decreased sales of traditional products in Germany and Italy more
than offset the premium growth in the unit-linked business in Italy
and Taiwan. In addition, we recorded lower premiums from the fixed-
indexed annuity business in the United States.

In the German life business, we recorded statutory premiums of
€17,742 MN. The drop of 6.7% on an internal basis was due to lower
single premium business, which saw reduced sales of traditional life
products — which include long-term interest rate guarantees. This
was partly compensated for by growth in the regular premium busi-
ness. Statutory premiums in the German health business went up to
€3,257 MN. The rise of 0.4% on an internal basis resulted from premium
rate increases in comprehensive insurance in January 2015.

1 — Represents operating profit divided by the average of the current and previous year-end net reserves,
where net reserves equal reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses, reserves for insurance and
investment contracts, and financial liabilities for unit-linked contracts less reinsurance assets.

2 — Statutory premiums are gross premiums written from sales of life and health insurance policies as well
as gross receipts from sales of unit-linked and other investment-oriented products, in accordance with
the statutory accounting practices applicable in the insurer's home jurisdiction.
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In the United States, statutory premiums amounted to
€10,475 MN, down 26.1% on an internal basis. We experienced lower
fixed-indexed annuity sales due to both the impact of pricing changes
made in the first half of 2015, in response to the low interest rate
environment, as well as market developments. We also recorded
exceptionally high premiums in the second and third quarters of 2014
resulting from the introduction of an innovative index strategy.

Statutory premiums in Italy went up to € 11,936 MN, representing
internal growth of 5.3%. Statutory premiums benefited from strong
growth in the unit-linked business. Along with a decrease in tradi-
tional life business, the share of unit-linked premiums of total statu-
tory premiums increased significantly to 75 % compared to 63 % in 2014.

In France, statutory premiums dropped to € 8,053 MN. The decrease
of 2.3% on an internal basis was mainly due to a decline in our tradi-
tional individual life and group pension business, with growth in our
group protection and health business partly compensating for the
negative development.

In Asia Pacific4, statutory premiums increased to € 6,769 MN, up
5.8% on an internal basis. This was mainly because of higher sales of
single premium unit-linked products distributed via bancassurance
in Taiwan.

3 —In the following section, we comment on the development of our statutory gross premiums written on
aninternal basis, i.e. adjusted for foreign currency translation and (de-)consolidation effects, in order to
provide more comparable information.

4— Asia Pacific refers to Asian-Pacific countries.
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Statutory premiums in Switzerland totaled € 1,842 MN. On an
internal basis, this represented a decrease of 2.3%, largely due to lower
single premium business in group life.

In Benelux, statutory premiums stood at € 2,239 MN —a decline of
11.1% on an internal basis. This mainly resulted from lower tradi-
tional life product sales and was partially offset by an increase in the
sale of single premium unit-linked products.

Statutory premiums in Spain went up to € 1,375 MN. The increase
of9.2%on an internal basis was mainly driven by traditional products
distributed via the bancassurance channel.

Statutory premiums in Central & Eastern Europe amounted to
€818 MN, down 4.7% on an internal basis. We recorded lower regular
premiums in the Czech Republic and lower single premiums in Hun-
gary. A stronger regular premium business in Bulgaria partly com-
pensated for this.

Premiums earned (net)

Premiums earned (net) were down by € 300 MN to € 24,215 MN. This was
mainly due to lower business from traditional life products in Ger-
many. Favorable foreign currency translation effects from some of the
major currencies partly compensated for the decrease.

Present value of new business premiums
(PVNBP)12

PvNBP fell by € 318 MN to € 60,614 MN. This was driven by a drop in our
guaranteed savings & annuities line of business, primarily due to
decreased fixed-indexed annuity sales in the United States and lower
sales of traditional business with high guarantees — particularly in
Germany and Italy. The pvNBP share of unit-linked without guarantee
line of business rose to 24.3 %.

PRESENT VALUE OF NEW BUSINESS PREMIUMS (PVNBP) BY LINES OF BUSINESS

Year 2015 [2014] in %

Unit-linked
without guarantee 24.3[18.7]

Protection
& health 10.7[9.9]

Guaranteed savings
& annuities 65.0[71.3]

1 — PVNBP before non-controlling interests.
2 — Prior year figures changed in order to reflect the roll out of profit source reporting to Malaysia.
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Operating profit

OPERATING PROFIT BY PROFIT SOURCES?

The objective of the Life/Health operating profit sources analysis is to
explain movements in IFRS results by analyzing underlying drivers of
performance on a Life/Health business segment consolidated basis.

OPERATING PROFIT BY PROFIT SOURCES

€MN

2015 2014
Loadings and fees 5,667 5,285
Investment margin 3,915 2,973
Expenses (6,610) (6,522)
Technical margin 1,156 1,203
Impact of change in DAC (332) 388
Operating profit 3,796 3,327

Our operating profitrose by € 468 MN to € 3,796 MN. This mainly resulted
from a higher investment margin in Germany, positive foreign cur-
rency translation effects, a higher investment spread margin in the
United States, and increased unit-linked management fees in Italy
and France. It was partly offset by loss recognition in South Korea
amounting to € 244 MN.

Loadings and fees
Loadings and fees include premium and reserve based fees, unit-

linked management fees, and policyholder participation in expenses.

LOADINGS AND FEES

€MN

2015 2014
Loadings from premiums 3,751 3,566
Loadings from reserves 1,143 1,091

Unit-linked management fees 772 628

Loadings and fees 5,667 5,285
Loadings from premiums as %

of statutory premiums 5.6 53
Loadings from reserves as %

of average reserves'?2 0.2 0.2
Unit-linked management fees as %

of average unit-linked reserves23 0.6 0.6

1 — Aggregate policy reserves and unit-linked reserves.
2 —Yields are pro-rata.
3 — Unit-linked management fees, excluding asset management fees, divided by unit-linked reserves.

Our loadings and fees were up by € 381 MN to € 5,667 MN.

The growth in loadings from premiums of € 185 MN was primarily
due to higher sales in Asia Pacific, the positive impact of lower volumes
of products with sales inducements in the United States, favorable
foreign currency translation effects, and increased unit-linked pre-
miums in Italy and France. This was partially offset by reduced single
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premium business in Germany. Loadings from premiums as a per-
centage of statutory premiums rose by 31 basis points, largely
because of a higher proportion of regular premiums in Germany.

The increase in loadings from reserves of € 52 MN was mainly
driven by a higher reserve volume, particularly in Asia Pacific.

The growth in unit-linked management fees of € 144 MN was
largely due to higher assets under management in France and Italy
as well as increased performance fees in Italy.

Investment margin

The investment margin is defined as IFRS investment income net of
expenses, less interest credited to IFRS reserves and policyholder par-
ticipation (including policyholder participation beyond contractual
and regulatory requirements mainly for the German life business).

INVESTMENT MARGIN

€MN

2015 2014
Interest and similar income 18,331 17,307
Operating income from financial assets and
liabilities carried at fair value through income (net) (2,050) (1,367)
Operating realized gains/losses (net) 6,459 3,204
Interest expenses (108) (107)
Operating impairments of investments (net) (1,199) (677)
Investment expenses (1,013) (903)
Other’ 174 258
Technical interest (9,194) (8,740)
Policyholder participation (7,486) (6,002)
Investment margin 3,915 2,973
Investment margin?3 in basis points 98 80

1 — Other comprises the delta of out-of-scope entities, which are added here with their respective operating
profit and different line item definitions compared to the financial statements, such as interest paid on
deposits for reinsurance, fee and commission income and expenses excluding unit-linked management
fees.

2 — Investment margin divided by the average of current previous year-end aggregate policy reserves.

3 —Yields are pro-rata.

Our investment margin rose by € 942 MN to € 3,915 MN, or by 18 basis
points as a percentage of reserves. The increase was mainly driven by
higher realizations on both debt and equity investments, predomi-
nantly in Germany. It was also supported by higher interest income
largely from debt investments. As the volume effects of a higher asset
base were mostly offset by lower yields, this higher interest was pri-
marily due to favorable foreign currency translation effects, arising
mainly in the United States. These increases were partially offset by
anegative foreign currency result on partially hedged emerging mar-
kets bonds and unfavorable impacts from financial derivatives to
lengthen duration. Higher impairments on equities — mainly in the
German life business — as a result of volatile equity markets during
the year also contributed negatively.

The policyholder participation ratio decreased slightly, driven by
a drop in the policyholder participation in Italy and France.
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Expenses

Expenses include acquisition expenses and commissions (excluding
commission clawbacks, which are allocated to the technical margin)
as well as administrative and other expenses.

EXPENSES
E€MN

2015 2014
Acquisition expenses and commissions (4,915) (4,912)
Administrative and other expenses (1,695) (1,610)
Expenses (6,610) (6,522)
Acquisition expenses and commissions
as % of PVYNBP? 8.1) (8.1)
Administrative and other expenses
as % of average reserves23 (0.3) (0.4)

1 — PVNBP before non-controlling interests.
2 —Aggregate policy reserves and unit-linked reserves.
3 —Yields are pro-rata.

Our expenses were up by € 87 MN to € 6,610 MN. Acquisition expenses
were flat, as lower acquisition expenses driven by reduced fixed-
indexed annuity sales in the United States and lower single premium
business in Germany were offset by higher acquisition expenses
mainly due to sales growth in Asia Pacific and Italy.

Administrative expenses increased predominantly because of
adverse foreign currency translation effects from our businesses in
the United States and in Asia Pacific.

Technical margin

Technical margin comprises risk result (risk premiums less benefits
in excess of reserves less policyholder participation), lapse result
(surrender charges and commission clawbacks) and reinsurance
result.

Our technical margin declined by € 47 MN to € 1,156 MN. This was driven
by additional reserving for an annuity take-up option in Italy and
increased provisions for unclaimed contracts in France. It was partly
offset by a favorable disability result in Switzerland.

Impact of change in DAC

Impact of change in DAC (deferred acquisition costs) includes effects
of change in DAC, unearned revenue reserves (URR) and value of busi-
ness acquired (VOBA). It represents the net impact of deferral and
amortization of acquisition costs and front-end loadings on operating
profit and therefore deviates from the IFRS financial statements.
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LIFE/HEALTH BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION'

€MN € MN
2015 2014 2015 2014
Capitalization of DAC 1,741 1,904 Statutory premiums? 66,903 67,331
Amortization, unlocking and true-up of DAC (2,073) (1,516) Ceded premiums written (747) (630)
Impact of change in DAC (332) 388 Change in unearned premiums (309) (544)
Statutory premiums (net) 65,847 66,157
Deposits from insurance and investment contracts (41,632) (41,643)
The impact of change in DAC turned from € 388 MN to minus € 332 MN. ~ _Premiums earned (net) 24,215 24,514
This was largely due to higher DAC amortization associated with our
variable annuity business in the United States, loss recognition in ~°adingsand L : 5667 5,285
South Korea in the second and third quarters of 2015, and a lower toa:fngs :rom premiums 7?:2 ?'22?
. . . . . . . 0adings frrom reserves B )
capitalization of DAC, due to a decline in the fixed-indexed annuity and —
. . . Unit-linked management fees 772 628
business in the United States. —
Investment margin
OPERATING PROFIT BY LINES OF BUSINESS (net of policyholder participation) 3,915 2,973
OPERATING PROFIT BY LINES OF BUSINESS Expenses (6,610) (6,522)
Acquisition expenses and commissions (4,915) (4,912)
€MN L. . L Aae
2015 014 Administrative and other expenses (1,695) (1,610)
Guaranteed savings & annuities ﬂ 2,369 Technical margin 1156 1.203
Protection & health 577 661
Unit-linked without guarantee SIS 298 Operating profit before change in bAc 4,128 2,939
Operating profit 3,796 3,327
Impact of change in bAc? (332) 388
Capitalization of DAC 1,741 1,904
The operating profit increase in the guaranteed savings & annuities Amortization, unlocking and true-up of DAC (2,073) (1,516)
line of business was largely driven by a higher investment marginin  operating profit 3,796 3,327
Germany and a higher investment spread margin in the United States.
Operating profit in the protection & health line of business declined, Non-operating items (6) (12)
mainly because of loss recognition in South Korea. Operating profit ~ Income before income taxes 3,790 3,316
in the unit-linked without guarantee line of business rose, primarily
due to higher fees in Italy. Income taxes (1,169) (996)
Net income 2,621 2,320
MARGIN ON RESERVES —
Margin on reserves? in basis points 67 65

In 2015, the margin on reserves was up from 65 to 67 basis points,
driven mainly by the increased investment margin.

Net income

Our netincomerose by € 301 MN to € 2,621 MN, in line with our operating
performance. We recorded higher non-operating income stemming
primarily from increased realizations on equity investments in Italy.
This was offset by the impairment of the goodwill allocated to the cash
generating unit Asia Pacific, mainly driven by steadily decreasing and
persisting low interest rates in South Korea. The slight increase in the
effective tax rate contributed negatively.
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1 — Profit sources are based on in-scope operating entities with coverage of 96.5% of statutory premiums.
Operating profit from operating entities that are not in scope is included in investment margin.

2 — Statutory premiums are gross premiums written from sales of life and health insurance policies as well
as gross receipts from sales of unit-linked and other investment-oriented products, in accordance with
the statutory accounting practices applicable in the insurer's home jurisdiction.

3 —Impact of change in DAC includes effects of change in DAC, URR, and VOBA. It represents the net impact
of deferral and amortization of acquisition costs and front-end loadings on operating profit and therefore
deviates from the financial statements.

4—Represents operating profit divided by the average of the current and previous year-end net reserves,
where net reserves equal reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses, reserves for insurance and
investment contracts, and financial liabilities for unit-linked contracts less reinsurance assets.
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LIFE/HEALTH OPERATING PROFIT BY PROFIT SOURCES AND LINES OF BUSINESS"

€MN
Guaranteed Protection Unit-linked
Life/Health savings & annuities & health without guarantee

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Loadings from premiums 3,751 3,566 1,885 1,868 1,582 1,440 284 258
Loadings from reserves 1,143 1,091 976 958 100 86 66 47
Unit-linked management fees 772 628 326 266 - - 446 363
Loadings and fees 5,667 5,285 3,187 3,091 1,683 1,525 797 668
Investment margin (net of policyholder participation) 3,915 2,973 3,794 2,876 62 43 60 54
Acquisition expenses and commissions (4,915) (4,912) (3,113) (3,336) (1,276) (1,194) (526) (382)
Administrative and other expenses (1,695) (1,610) (1,077) (1,091) (454) (376) (164) (144)
Expenses (6,610) (6,522) (4,190) (4,426) (1,730) (1,570) (690) (526)
Technical margin 1,156 1,203 425 532 621 587 109 84
Operating profit before change in bAC 4,128 2,939 3,216 2,073 636 585 276 281
Capitalization of DAC 1,741 1,904 1,144 1,414 372 374 224 116
Amortization, unlocking and true-up of bAC (2,073) (1,516) (1,515) (1,119) (431) (299) (128) (98)
Impact of change in bAC? (332) 388 (371) 296 (59) 75 97 18
Operating profit 3,796 3,327 2,846 2,369 577 661 373 298
1 — Profit sources are based on in-scope operating entities with coverage of 96.5% of statutory premiums. 2 —Impact of change in DAC includes effects of change in DAC, URR, and VOBA. It represents the net impact
Operating profit from operating entities that are not in scope is included in investment margin. of deferral and amortization of acquisition costs and front-end loadings on operating profit and therefore

deviates from the financial statements.
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Life/Health insurance operations by reportable segments

LIFE/HEALTH INSURANCE OPERATIONS BY REPORTABLE SEGMENTS
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€MN
Statutory premiums’ Premiums earned (net)  Operating profit (loss) ~ Margin on reserves? (BPS)
internal®
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Germany Life 17,742 19,014 17,742 19,014 10,520 11,468 1,257 1,079 60 55
Germany Health 3,257 3,245 3,257 3,245 3,257 3,244 214 209 75 77
Switzerland 1,842 1,655 1,617 1,655 501 519 75 83 50 62
Austria 399 405 399 405 317 325 33 37 66 80
Central & Eastern Europe 818 857 817 857 520 516 129 118 377 358
Poland 194 185 193 185 88 73 27 21 469 374
Slovakia 247 252 247 252 199 210 34 38 270 303
Czech Republic 114 147 113 147 67 74 15 15 249 253
Hungary 115 138 116 138 44 42 13 12 343 332
Other? 148 134 148 134 123 118 40 33 —° —5
German Speaking Countries
and Central & Eastern Europe 24,058 25,176 23,833 25,176 15,115 16,073 1,707 1,527 65 63
Italy 11,936 11,332 11,936 11,332 449 478 268 173 44 32
France 8,053 8,241 8,053 8,241 3,183 3,100 550 455 64 56
Benelux 2,239 2,518 2,239 2,518 522 520 121 132 72 85
Turkey 985 854 1,026 854 179 148 54 26 186 106
Greece 95 88 95 88 55 51 (3) - (95) —s
Africa 68 57 68 57 29 28 5 6 176 212
Middle East 215 176 191 176 170 132 32 24 382 352
Western & Southern Europe, Middle East,
Africa and India® 23,591 23,266 23,608 23,266 4,587 4,458 1,062 815 64 53
Spain 1,375 1,259 1,375 1,259 440 437 196 191 241 257
Portugal 283 247 283 247 86 83 21 22 351 374
Latin America 380 338 382 338 127 123 14 16 127 177
Iberia & Latin America 2,037 1,844 2,040 1,844 653 643 231 229 235 256
USA 10,475 11,840 8,753 11,840 1,193 984 841 656 87 81
Reinsurance LH 596 537 363 537 456 398 38 14 211 76
Russia 39 52 53 52 38 49 9 1 469 27
Global Insurance Lines & Anglo Markets 634 589 416 589 494 448 47 15 236 71
Asian-Pacific countries 6,769 5,732 6,067 5,732 2,170 1,909 (83) 104 (30) 43
South Korea 1,704 1,646 1,527 1,646 486 509 (244) (51) (202) (48)
Taiwan 2,706 2,026 2,376 2,026 293 201 6 2 8 3
Indonesia 701 700 662 700 296 285 74 61 488 478
Malaysia 451 423 447 423 203 187 20 18 145 147
Thailand 750 622 664 622 733 611 87 7 254 249
China 451 311 385 311 145 106 2 1 20 16
Other4 6 5 6 5 13 11 (28) 2 -5 —s
Global Life 5 4 5 4 3 1 - 1 —° -5
Asia Pacific 6,774 5,736 6,072 5,736 2,172 1,910 (83) 105 (30) 43
Consolidation? (666) (1,120) (666) (1,120) - - (10) (17) -5 -5
Total 66,903 67,331 64,055 67,331 24,215 24,514 3,796 3,327 67 65

1 — Statutory premiums are gross premiums written from sales of life and health insurance policies as well as
gross receipts from sales of unit-linked and other investment-oriented products, in accordance with the
statutory accounting practices applicable in the insurer's home jurisdiction.

2 — Represents operating profit (loss) divided by the average of the current and previous year-end net reserves,
where net reserves equal reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses, reserves for insurance and invest-

ment contracts, and financial liabilities for unit-linked contracts less reinsurance assets.

3 — Statutory premiums adjusted for foreign currency translation and (de-)consolidation effects.

4—Includes income and expense items from management holdings, smaller operating entities and consoli-
dations between countries in these regions.

5 — Presentation not meaningful.

6 — Includes € 34 MN operating profit for 2015 from an associated entity in Asia Pacific.
7 —Represents elimination of transactions between Allianz Group companies in different geographic regions.
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Asset Management

— Operating profit down 11.8% to € 2,297 MN.

— Cost-income ratio rose to 64.5%.

— Third-party net outflows substantially reduced in 2015, amounting to € 107 BN.
—Total assets under management at € 1,763 BN — a decline of € 38 BN,

Business segment overview

Key figures

Allianz offers asset management products and services for third-
party investors and the Allianz Group's insurance operations.
We serve a wide range of retail and institutional clients world-
wide with investment and distribution capacities in all major
markets. Based on total assets under management, we are one
of the largest asset managers in the world that manage third-
party assets with active investment strategies.

KEY FIGURES ASSET MANAGEMENT

€MN
2015 2014

Operating revenues 6,479 6,388
Operating profit 2,297 2,603
Cost-income ratio in % 64.5 59.2
Net income 1,449 1,621
Total assets under management
as of 31 December in € BN 1,763 1,801
thereof: Third-party assets under management

as of 31 December in € BN 1,276 1,313

Assets under management

Total assets under management decreased by € 38 BN to € 1,763 BN,
mainly driven by third-party assets under management (AuM) net
outflows and negative effects from Market and Other, but largely offset
by favorable effects from foreign currency translation. Of total AuM,
€1,276 BN related to third-party AuM and € 487 BN to Allianz Group
assets.

In 2015, we recorded total AuM net outflows of € 116 BN. Net out-
flows from third-party AuM amounted to € 107 BN. This was strongly
driven by piMCO in the United States, primarily from traditional fixed
income products. However, since the end of 2014, third-party AuM net
outflows at piMco have significantly receded with each quarter,
amounting to only € 11 BN in the fourth quarter of 2015. Allianz Global
Investors (Allianzar) recorded strong third-party net inflows in 2015.
These were primarily due to net inflows in Europe, continuing
AllianzGr's trend of third-party net inflows for the twelfth consecutive
quarter.
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Unfavorable effects from Market and Other, amounting to
€34 BN, also contributed to the decrease of total AuM. Negative effects
of €41 BN at PIMCO — mainly from fixed income assets — were only
partially offset by positive effects at AllianzGi of € 8 BN.

We recorded a decline in total AuM of € 13 BN, reported as con-
solidation, deconsolidation and other adjustments. This was mainly
due to an adjustment of third-party AuM related to a joint venture
and a correction in reporting of notional accounts.

Mainly as a result of the depreciation of the Euro against the u.s.
Dollar, which declined from 1.21 at the beginning of the year to 1.09 on
31 December 2015, we recorded favorable foreign currency trans-
lation effects of € 125 BN.
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€BN

Total AuM 1,572 229" 0
(as of 31/12/2014) |

Net flows?

Market and Other?

Consolidation, deconsoli-
dation and other adjustments

F/X effects +125
Total AuM 1,385 176 1514 51°
(asof31/12/2015) 1,763
0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000

M Fixedincome M Equities M Multi-assets Other M Changes

1 — Fixed income, equities and other definitions based on legal entity view as of 31 December 2014. There-
fore, 2014 and 2015 figures are not comparable.

2 — From the first quarter of 2015, net flows represent the sum of new client assets, additional contributions
from existing clients — including dividend reinvestment — withdrawals of assets from, and termination
of, client accounts and distributions to investors. Reinvested dividends amounted to € 18 BN.

3 —From the first quarter of 2015, Market and Other represents current income earned on, and changes in
the fair value of, securities held in client accounts. It also includes dividends from net investment income

and from net realized capital gains to investors of open ended mutual funds and of closed end funds.

4 — Multi-assets is a combination of several asset classes (e.g. bonds, stocks, cash and real property) used as
an investment. Multi-assets class investments increase the diversification of an overall portfolio by dis-
tributing investments throughout several asset classes.

5 — Otheris composed of other asset classes than equity, fixed income and multi-assets, e.g. money markets,
commodities, real estate investment trusts, infrastructure investments, private equity investments,
hedge funds, etc.

In the following section we focus on the development of third-party
assets under management.

As of 31 December 2015, the share of third-party AuM by business
unit was 77.3% attributable to PIMCO and 22.7% attributable to
AllianzGl.

At the beginning of 2015 we enhanced our asset class reporting
from a legal entity view to a more granular asset class split composed
of fixed income, equities, multi-assets, and other. Furthermore, we
replaced the retail and institutional asset split by an investment
vehicle view, comprised of mutual funds and separate accounts.!

Based on the asset class split on 31 December 2015, the third-
party AuM share of fixed income amounted to 74.0%, reflecting the
high share of fixed income assets at PIMCO. 11.8% in equity assets was
due to the notable equity share at AllianzG1. Multi-assets and other
accounted for 10.5% and 3.7 %, respectively.

1 —Mutual funds are investment vehicles (in the United States, investment companies subject to the u.s.
code; in Germany, vehicles subject to the “Standard-Anlagerichtlinien des Fonds” Investmentgesetz)
where the money of several individual investors is pooled into one account to be managed by the asset
manager, e.g. open-end funds, closed-end funds. Separate accounts are investment vehicles where
the money of a single investor is directly managed by the asset manager in a separate dedicated account
(e.g. public or private institutions, high net worth individuals, and corporates).
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The share of third-party assets between mutual funds and sepa-
rate accounts changed in favor of separate accounts, compared to the
end of 2014 — with mutual funds at 58.3% and separate accounts at
41.7%.

THIRD-PARTY ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT BY REGION/COUNTRY?

as of 31 December 2015 [31 December 2014] in %

Asia-Pacific 11.3[10.8]

g

Europe 32.7[29.2]

America? 56.0[60.0]

1 — Based on the location of the asset management company.
2 — "America” consists of the United States, Canada and Brazil (€ 699 BN, € 14 BN and € 1 BN third-party AuM
as of 31 December 2015, respectively).
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The regional allocation of third-party AuM shifted in favor of Europe
and —to alesser extent — the Asia-Pacific region. This was mainly due
to strong third-party net outflows in the United States and third-party
net inflows at AllianzaI in Europe and was supported by market
effects. It was only partially offset by positive foreign currency trans-
lation effects.

THREE-YEAR ROLLING INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE OF PIMCO AND ALLIANZGI'

as of 31 Decemberin %

PIMCO AllianzGlI
90 88
69 70
55 55
(10) (12)
31 30
€1} (a5) (5) (30)
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015

B Outperforming third-party assets under management
B Underperforming third-party assets under management

1 —Three-year rolling investment performance reflects the mandate-based and volume-weighted three-
year investment success of all third-party assets that are managed by Allianz Asset Management's
portfolio-management units. For separate accounts and mutual funds, the investment success (valued
on the basis of the closing prices) is compared with the investment success prior to cost deduction of
the respective benchmark, based on various metrics. For some mutual funds, the investment success,
reduced by fees, is compared with the investment success of the median of the respective Morningstar
peer group (a position in the first and second quartile is equivalent to outperformance).

The overall three-year rolling investment performance of our Asset
Management business decreased, but remained on a high level, with
69% of third-party assets outperforming their respective benchmarks
(31 December 2014: 84%). The decrease was mainly driven by PIMCO’s
rolling investment performance, which was impacted by strong
quarters of 2012 rolling off and more challenging quarters of 2015 roll-
ing in. 69% of PIMCO third-party assets outperformed their respective
benchmarks. AllianzGl improved significantly with 70% of third-party
assets outperforming their respective benchmarks.
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Operating revenues

Our operating revenues increased by € 92 MN — or 1.4% — to € 6,479 MN.
Before the positive effect from foreign currency translation, which
was mainly driven by the sharp depreciation of the Euro against the
U.8. Dollar, operating revenues decreased by 11.4% on an internal basis’.

Net fee and commission income went up 1.7 % to € 6,488 MN. How-
ever, excluding the positive effect from foreign currency translation,
this was a decrease of 11.7%. The decrease was mostly due to a drop
of 16.3%in our third-party AuM-driven revenues. This was mainly due
to lower average third-party AuM, which declined by 15.9% before
foreign currency translation effects. The reduced third-party AuM
primarily resulted from third-party net outflows at PiMco and a nega-
tive market return especially impacting fixed income assets. More-
over, third-party AuM-driven revenues were also impacted — albeit to
a lesser extent — by a decline in our third-party AuM-driven margin.
This was primarily driven by a lower share of mutual funds in our
average third-party AuM. Our performance fees grew by € 331 MN to
€607 MN. The increase was € 253 MN before foreign currency trans-
lation effects and can mainly be attributed to carried interest from
the redemption of a large private fund at PiMCO. A strong growth in
performance fees at Allianzar in the United States and Europe also
contributed to this development.

Our income from financial assets and liabilities carried at fair
value through income (net) dropped by € 12 MN, mainly because of
foreign currency translation and valuation effects.

1 — Operating revenues adjusted for foreign currency translation and (de-)consolidation effects. In 2015, the
average exchange rate of the u.s. Dollar to Euro was 1.11 (2014: 1.33).
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Operating profit

Our operating profit went down by € 306 MN —or 11.8 % — t0 € 2,297 MN.
On aninternal basis', the decrease was 23.5 %, mainly driven by lower
third-party AuM-driven revenues due to lower average third-party
AuM and —to alesser extent —lower third-party AuM-driven margins,
partly offset by higher performance fees and lower operating expenses.

Administrative expenses rose 9.3%to € 4,141 MN. However, adjusted
for foreign currency translation effects, they went down by 5.3 %.This
was mainly driven by lower personnel expenses —including a 11.2%
drop in variable compensation — and to a smaller proportion due to
lower non-personnel expenses. Nevertheless, administrative expenses
were impacted by several special items, in particular by the Special
Performance Award (spa), which was introduced in the fourth quarter
of 2014 to secure performance and retain talent at PIMCO.

Restructuring charges of € 41 MN were an additional burden for
operating expenses. They were driven by a restructuring program at
Allianzal, which started in the third quarter of 2015 and aims to posi-
tion AllianzGI as a global investment leader.

Our cost-income ratio went up 5.3 percentage points to 64.5%. The
SPA contributed 2.0 percentage points? and the restructuring pro-
gram at AllianzGI contributed 0.6 percentage points of the upswing.

1 — Operating profit adjusted for foreign currency translation and (de-)consolidation effects. In 2015, the
average exchange rate of the u.s. Dollar to Euro was 1.11 (2014: 1.33).
2 — Net of the impact on variable compensation.
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Net iIncome

Our net income declined by € 172 MN — or 10.6 % — to € 1,449 MN. This
represents a drop of 22.6 % before the effect from foreign currency
translation and is largely consistent with our operating profit devel-
opment.

ASSET MANAGEMENT BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

€MN

2015 2014
Management and loading fees 7,370 7,505
Performance fees 607 275
Other 34 46
Fee and commission income 8,011 7,825
Commissions (1,440) (1,301)
Other (83) (145)
Fee and commission expenses (1,523) (1,445)
Net fee and commiission income 6,488 6,380
Net interest income? (5) 3)
Income from financial assets and liabilities
carried at fair value through income (net) (8) 5
Other income 4 6
Operating revenues 6,479 6,388
Administrative expenses (net),
excluding acquisition-related expenses (4,141) (3,787)
Restructuring charges (41) 3
Operating expenses (4182) (3,784)
Operating profit 2,297 2,603
Non-operating items 31 (15)
Income before income taxes 2,266 2,588
Income taxes (817) (967)
Net income 1,449 1,621
Cost-income ratio? in % 64.5 59.2
1 — Represents interest and similar income less interest expenses.
2 — Represents operating expenses divided by operating revenues.
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Corporate and Other

Operating loss increased by € 124 MN to € 945 MN, due to higher centralized
pension costs.

Business segment overview Key figures

Corporate and Other encompasses the reportable segments  Kev FIGURES CORPORATE AND OTHER!
Holding & Treasury, Banking, and Alternative Investments. Hold-

ing & Treasury includes the management of and support for the o 2015 2014
Allianz Group's businesses through its strategy, risk, corporate  “5crating revenues 1899 1750
finance, treasury, financial reporting, controlling, communica-  (perating expenses (2,844) (2,571
tion, legal, human resources, technology, and other functions.  operating result (945) (820)
Our banking products offered in Germany, Italy, France, the
Netherlands, and Bulgaria complement our insurance product ~ Netincome (loss) (1,003) (657)
portfolio. We also provide global alternative investment man-
agement services in the private equity, real estate, renewable
energy, and infrastructure sectors, mainly on behalf of the
Allianz Group. KEY FIGURES REPORTABLE SEGMENTS
€MN
2015 2014
HOLDING & TREASURY
Operating revenues 562 469
Operating expenses (1,639) (1,386)
Operating result (1,076) 917)
BANKING
Operating revenues 1,127 1,114
Operating expenses (1,032) (1,047)
Operating result 94 66
ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS
Operating revenues 213 176
Operating expenses (176) (146)
Operating result 37 30

1 — Consolidation included. For further information about our Corporate and Other business segment, please
refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Earnings summary

Our operating result decreased by € 124 MN to a loss of € 945 MN.
Improvements in Banking and Alternative Investments were more
than offset by a decline in Holding & Treasury, which mainly resulted
from higher centralized pension costs.

Our net loss deteriorated by € 346 MN to € 1,003 MN since the effect
in our non-operating result from an adapted cost allocation scheme!
for the pension provisions was € 335 MN lower than the previous
year’s one-off benefit from pension revaluation with our German sub-
sidiaries?.

Operating earnings summaries
by reportable segment

HOLDING & TREASURY

Our operating loss increased by € 159 MN to € 1,076 MN. This was largely
due to an €181 MN increase in administrative expenses, mainly
resulting from higher centralized pension expenses — partly offset by
arelated € 31 MN increase in other income.

Administrative expenses (net), excluding acquisition-related
expenses, went up by € 181 MN to € 917 MN. Most of this increase was
related to higher centralized pension costs, due to both the adapted
cost allocation scheme! for the pension provisions between German
subsidiaries and Allianz SE and the net effect of decreased discount
rates and other assumption changes. Various smaller effects, includ-
ing higher 1T expenses and the positive effect from recharging of
expenses for the implementation of Solvency 11 to our operating
business segments, almost offset each other.

Otherincome increased from € 116 MN to € 148 MN. Other income
in2014included € 116 MN resulting from the policyholder participation
related to the pension revaluation with our German subsidiaries2. In
2015, we recorded € 148 MN of other income, resulting from policy-
holder participation related to the above-mentioned adapted cost
allocation scheme for pension provisions.

Our net interest result improved by € 33 MN to a loss of € 19 MN.
Interest and similar income decreased by € 43 MN to € 222 MN. This was
mainly driven by the absence of income from associated companies,
which is recognized within the insurance business segments from
2015 onwards. A drop in interest income triggered by lower interest
yields was more than offset by higher dividend income. As a result of
lower internal borrowing and interest rates, our interest expenses,
excluding interest expenses from external debt, decreased by € 76 MN
to €241 MN.

1 — For further information on the adapted cost allocation scheme for the pension provisions, please refer to
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

2 —Respective offsetting effects were recorded within our other business segments, mainly within Property-
Casualty. For further information on one-off effects from pension revaluation, please refer to note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Our net fee and commission result improved by € 21 MN to a loss
of € 184 MN. This improvement was primarily driven by a disposal
gain from certain IT infrastructure assets.

Operating income from financial assets and liabilities carried at
fairvalue through income (net) dropped from income of € 27 MN to a
loss of € 28 MN. This was due to both a negative net effect of foreign
currency movements and related hedge positions as well as lower fair
values of certain fund investments.

Investment expenses were up by € 4 MN to € 76 MN.

BANKING

Our operating profit increased by € 28 MN to € 94 MN, with all Banking
units contributing positive results. The increase was driven by both
lower administrative expenses and higher net fee and commission
result and was partly offset by higherloan loss provisions and restruc-
turing charges.

Administrative expenses decreased by € 29 MN to € 409 MN as a
result of reduced variable remuneration in Italy and Germany — and
to a lesser extent fewer staff.

Our net interest, fee and commission result increased by € 15 MN
to €559 MN. Our net fee and commission result was up by € 16 MN to
€225 MN. This was mainly due to higher management and perfor-
mance fee income, in line with higher assets under management in
Italy. Our net interest result remained unchanged at € 334 MN (2014:
€335 MN). However, this result benefited from a special dividend,
whereas the low-interest yield environment put pressure on our
interest rate margin in almost all Banking units.

Our loan loss provisions increased by € 15 MN to € 60 MN. Higher
general loan loss allowances in Bulgaria were the largest driver of this
increase.

We recorded restructuring charges of €9 MN (2014: release of
€3 MN) mainly related to the modernization and digitalization pro-
gram “OLB 2019” as announced by the Oldenburgische Landesbank in
October 2015.

Our operating income from financial assets and liabilities carried
at fair value through income (net), which includes trading income,
was up by € 6 MN to € 16 MN. This was due primarily to a better trading
result within our German banking business.

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS

Our operating profit increased by € 7 MN to € 37 MN. This was almost
entirely driven by the net effect of € 35 MN higher fee and commission
income and a €28 MN increase in administrative expenses. Both
developments were in line with the increased assets under manage-
ment.
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Outlook 2016

— Global recovery is set to continue — only moderate acceleration in emerging

market growth.

— Allianz Group operating profit outlook in the range of € 10.5 BN, plus or minus

€ 0.5 BN.

Overview: 2015 results versus previous year outlook?

2015 RESULTS VERSUS PREVIOUS YEAR OUTLOOK FOR 2015

OUTLOOK 2015 — AS PER ANNUAL REPORT 2014

RESULTS 2015

ALLIANZ GROUP Operating profit of € 10.4 BN, plus or minus € 0.4 BN.

Operating profit of € 10.7 BN.

Protection of shareholders’ investments, while
continuing to provide attractive returns and dividends.

Return on equity (RoE) at 10.7 % (2014: 11.2%). RoE excluding unrealized gains/losses on
bonds, net of shadow deferred acquisition costs (DAC), amounted to 12.5% (2014:13.0%).
Proposed dividend at € 7.30 (2014: € 6.85) per share. Stable payout ratio of 50 %.

Selective profitable growth.

Property-Casualty with continued sound risk selection and selective external growth,
Life/Health with growing asset base and solid new business margins, but Asset Management
with net outflows.

PROPERTY-CASUALTY Growth in gross premiums written by
approximately 3.0%.

Including a strong positive foreign currency impact, gross premiums written increased by
6.8% driven by both internal growth (of 2.9%) and external acquisitions.

Operating profit in the range of € 5.2 BN to € 5.8 BN.

Operating profit of € 5.6 BN is above the mid-point of our target range, including a higher
than expected investment income and a rather low impact from natural catastrophes, but
worse than expected results in Argentina. The progress of our turn-around programs at
Fireman’s Fund and in Brazil was slower than initially expected.

Combined ratio below 96 % over the cycle.

Combined ratio was 94.6 %.

Pressure on operating investment income (net) due
to reinvestments in a low interest rate environment.

Operating investment income (net) increased slightly by € 54 MN compared to the prior year.

LIFE/HEALTH Prioritizing profitability over growth, taking further
product and pricing actions to address the prolonged low
yield environment. As a result, revenues are expected to
be in the range of € 59.0 BN to € 65.0 BN.

Revenues at € 66.9 BN — above target range — driven by significant growth in unit-linked
premiums as a result of changes in our product strategy to shift towards unit-linked and
capital-efficient products, as well as positive foreign currency effects. This more than offset
the reduced sales of traditional products in major European countries.

Operating profit between € 3.0 BN and € 3.6 BN.

Operating profit of € 3.8 BN — above target range — driven by higher level of net harvesting
from our portfolio de-risking actions and favorable foreign currency effects, mainly from
u.s. Dollar appreciation. This more than compensated for the loss recognition in South Korea.

Margin on reserves between 50 and 70 basis points.

Margin on reserves at 67 basis points.

Pressure on investment income due to low interest rates
and continued capital market uncertainty.

Operating investment result increased 17 % to € 20.4 BN, supported by high level of realized
gains from our portfolio de-risking actions.

ASSET MANAGEMENT Slight decrease in total assets under management (AuM)
due to continued, but receding, expected net outflows
at PIMCO.

Decrease of total AuM by 2.1 % driven by net outflows at PIMCO of € 132.3 BN (2014: €229.2 BN).
Third-party net outflows at PIMco were receding quarter by quarter, amounting to € 11.4 BN
in the fourth quarter of 2015. Overall negative market return also contributed to this
development. However, it was partially compensated for by positive foreign currency impact
and net inflows at AllianzGl.

Operating profit in the range of € 2.2 BN to € 2.8 BN.

Operating profit of € 2.3 BN — below the mid-point of the outlook range mainly due to lower
AuM-driven revenues, lower than expected performance fees, and a less flexible expense
base. This was partially compensated for by positive foreign currency impacts.

Underlying cost-income ratio of 60.0% or below.

Cost-income ratio deteriorated 5.3 percentage points to 64.5 %. Adjusted for Special
Performance Award at PIMco and restructuring charges related to Allianzcl 2.0, underlying
cost-income ratio was 61.9%.

1 — For more detailed information on the previous year outlook for 2015, please see the Annual Report 2014 starting on page 104.
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Fconomic outlook’

At the beginning of 2016, the global economic picture is, broadly
speaking, split between industrialized countries and emerging mar-
kets. On the one hand, economic activity in industrialized countries
is likely to remain quite solid. In the United States, domestic demand
looks set to firm up further. In the Eurozone, the economic recovery
is likely to continue, supported by improved competitiveness and
lower energy prices. With real gross domestic product expected to
increase by 1.7%, growth will be slightly higher than in 2015. Supported
by improving economic conditions in the Eurozone and a favorable
environment for private consumption, the German economy could
expand by more than 2%in 2016. On the other hand, growth prospects
for several major emerging market countries remain subdued — for
both cyclical and structural reasons. Following a severe recession in
Brazil and Russia last year, economic activity is expected to gradually
stabilize in the course of 2016. Overall, global output is likely to
expand by about2.7%in 2016, compared with 2.4%in 2015. Industrial-
ized countries are expected to register gross domestic product
growth of 2.0%, while in emerging markets it could increase to 3.7%
from the 3.3% seen in 2015, which was the lowest economic expansion
since the great recession of 2009. At the global level, inflation is likely
toremain very low, with a few exceptions in Latin America and Eastern
Europe, where inflation rates have risen sharply for country-specific
reasons (for example in Venezuela and in Ukraine).

As in 2015, financial markets will primarily be driven by mone-
tary policy and geopolitical tensions, but also by economic and polit-
ical developments in major emerging market countries such as
China. On the monetary policy front, the Federal Reserve is likely to
continue to hike interest rates very cautiously this year. By contrast,
the European Central Bank is expected to keep key interest rates at
present or even lower levels throughout 2016. We also do not see any
trimming of the European Central Bank’s unconventional measures
before the end of this year.

Slightly rising yields on 10-year U.S. government bonds, along
with growing speculation towards year-end about the timing and
manner in which the European Central Bank exits from its bond-
purchasing program in 2017, will exert some upward pressure on
European government benchmark bond yields. However, with short-
term rates practically at zero, there are limited prospects of markedly
higher yields on longer-term bonds. We predict yields on 10-year
German and U.S. government bonds to climb modestly towards 1%
and around 2 %, respectively, by the end of 2016. In the coming months
anumber of factors, including the expected rate increases by the Fed-
eral Reserve, will weigh on the Euro. However, with the economic
recovery in the Eurozone on a firmer footing, the Euro will gain sup-
port. We expect the year-end U.s. Dollar to Euro exchange rate to be
marginally above last year’s closing level of 1.09.

1—The information presented in the sections Economic outlook, Insurance industry outlook and Asset
management industry outlook is based on our own estimates.
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Insurance industry outlook

2016 is set to become another challenging year for the insurance
industry. The big picture — characterized by only modest premium
growth, low interest rates, volatile financial markets, new regulatory
burdens and digital transformation — will not change. As a conse-
quence, industry profitability will remain under pressure and restruc-
turing will gather pace.

However, that does not mean 2016 will be identical to the previ-
ous year. For example, we expect to see interest rates starting to rise
— but only slightly: overall, the interest rate environment will con-
tinue to present a headwind for the industry. Another important
change is the implementation of Solvency 11 in Europe. This brings
more clarity on capital positions, acting as a possible catalyst for
more industry consolidation. High pent-up demand, accommodative
government policies — in particular in the life sector — and general
trends like urbanization continue to underpin relatively strong insur-
ance premium growth in emerging markets. Therefore, we expect
these markets to outgrow advanced markets in the foreseeable
future, although our outlook has become more cautious.

In the property-casualty sector, we anticipate stable premium growth
in advanced markets. While the ongoing recovery will support
demand, pricing is becoming a growing concern. Despite the region-
wide economic pickup, Western Europe is set to remain the laggard
in terms of global premium growth. On the other hand —as in previous
years —we expect very strong performances in emerging Asia. There,
government efforts — particularly in China - to raise insurance pene-
tration across the board are starting to pay off. Overall, we expect
global premium revenue to rise between 4.0% and 5.0% in 2016 (in
nominal terms, adjusted for foreign currency translation effects); a
good one percentage point of this is attributable to China alone. Due
to the challenging pricing outlook, underwriting profitability may
come under pressure, especially if financial losses resulting from
natural catastrophes return to historical averages. At the same time,
investment returns will remain weak, despite the expected rise in
interest rates.

In the life sector, the overall picture is quite similar — although pre-
mium growth is much more volatile than in the property-casualty
sector. In the coming year, this volatility may be exacerbated further
by new regulations, changing government policies and ensuing shifts
in the product mix. One thing, however, is unlikely to change: The
highest premium growth is expected in emerging Asia, where coun-
tries such as China and Indonesia should continue with high, in many
cases double-digit growth. Rising incomes and social security reforms
remain strong engines for growing insurance demand. All in all, we
expect global premium revenue to rise in the 4.0—5.0% range in 2016
(in nominal terms, adjusted for foreign currency translation effects).
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Looking at profitability, there is no expected relief from the pains
associated with the lowyield environment and regulation. As a result,
the rebalancing of investment portfolios will continue as well as the
shift in the product mix. New, less capital-intensive products, mixing
unit-linked product characteristics with some sort of return guaran-
tees, will increasingly replace the old-style savings products. At the
same time, mastering the digital transformation is becoming more
and more crucial. This mix of strategic challenges will not only spur
industry consolidation but could also act as a drag on overall profit-
ability.

Asset management industry outlook

The markets widely expect the u.s. Federal Reserve to continue to
increase interest rates slowly in 2016 and to potentially start selling
the bonds accumulated in its post-crisis bond-buying program grad-
ually throughout the year. However, these actions are dependent on
the unemployment rate and inflation levels in the United States. In
addition, the extension of the policy of low interest rates and quanti-
tative easing programs in the Eurozone and Japan in 2016 is very
likely. Thus, investors will continue to try to anticipate the central
banks’ moves and measures and we expect volatility to persist or
even increase in equity and fixed income markets in 2016. Global
market volatility could also be fueled by ongoing concerns about the
economic development in China, a further decrease in commodity
prices (such as crude oil) and a potential unstable geopolitical situ-
ation in certain regions. We have seen many of these factors combine
in the opening weeks of 2016 and the resulting impacts on financial
markets and policymakers worldwide.

However, bonds should remain attractive if longer-term trends
towards moderately higher interest rates — especially in the United
States —are coupled with global demographic trends. For the growing
number of retirees in developed countries looking for a stable stream
ofincome, bonds are particularly interesting. This also holds true for
liability-driven investors.

Although we see a more challenging environment for the asset
management industry in 2016, prospects for further growth in almost
all classes in the asset management industry are buoyed by these
positive economic conditions as well as trends in client demand.
However, profitability in the industry is under pressure from con-
tinuous flows into passive products and rising distribution and/or
marketing costs that are tightening operating margins. Measures
aimed at increasing regulatory oversight and reporting could also
affect profitability in the asset management sector.

In order to continue growing, it is vital that asset managers have
sufficient business volumes, maintain efficient operations and keep
investment results above benchmark levels.
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Outlook for the Allianz Group

As discussed earlier, world economic growth is expected to be mod-
erately higher in 2016. Growth dynamics, however, vary significantly
across the globe and there are clear risks for 2016. Geopolitical ten-
sions, a renewed flare-up of the European sovereign debt crisis and
currency or trade wars could all jeopardize economic development.
However, the outlook provided here assumes the absence of such
shocks.

Overview: outlook and assumptions 2016

OUTLOOK 2016

ALLIANZ GROUP Operating profit of € 10.5 BN, plus or minus € 0.5 BN.

Protection of shareholders’ investments, while continuing
to provide attractive returns and dividends.
Selective profitable growth.

PROPERTY-CASUALTY  Growth in gross premiums written of approximately 2 %.

Operating profit in the range of € 5.2 BN to € 5.8 BN.

Progress towards our combined ratio ambition of 94 %
or better by 2018.

Pressure on operating investment income (net) to continue
due to reinvestments in a consistently low interest rate
environment.

LIFE/HEALTH Prioritizing profitability over growth and continuing to shift
new business mix towards unit-linked, capital efficient and
protection products. Addressing customer needs in the
prolonged low yield environment. Revenues are expected to

be in the range of € 62.0 BN to € 68.0 BN.
Operating profit between € 3.3 BN and € 3.9 BN.
RoE! between 9.0% and 11.0%.

Pressure on investment income due to low interest rates
and continued capital market uncertainty.

ASSET MANAGEMENT  Slight increase in total AuM due to positive market return,

supported by a return to positive net flows at Pimco and
continued solid net inflows at AllianzGl.

Operating profit in the range of € 1.9 BN to € 2.5 BN.
Cost-income ratio of well below 65 %.

1 — Excluding unrealized gains/losses on bonds net of shadow DAC.
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ASSUMPTIONS
Our outlook assumes no significant deviations from the following
underlying assumptions:

— Global recovery to continue.
— Subdued growth prospects for several major emerging markets.
— Modest rise in interest rates expected.

— A 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates would,
respectively, either raise or lower operating profits by approx-
imately € 0.1 BN in the first year following the rate change. This
does not include fair value changes in interest rate-sensitive
positions that are reported in our income statement.

— No major disruptions of capital markets.

— Nodisruptive fiscal or regulatory interference.

— Level of claims from natural catastrophes at expected average
levels.

— Average U.s. Dollar to Euro exchange rate of 1.11.

— A10%weakening or strengthening of the U.S. Dollar versus our
planned exchange rate of 1.11 to the Euro would have a negative
or positive impact on operating profits of approximately
€0.3 BN, respectively.

Although the global economy is showing signs of recovery, invest-
ment results are likely to remain under pressure due to low interest
rates. This will be offset by an increase in our operating asset base.

Management's assessment of
expected revenues and earnings for 2016

In 2015, our total revenues amounted to € 125.2 BN, representing a
2.4% increase and a 2.1% decrease on a nominal and internal basis,
respectively, compared to last year. We expect a rather flat revenue
development in 2016, with Property-Casualty advancing and Asset
Management revenues slightly decreasing. Life/Health revenues are
likely to be under pressure due to our selective focus on profitable
growth.

In 2015, our operating profit was in the upper end of our target
range, hitting € 10.7 BN. In 2016, we envisage an operating profit of
€10.5 BN, plus or minus € 0.5 BN, as we expect a slightly lower operating
profit in the Property-Casualty, Life/Health and Asset Management
business segments and a slight improvement in our Corporate and
Other business segment.
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Our net income attributable to shareholders increased, reaching
€6.6 BN in 2015. Consistent with our disclosure practice in the past and
given the susceptibility of our non-operating results to adverse capi-
tal market developments, we do not provide a precise outlook for net
income. However, since our outlook presumes no major disruptions
of capital markets, we anticipate a rather stable net income for 2016.

PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSURANCE

We expect our revenues to increase by approximately 2% in 2016
(2015: 6.8%), supported by favorable volume and - to a lesser extent
— price effects as well as external growth. This growth is expected to
be supported by the acquisition of the commercial portfolio of Aegon,
strengthening our position in the attractive Benelux Property-Casualty
market.

Premium growth in 2016 is expected mainly from our European
core markets, including the United Kingdom, Germany, and Italy. Top
line development will be further supported by positive trends at
Allianz Worldwide Partners, bundling our B2B2C business activities.

We believe the overall slow rise in prices we witnessed in a num-
ber of markets in 2015 will continue in 2016. However, as in previous
years, we will keep our focus on achieving strong underwriting results
by adhering to our strict underwriting discipline and will be willing
to accept a lower top line if target margins cannot be achieved.

In 2015, our combined ratio was at 94.6 %. In 2016, we expect prog-
ress towards our 2018 ambition of 94% or better. This rests on our
expectation that the aggregate effect of improvements in pricing,
claims management, and productivity will compensate for any
underlying claims inflation. Despite the high volatility of natural
catastrophes in recent years, we have assumed such claims will be in
line with their expected average level in 2016.

As the low interest rate environment is likely to persist, invest-
ment income will remain under pressure due to the rather short
duration of investments in the Property-Casualty business segment.
We will continue to take measures to adapt our investment strategy
to ongoing market conditions.

Overall, we expect our 2016 operating profit to be in the range of
€5.2 BN t0 € 5.8 BN (2015: € 5.6 BN).
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LIFE/HEALTH INSURANCE

In 2015, our operating profit of € 3.8 BN exceeded our target range —
due to a higher level of net harvesting from our active portfolio de-
risking actions. This more than compensated for the loss recognition
in South Korea. For 2016, we expect operating profit in our Life/Health
business segment to be between € 3.3 BN and € 3.9 BN.

As communicated at the Capital Markets Day in November 2015,
RoE! will be one of the major key performance indicators (kpis) for the
steering of our Life business. In 2016 we expect RoE! in our Life/Health
business segment to be between 9.0% and 11.0%.

In 2016 we will focus on the new business mix as well as in-force
management in order to address customer needs in light of the pro-
longed low yield environment and improve shareholder returns. We
will continue to move our new business mix towards unit-linked,
capital-efficient and protection products and will work on product
and distribution actions. We will actively manage in-force business
and work on expense management, asset/liability management, and
crediting strategies in order to mitigate the impacts of the difficult
market conditions, particularly low interest rates.

It must be noted, however, that market volatility, along with the
level of net harvesting, can significantly affect the Life/Health busi-
ness segment results and make precise predictions difficult.

ASSET MANAGEMENT
Although we see a more challenging environment for the asset man-
agement industry in 2016 compared to previous years, we expect
positive net flows at pIMcO in 2016 and continued solid net inflows at
AllianzGI1. Market returns are expected to contribute moderately to a
positive development of total AuM. Management and loading fees as
well as performance fees are expected to decrease slightly. Lower
operating expenses are expected to only partially offset the impact of
lower operating revenues. Therefore, we envisage our operating profit
to be in the range of € 1.9 BN and € 2.5 BN in 2016 (2015: € 2.3 BN).

In 2016, we expect a cost income ratio of well below 65 % (2015:
64.5%), supported by our focus on expense discipline and operational
excellence. Mid-term we expect our cost-income ratio to be at 60%.

CORPORATE AND OTHER

Our Corporate and Other business segment recorded an operating
loss of € 0.9 BN in 2015. Due to the expectation of an improving operat-
ing result of the Holding & Treasury reportable segment — mainly
attributable to lower administrative expenses —we predict an operat-
ing loss in the range of € 0.7 BN to € 0.9 BN for Corporate and Other
(including consolidation) in 2016.

1 — Excluding unrealized gains/losses on bonds net of shadow DAC.
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Financing and liquidity
development and capitalization

The Allianz Group maintains a healthy liquidity position combined
with superior financial strength and capitalization well above what
supervisory authorities currently require.

We expect to have steady access to financial markets at reason-
able cost in order to maintain our strong financial flexibility. This is
supported by prudent steering of our liquidity resources and a matu-
rity profile focusing on a long-dated average remaining term. Based
on current interest rate expectations, our average capital market
financing costs in 2016 should be broadly in line with 2015.

We closely monitor the capital positions of the Group and at the
operating entity level. Additionally, we will continue to optimize our
interest rate and spread sensitivities through asset/liability manage-
ment and life product design.

Expected dividend development?

In November 2014, the Board of Management and the Supervisory
Board of Allianz st decided on a new allocation of net income in its
dividend policy. Starting with the financial year 2014, the proposed
regular pay-out to Allianz shareholders has been 50 % of Allianz Group
net income (attributable to shareholders).

In the interest of dividend continuity, the objective is to keep the
dividend per share at least at the level paid in the previous year. The
dividend policy of the Allianz Group continues to aim for a healthy
balance between an attractive yield and investments in profitable
growth. To assure capital discipline, management further intends to
evaluate and pay out any unused capital budget earmarked for exter-
nal growth every three years. The first evaluation will take place at the
end of 2016. Out of a budget of € 2.4 BN for external growth (equals 20%
of the net income attributable to shareholders for the years 2013 and
2014), we have invested a total net amount (including risk capital
requirements and net of divestments) of € 0.9 BN in 2014 and 2015. The
dividend policy is subject to a sustainable Solvency 1 ratio above
160%. This policy is reflected in our proposed dividend of € 7.30 per
share.

2 —This dividend policy represents the current intention of the Board of Management and the Supervisory
Board and may be revised in the future. Also, the dividend payment in any given year is subject to specific
dividend proposals by the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board, each of which may elect to
deviate from this dividend policy if appropriate under the then prevailing circumstances, as well as to the
decision of the Annual General Meeting.
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Management's overall assessment
of the current economic situation of
the Allianz Group

Overall, at the date of issuance of this Annual Report and given cur-
rent information regarding natural catastrophes and capital market
trends — in particular foreign currency, interest rates and equities —
the Board of Management has no indication that the Allianz Group is
facing any major adverse developments.

Cautionary note regarding forward-looking statements

The statements contained herein may include prospects, statements of future expectations
and other forward-looking statements that are based on management's current views and
assumptions and involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties. Actual results, perfor-
mance or events may differ materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-
looking statements.

Such deviations may arise due to, without limitation, (i) changes of the general economic
conditions and competitive situation, particularly in the Allianz Group’s core business and core
markets, (ii) performance of financial markets (particularly market volatility, liquidity and
creditevents), (iii) frequency and severity of insured loss events, including from natural catas-
trophes, and the development of loss expenses, (iv) mortality and morbidity levels and trends,
(v) persistency levels, (vi) particularly in the banking business, the extent of credit defaults,
(vii) interest rate levels, (viii) currency exchange rates including the Euro/u.s. Dollar exchange
rate, (ix) changes in laws and regulations, including tax regulations, (x) the impact of acquisi-
tions, including related integration issues, and reorganization measures, and (xi) general
competitive factors, in each case on a local, regional, national and/or global basis. Many of
these factors may be more likely to occur, or more pronounced, as a result of terrorist activities
and their consequences.

No duty to update

The company assumes no obligation to update any information or forward-looking statement
contained herein, save for any information required to be disclosed by law.
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Balance Sheet Review

— Shareholders’ equity increased by € 2.4 BN to € 63.1 BN.
— Conglomerate solvency ratio up 19.6 percentage points to 200 %.!

Shareholders’ equity?

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

€MN

+3.9%
| 2
60,747 63,144
10,920 I
13,917
17,901 23,296
28,928 28,928
31/12/2014 31/12/2015

W Paid-in capital M Retained earnings (includes foreign currency translation adjustments)
B Unrealized gains/losses (net)

In 2015, shareholders’ equity went up by € 2,397 MN to € 63,144 MN as of
31 December2015. Unrealized gains in shareholders’ equity decreased
by € 2,998 MN, mainly due to lower fair values of debt securities follow-
ing a modest increase in interest rates. Realizations on both debt
securities and equities also contributed to this reduction. In addition,
shareholders’ equity was lowered by the € 3,112 MN dividend payout
in May 2015. However, these effects were more than offset by our net
income attributable to shareholders of € 6,616 MN and the € 1,050 MN
positive foreign currency translation adjustments that predominantly
resulted from the appreciation of the u.s. Dollar against the Euro. Fur-
thermore, the recovery of actuarial losses on defined benefit plans
contributed with € 465 MN to an increase in other comprehensive
income.

1 — Off-balance sheet reserves are accepted by the authorities as eligible capital only upon request. Allianz s
has not submitted an application so far. Excluding off-balance sheet reserves, the conglomerate solvency
ratios would be 191% and 172% as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

2 — This does notinclude non-controlling interests of € 2,955 MN as of 31 December 2015 and 2014, respectively.
For further information, please refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements. Retained earnings
include foreign currency translation adjustments of € (926) MN and € (1,977) MN as of 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014, respectively.
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Regulatory capital adequacy

The Allianz Group is a financial conglomerate within the scope of the
E.U. Financial Conglomerates Directive and the related German law
in force since 2005. The law requires that financial conglomerates
calculate the capital available to meet their solvency requirements
on a consolidated basis, which we refer to as “eligible capital”. From
1January 2016 onwards, capitalization based on Solvency 11 will be
utilized for regulatory purposes.

CONGLOMERATE SOLVENCY'

€BN

200%
181%
58.0
498
276 29.0
31/12/2014 31/12/2015

Conglomerate solvency ratio W Eligible capital B Requirement

1 — Off-balance sheet reserves are accepted by the authorities as eligible capital only upon request. Allianz S
has not submitted an application so far. Excluding off-balance sheet reserves, the conglomerate solvency
ratios would be 191% and 172% as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

As of 31 December 2015, our conglomerate solvency ratio amounted
to 200% — 19.6 percentage points higher compared to year-end 2014.
The Group's eligible capital for solvency purposes went up by € 8.1 BN
to€58.0 BN, including off-balance sheet reserves of € 2.7 BN (31 Decem-
ber 2014: € 2.3 BN). This increase was mainly driven by our netincome
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(net of accrued dividends) of € 3.3 BN, the issuance of a subordinated
bond (¢ 1.5 BN), and changes in deferred tax assets/liabilities and
intangibles. The required funds were up by € 1.4 BN to € 29.0 BN, mainly
because of higher aggregate policy reserves in the Life/Health busi-
ness segment, but also due to strong nominal growth in our Property-
Casualty business segment. This was only partly offset by lower
required funds for our Asset Management business segment due to
an amended calculation methodology. At year-end 2015, our eligible
capital surpassed the minimum legally stipulated level by € 29.0 BN.

Total assets and total liabilities

As of 31 December 2015, total assets amounted to € 848.9 BN and total
liabilities were € 782.8 BN. Compared to year-end 2014, total assets
and total liabilities increased by € 43.2 BN and € 40.8 BN, respectively.

The following section mainly focuses on our financial invest-
ments in debt instruments, equities, real estate, and cash, since these
reflect the major developments in our asset base.

STRUCTURE OF INVESTMENTS — PORTFOLIO OVERVIEW
The following portfolio overview covers the Allianz Group assets held
forinvestment, which are mainly driven by our insurance businesses.

ASSET ALLOCATION

Investment portfolio as of 31 December 2015: € 638.3 BN
[as of 31 December 2014: € 614.6 BN] in %

Real estate 2 [2] Cash/Other 2[2]

Equities 7[7]

‘\

Debt instruments 89 [89]

Compared toyear-end 2014, our investment portfolio grew by € 23.7 BN
to €638.3 BN as of 31 December 2015, with no relative change in our
overall asset allocation despite some major realizations.
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Our direct gross exposure to equities increased by € 4.5 BN to
€45.7 BN. The growth in this exposure was mainly driven by new
investments. Our equity gearing! remained almost unchanged at 24 %
(31 December 2014: 25 %) as the increase in this exposure was accom-
panied by increases in shareholders’ equity and hedging of this addi-
tional exposure against share price declines.

Our direct exposure to real estate was up by € 0.6 BN to € 12.0 BN
mainly due to new investments.

Our cash and other investments increased by € 0.3 BN to € 12.5 BN.

Our exposure to debt instruments grew by € 18.3 BN — mainly
driven by new investments — and amounted to € 568.1 BN. This expo-
sure still represented 89 % of our total investment portfolio.

FIXED INCOME PORTFOLIO

Total fixed-income portfolio as of 31 December 2015: € 568.1 BN
[as of 31 December 2014: € 549.8 BN] in %

Banks 6 (6]

Other 10[10] -

Government bonds 38 [38]

Other corporate bonds 29 [26]

-

Covered bonds 17[20]

The allocation of our well-diversified fixed income portfolio showed
a slight increase in the share of corporate bonds and a minor reduc-
tion in the portion of covered bonds while the other components
remained virtually unchanged. About 94 % of this portfolio of debt
instruments was invested in investment-grade bonds and loans.2
Our government hond exposure was up by € 8.3 BN to €217.5 BN,
still representing 38% of our fixed income portfolio. The increase in
absolute terms was mainly driven by new investments. The alloca-
tion of our government and government-related direct bond expo-
sure showed marginal changes in the geographical portfolio weight-
ings, all of which were less than two percentage points. Our sovereign
debt exposure in Italy and Spain equaled 5.2% and 1.7 % of our fixed
income portfolio, respectively. The corresponding unrealized gains
(gross) amounted to € 5,506 MN in Italy and to € 679 MN in Spain.

1 — Equity gearing is defined as the ratio of our equity holdings allocated to the shareholder after policyholder
participation and hedges to shareholders' equity plus off-balance sheet reserves less goodwill.
2 — Excluding self-originated German private retail mortgage loans. For 2%, no ratings were available.
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Our government bond exposure in Portugal remained limited, with
small unrealized gains. We continued to have virtually no exposure
to Greek or Ukrainian government bonds. The respective exposure to
Russia was relatively small in the context of our overall portfolio and
the greatest part of this exposure was denominated in u.s. Dollar.

Our covered bond exposure decreased by € 9.0 BN to € 98.7 BN,
representing 17% (31 December 2014: 20 %) of our fixed-income port-
folio. This was mainly due to matured bonds which have not been
reinvested within this asset class. 42 % (31 December 2014: 44%) of this
portfolio was German Pfandbriefe, backed by either public-sector
loans or mortgage loans. Almost unchanged, another 16%, 10% and
8% of the covered bonds were attributable to France, Spain and Italy,
respectively. Covered bonds provide a cushion against real estate
price deterioration and payment defaults through minimum
required security buffers and overcollateralization.

Our corporate bonds exposure increased by € 19.8 BNto € 164.9 BN —
in relative terms, three percentage points to 29%. This was primarily
driven by new investments. The slight regional shift from Eurozone
corporate bonds to North American ones, as reported in 2014, contin-
ued in 2015.

Our exposure to bank securities —including exposure to subordi-
nated securities in banks — decreased by € 1.1 BN to € 31.3 BN. This
exposure still represented 6 % of our fixed-income portfolio. The expo-
sure to subordinated securities in banks decreased from € 5.3 BN to
€4.6 BN.

Our exposure to asset-backed securities (ABS) decreased by
€1.3 BN to €21.6 BN. This exposure still accounted for 4% of our fixed
income portfolio. The largest part of our ABS portfolio was related to
mortgage-backed securities (MBS). MBS issued by U.S. agencies, which
are backed by the u.s. government, accounted for 17 % of the ABS port-
folio. Overall, 98 % of the ABS portfolio received an investment grade
rating, with 88% rated “AA” or better.
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INVESTMENT RESULT

INVESTMENT INCOME (NET)

€MN
2015 2014 Delta

Operating investment result

Interest and similar income (net)? 22,033 21,028 1,005

Operating income from financial

assets and liabilities carried at fair

value through income (net) (2,089) (1,301) (788)

Operating realized gains/losses (net) 6,726 3,205 3,521

Operating impairments

of investments (net) (1,258) (697) (561)

Investment expenses (1,094) (961) (132)

Subtotal 24,319 21,274 3,045
Non-operating investment result

Non-operating income from

financial assets and liabilities carried

at fair value through income (net) (219) (303) 84

Non-operating realized

gains/losses (net) 1,211 812 399

Non-operating impairments

of investments (net) (268) (197) (72)

Subtotal 724 312 411
Total investment income (net) 25,042 21,586 3,456

1—Net of interest expenses (excluding interest expenses from external debt).

Our total investment income (net) increased by € 3,456 MN — or 16.0%
—to € 25,042 MN. This was largely due to higher realized gains and the
increase in interest and similar income (net)!, partly offset by
increases in operating losses from financial assets and liabilities car-
ried at fair value through income (net) and impairments (net).

1 — Net of interest expenses (excluding interest expenses from external debt).
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Operating investment result

Our operating investment income (net) went up by € 3,045 MN to
€24,319 MN, as increases in realized gains as well as in interest and
similar income (net)! more than offset negative developments in its
other components.

Operating realized gains and losses (net) more than doubled
from € 3,205 MN to € 6,726 MN. This was driven by higher realizations
on both debt securities and equities.

Interest and similar income (net)! was up by € 1,005 MN to
€22,033 MN, reflecting almost equal increases in income from both
debt securities and equities. The former increase benefited from
positive foreign exchange effects from our exposures denominated
in U.S. Dollar, held domestically by our u.s. life insurance business.

Operating income from financial assets and liabilities carried at
fairvalue through income (net) deteriorated by € 788 MN to a loss of
€2,089 MN. This was mainly due to losses from the net of foreign cur-
rency translation effects and financial derivatives that are used to
protect against equity and foreign currency fluctuations, as well as to
manage duration and other interest rate-related exposures.

Our operating impairments of investments (net) increased by
€561 MN to € 1,258 MN. The greatest part of these impairments was
related to equities and was consistent with unfavorable develop-
ments in the respective equity markets, in particular in the third
quarter of 2015.

Investment expenses rose by € 132 MN to € 1,094 MN. This was
mainly due to higher management fees from the increased asset
base.

Non-operating investment result

Our non-operating investment income (net) more than doubled from
€312 MN to € 724 MN. This was almost entirely driven by higher non-
operating realized gains, which expanded by € 399 MN to €1,211 MN
mainly as a result of higher realizations on equities.

Non-operating income from financial assets and liabilities carried
at fair value through income (net) improved by € 84 MN to a loss of
€219 MN. This mainly stemmed from capital hedging activities related
to our U.s. life insurance business.

Our non-operating impairments of investments (net) increased
by € 72 MN —largely driven by impairments of equities — to € 268 MN.

1 — Net of interest expenses (excluding interest expenses from external debt).
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF
THE PROPERTY-CASUALTY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Property-Casualty assets

The Property-Casualty asset base remained almost unchanged at
€110.1 BN (31 December 2014: € 109.2 BN). A slight increase in debt
securities was partly offset by a decline in loans and advances to
banks and customers.

COMPOSITION OF ASSET BASE — FAIR VALUES'

€BN
as of 31 December 2015 2014

Financial assets and liabilities carried
at fair value through income

Equities 0.4 0.4
Debt securities 0.1 0.1
Other? - -
Subtotal 0.5 0.5
Investments3 -
Equities 6.7 6.3
Debt securities 74.8 72.4
Cash and cash pool assets* 5.0 5.6
Other 9.2 9.5
Subtotal 95.8 93.8
Loans and advances to banks and customers 13.8 15.0

Property-Casualty asset base 110.1 109.2

1—Loans and advances to banks and customers, held-to-maturity investments and real estate held for
investment are stated at amortized cost. Investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at either
amortized cost or equity, depending on —among other factors — our ownership percentage.

2 — This comprises assets of € 0.1 BN and € 0.1 BN and liabilities of € (0.1) BN and € (0.1) BN as of 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

3 —These do not include affiliates of €8.9 BN and €8.9 BN as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
respectively.

4 —Including cash and cash equivalents, as stated in our business segment balance sheet of €3.6 BN and
€3.7 BN, and receivables from cash pooling amounting to €3.5 BN and € 4.2 BN, net of liabilities from
securities lending and derivatives of € (0.1) BN and € (0.1) BN, as well as liabilities from cash pooling of
€(2.1) BN and € (2.1) BN as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

ABS within the Property-Casualty business segment asset base
decreased by €0.7 BN to € 3.3 BN and represented 3.0% (31 December
2014: 3.7%) of the business segment’s asset base.
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Property-Casualty liabilities

DEVELOPMENT OF RESERVES FOR LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES'

€BN

Gross Ceded Net
As of 1January 2015 58.9 (6.6) 52.3
Balance carryforward of discounted
loss reserves? 3.6 (0.3) 33
Subtotal 62.5 (6.9) 55.6
Loss and loss adjustment expenses
paid in current year relating to
previous years (15.1) 1.3 (13.7)
Loss and loss adjustment expenses
incurred in previous years (2.4) 0.5 (1.9)
Foreign currency translation
adjustments and other changes 1.8 (0.5) 1.2
Changes in reserves for loss and loss
adjustment expenses in current year 18.3 (1.9) 16.4
Subtotal 65.1 (7.6) 57.5
Ending balance of discounted
loss reserves? (3.9) 0.3 (3.6)
As of 31 December 2015 61.2 (7.2) 53.9

1 —For further information about changes in the reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses for the
Property-Casualty business segment, please refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

2 — Although discounted loss reserves have been reclassified to “Reserves for insurance and investment
contracts” in the balance sheet in 2013, the underlying business development of these Property-Casualty
reserves is still considered in the loss and loss adjustment expenses and in the loss ratio, and is therefore
included in the development of the reserves above.

As of 31 December 2015, the business segment’s gross reserves for
loss and loss adjustment expenses and discounted loss reserves
amounted to € 65.1 BN —an increase of € 2.5 BN compared to year-end
2014.0n a net basis, our reserves —including discounted loss reserves
—increased from € 55.6 BN to € 57.5 BN. Foreign currency translation
effects and other changes contributed € 1.2 BN to this increase on a
net basis.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF
THE LIFE/HEALTH BUSINESS SEGMENT

Life/Health assets

The Life/Health business segment asset base increased by € 31.5 BN
to € 596.9 BN. This was largely driven by a greater volume of debt secu-
rities and financial assets for unit-linked contracts and, to a lesser
extent, higher equities.

COMPOSITION OF ASSET BASE — FAIR VALUES

€BN
as of 31 December 2015 2014

Financial assets and liabilities carried
at fair value through income

Equities 24 1.8
Debt securities 2.7 2.0
Other’ (7.5) (6.8)
Subtotal (2.4) (3.0)
Investments?
Equities 36.0 32.2
Debt securities 343.8 331.8
Cash and cash pool assets? 7.7 8.0
Other 10.8 10.4
Subtotal 398.3 382.4
Loans and advances to banks and customers 95.1 91.4
Financial assets for unit-linked contracts* 105.9 94.6
Life/Health asset base 596.9 565.4

1 —This comprises assets of € 1.4 BN and € 1.4 8N and liabilities (including the market value liability option)
of €(8.8) BN and € (8.2) BN as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

2—These do not include affiliates of € 0.2 BN and € 0.2 BN as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
respectively.

3 —Including cash and cash equivalents, as stated in our business segment balance sheet, of €8.5 BN and
€7.6 BN and receivables from cash pooling amounting to €2.5 BN and € 3.1 BN, net of liabilities from
securities lending and derivatives of € (3.2) BN and € (2.6) BN as well as liabilities from cash pooling of
€(0.0) BN and € (0.0) BN as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

4 —Financial assets for unit-linked contracts represent assets owned by, and managed on behalf of, policy-
holders of the Allianz Group, with all appreciation and depreciation in these assets accruing to the benefit
of policyholders. As a result, the value of financial assets for unit-linked contracts in our balance sheet
corresponds to the value of financial liabilities for unit-linked contracts. The International Financial Report-
ing Standards (1Frs) require the classification of any contract written by an insurance company either as
an insurance contract or as an investment contract, depending on whether an insurance component is
included. This requirement also applies to unit-linked products. In contrast to unit-linked investment
contracts, unit-linked insurance contracts include coverage for significant mortality or morbidity risk.

ABS within the Life/Health business segment asset base remained
almost flat at € 16.5 BN (31 December 2014: € 16.9 BN) and represented
arather unchanged 2.8% of the business segment’s asset base.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS FOR UNIT-LINKED CONTRACTS'

€BN
Unit-linked Unit-linked

insurance  investment

contracts contracts Total
As of 1 January 2015 62.7 319 94.6
Net premium inflows (outflows) 4.4 5.9 10.3
Changes in fund value 0.8 0.3 1.2
Foreign currency translation
adjustments 3.4 (0.2) 3.2
Other changes (3.4) - (3.4)
As of 31 December 2015 67.9 38.0 105.9

1 —Financial assets for unit-linked contracts represent assets owned by, and managed on behalf of, policy-
holders of the Allianz Group, with all appreciation and depreciation in these assets accruing to the benefit
of policyholders. As a result, the value of financial assets for unit-linked contracts in our balance sheet
corresponds to the value of financial liabilities for unit-linked contracts. The International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRs) require the classification of any contract written by an insurance company either as
an insurance contract or as an investment contract, depending on whether an insurance component is
included. This requirement also applies to unit-linked products. In contrast to unit-linked investment
contracts, unit-linked insurance contracts include coverage for significant mortality or morbidity risk.

Financial assets for unit-linked contracts increased by € 11.3 BN — or
12.0% — to €105.9 BN. Unit-linked insurance contracts were up by
€5.2 BN to €67.9 BN, due to premium inflows exceeding outflows by
€ 4.4 BN and the stronger u.s. Dollar (€ 2.8 BN). This was partly offset
by fund losses of € 0.6 BN in the U.S. as well as transfers to the general
account in France (€ (0.9) BN) and the Netherlands (€ (0.5) BN). Unit-
linked investment contracts increased by € 6.1 BN to € 38.0 BN, due to
net premium inflows of € 5.9 BN and an € 0.3 BN increase in fund val-
ues. Negative foreign currency translation adjustments of € 0.2 BN
were mainly attributable to the weaker Turkish Lira.!

Life/Health liabilities

Life/Health reserves for insurance and investment contracts
increased by € 22.7 BN — or 5.1% — t0 € 472.0 BN in 2015. The € 16.6 BN
growth in aggregate policy reserves and other reserves was mainly
driven by our operations in Germany (€ 8.3 BN) and the U.S. (€5.4 BN
before currency effects). Reserves for premium refund decreased by
€3.5 BN, due to lower unrealized gains to be shared with policyholders.
Currency impacts of €9.6 BN resulted mainly from the stronger
U.S. Dollar (€ 7.8 BN) and Swiss Franc (€ 1.3 BN).!

1 —Based on the closing rates on the respective balance sheet dates.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF
THE ASSET MANAGEMENT BUSINESS SEGMENT

Asset Management assets
The Asset Management business segment’s results are derived pri-
marily from asset management for third-party investors and the
Allianz Group’s insurance operations.2 In this section, we refer only
to the business segment’s own assets.

Driven by a decrease in its largest component, cash and cash
pool assets, the business segment’s asset base was down by € 0.4 BN
to €2.2 BN.

Asset Management liabilities
Liabilities in our Asset Management business segment increased by
€0.5BN t0 €2.9 BN.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF
THE CORPORATE AND OTHER BUSINESS SEGMENT

Corporate and Other assets

The Corporate and Other asset base increased from € 44.7 BN to
€47.5BN. A decrease in loans and advances to banks and customers
was more than offset by an increase in debt securities and lower
negative cash and cash pool asset positions.

2 — For further information on the development of these assets, please refer to Asset Management.
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COMPOSITION OF ASSET BASE — FAIR VALUES

€BN
as of 31 December 2015 2014

Financial assets and liabilities carried
at fair value through income

Equities 0.1 0.1
Debt securities 0.3 0.2
Other? (0.6) (0.5)
Subtotal (0.1) (0.1)
Investments?
Equities 2.9 2.7
Debt securities 31.7 28.4
Cash and cash pool assets? (2.9) (4.1)
Other 0.3 0.3
Subtotal 32.1 273
Loans and advances to banks and customers 15.6 175
Corporate and Other asset base 47.5 44.7

1 — This comprises assets of € 0.2 BN and € 0.2 BN and liabilities of € (0.8) BN and € (0.6) BN as of 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

2 —These do not include affiliates of € 92.4 BN and € 77.2 BN as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
respectively. The increase was triggered by the streamlining of the legal corporate structure in Italy,
which led to the move of respective opposite consolidation effects from business segment level to group
level. For further information on the streamlining, please refer to page 57.

3 —Including cash and cash equivalents, as stated in our business segment balance sheet, of €2.0 BN and
€2.0 BN and receivables from cash pooling amounting to € 1.6 BN and € 1.7 BN, net of liabilities from
securities lending and derivatives of € (0.2) BN and € (0.0) BN as well as liabilities from cash pooling of
€(6.2) BN and € (7.9) BN as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

ABs within the Corporate and Other business segment asset base
decreased by € 0.3 BN to € 1.7 BN and in relative terms from 4.5 % to 3.7 %.

Corporate and Other liabilities

In comparison to year-end 2014, other liabilities decreased by € 3.8 BN
to €24.3 BN, resulting from lower liabilities from cash pooling and
other provisions mainly related to pension obligations. Subordinated
liabilities increased by € 0.2 BN to € 12.2 BN. This was mainly related to
the net effect of the issuance and redemptions of subordinated
bonds.! Certificated liabilities decreased by € 0.2 BN to € 12.1 BN.2

1—This net effect also includes the redemption of a subordinated bond of € 400 MN issued by Allianz
France s.A., which is not listed separately in the bonds table shown on page 108.

2 — For further information on Allianz St debt as of 31 December 2015, please refer to notes 23 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Off-balance sheet arrangements

In the normal course of business, the Allianz Group may enter into
arrangements that do not lead to the recognition of assets and liabil-
ities in the consolidated financial statements under IERS. Since the
Allianz Group does not rely on off-balance sheet arrangements as a
significant source of revenue or financing, our off-balance sheet
exposure to loss is immaterial relative to our financial position.

The Allianz Group enters into various commitments including
loan and leasing commitments, purchase obligations and other com-
mitments. Please refer to note 47 to the consolidated financial state-
ments for more details.

The Allianz Group has also entered into contractual relation-
ships with various types of structured entities. They have been
designed in such a way that their relevant activities are directed by
means of contractual arrangements instead of voting or similar
rights. Typically, structured entities have been set up in connection
with asset-backed financings and certain investment fund products.
For more details on our involvement with structured entities, please
refer to note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Please refer to the Risk and Opportunity Report from (3) page 112
onwards for a description of the main concentrations of risk and
other relevant risk positions.
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Liquidity and Funding Resources

Organization

The Allianz Group's liquidity management is based on policies and
guidelines approved by the Allianz SE Board of Management. Allianz SE
and each of the operating entities are responsible for managing their
respective liquidity positions, while Allianz SE provides central liquid-
ity pooling for the Group. Capital allocation is steered by Allianz SE for
the entire Group. This structure allows the efficient use of liquidity and
capital resources and for Allianz SE to achieve the desired liquidity
and capitalization levels for the Group and its operating units.

Liquidity management
of our operating entities

INSURANCE OPERATIONS

The major sources of liquidity for our operational activities are pri-
mary and reinsurance premiums received, reinsurance receivables
collected, investment income, and proceeds generated from the
maturity or sale of investments. These funds are mainly used to pay
claims arising from the Property-Casualty insurance business and
related expenses, life policy benefits, surrenders and cancellations,
acquisition costs and operating costs.

We receive a large part of premiums before payments of claims
or policy benefits are required, generating solid cash flows from our
insurance operations. This allows us to invest the funds in the inter-
im to create investment income.

Our insurance operations also carry a high proportion of liquid
investments, which can be converted into cash to pay for claims.
Generally, our investments in fixed income securities are sequenced
to mature when funds are expected to be needed.

The overall liquidity of our insurance operations depends on
capital market developments, interest rate levels, and our ability to
realize the market value of our investment portfolio to meet insurance
claims and policyholder benefits. Other factors affecting the liquidity
of our Property-Casualty insurance operations include the timing,
frequency, and severity of losses underlying our policies and policy
renewal rates. In our Life operations, liquidity needs are generally
influenced by trends in actual mortality rates compared to the
assumptions underlying our life insurance reserves. Market returns,
crediting rates and the behavior of our life insurance clients — for
example regarding the level of surrenders and withdrawals — can also
have significant impacts.
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ASSET MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS

Within our Asset Management operations, the most important sour-
ces of liquidity are fees generated from asset management activities.
These are primarily used to cover operating expenses.

BANKING OPERATIONS

The major sources of liquidity in our Banking operations include cus-
tomer deposits, interbank loans and interest and similar income from
our lending transactions. The most important uses of funds are the
issuance of newloans and investments in fixed income securities. The
liquidity of our Banking operations is largely dependent on the ability
of our private and corporate customers to meet their payment obliga-
tions arising from loans and other outstanding commitments. Our
ability to retain our customers’ deposits is equally important to us.

Liquidity management
and funding of Allianz se

The responsibility for managing the funding needs of the Group,
maximizing access to liquidity sources and minimizing borrowing
costs lies with Allianz Sg. We therefore comment on the liquidity and
funding resources of Allianz Sk in the following sections. Restrictions
on the transferability of capital within the Group result mainly from
the capital maintenance rules under applicable company laws and
the regulatory solvency capital requirements for regulated group
companies.

LIQUIDITY RESOURCES AND USES

Allianz SE ensures adequate access to liquidity and capital for our
operating subsidiaries. The main sources of liquidity available for
Allianz sk are dividends received from subsidiaries and funding pro-
vided by capital markets. Liquidity resources are defined as readily
available assets — specifically cash, money market investments, and
highly liquid government bonds. Our funds are primarily used for
paying interest expenses on our debt funding, operating costs, internal
and external growth investments, and dividends to our shareholders.
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FUNDING SOURCES

Allianz SE’s access to external funds depends on various factors such
as capital market conditions, access to credit facilities, credit ratings
and credit capacity. The financial resources available to Allianz SE in
the capital markets for short-, mid- and long-term funding needs are
described below. In general, mid- to long-term financing is covered
by issuing senior or subordinated bonds or ordinary shares.

Equity funding
As of 31 December 2015, the issued capital registered at the Commer-
cial Register was € 1,169,920,000. This was divided into 457,000,000
registered shares with restricted transferability. As of 31 December
2015, the Allianz Group held 2,176,362 (2014: 2,751,961) own shares.
Allianz SE has the option to increase its equity capital base
according to authorizations provided by our shareholders. The fol-
lowing table outlines Allianz SE’s capital authorizations as of
31 December 2015:

CAPITAL AUTHORIZATIONS OF ALLIANZ SE

EXPIRY DATE OF

CAPITAL AUTHORIZATION NOMINAL AMOUNT THE AUTHORIZATION

Authorized Capital 2014/1 €550,000,000 6 May 2019
(214,843,750 shares)

Authorized Capital 2014/ € 13,720,000 6 May 2019
(5,359,375 shares)

Authorization to issue €10,000,000,000 6 May 2019

bonds carrying conversion
and/or option rights

Conditional Capital
2010/2014

(nominal bond value) (issuance of bonds)

No expiry date for
Conditional Capital
2010/2014 (issuance in
case option or conversion
rights are exercised)

€250,000,000
(97,656,250 shares)

Please refer to (3) page3s regarding authorizations to issue and
repurchase shares.

Long-term debt funding

As of 31 December 2015, Allianz SE had senior and subordinated
bonds in a variety of maturities outstanding, reflecting our focus on
long-term financing. As the cost and availability of external funding
may be negatively affected by general market conditions or by matters
specific to the financial services industry or the Allianz Group, we
seek to reduce refinancing risk by actively steering the maturity profile
of our funding structure.

MATURITY STRUCTURE OF ALLIANZ SE'S SENIOR AND SUBORDINATED BONDS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2015

nominal value in € BN

15
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2018 2019
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Interest expenses on senior bonds increased to €270 MN
(2014: €264 MN). This was due to the appreciation of the British Pound
against the Euro. For subordinated bonds, interest expenses
increased to € 560 MN (2014: € 554 MN). This was primarily driven by
slightly higher outstanding volumes on average in 2015.

SENIOR AND SUBORDINATED BONDS ISSUED OR GUARANTEED BY ALLIANZ SE'

Weighted
Nominal Carrying Interest average
value value expense interest rate?

as of 31 December €MN €MN €MN %
2015

Senior bonds 6,716 6,711 270 4.0

Subordinated bonds 12,080 11,962 560 4.8

Total 18,797 18,673 830 4.5
2014

Senior bonds 6,716 6,653 264 3.9

Subordinated bonds 11,442 11,371 554 5.3

Total 18,159 18,024 818 4.8

1 — For further information on Allianz S debt (issued or guaranteed) as of 31 December 2015, please refer to
notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
2 —Based on nominal value.

The table below details the long-term debt issuances and redemp-
tions of Allianz SE during 2015 and 2014:

ISSUANCES AND REDEMPTIONS OF ALLIANZ SE'S SENIOR AND SUBORDINATED BONDS

€MN
Issuances net of
Issuances’ redemptions

as of 31 December Redemptions?

2015

Senior bonds - . -
Subordinated bonds 1,500 1,000 500

2014
Senior bonds
Subordinated bonds

1,916 1,500 416

1 —Based on nominal value.

Funding in currencies other than the Euro enables us to diversify our
investor base or to take advantage of favorable funding costs in those
markets. Funds raised in non-Euro currencies are incorporated in our
general hedging strategy. As of 31 December 2015, approximately
12.5% (2014: 12.2%) of long-term debt was issued or guaranteed by
Allianz SE in currencies other than the Euro.
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CURRENCY ALLOCATION OF ALLIANZ SE'S SENIOR AND SUBORDINATED BONDS

nominal value in € MN

as of 31 December Euro Non-Euro Total
2015
Senior and subordinated bonds 16,450 2,347 18,797
2014
Senior and subordinated bonds 15,950 2,209 18,159

Short-term debt funding

Short-term funding sources available are the Medium-Term Note Pro-
gram and the Commercial Paper Program. As of 31 December 2015,
Allianz s had money market securities outstanding with a carrying
value of € 1,276 MN, a € 235 MN increase in the use of commercial
paper compared to the previous year-end. Interest expenses on money
market securities increased to € 6 MN (2014: € 3 MN) mainly due to a
higher level of volumes outstanding on average in 2015.

MONEY MARKET SECURITIES OF ALLIANZ SE

Interest Average

Carrying value expense interest rate

as of 31 December €MN €MN %
2015

Money market securities 1,276 6 0.4
2014

Money market securities 1,041 3 0.3

The Group maintained its A-1+/Prime-1 ratings for short-term issu-
ances. Thus we can continue funding our liquidity under the Euro
Commercial Paper Program at an average rate for each tranche below
Euribor and under the u.s. Dollar Commercial Paper Program at an
average rate for each tranche below u.s. Libor.

Further potential sources of short-term funding allowing the
Allianz Group to fine-tune its capital structure are letter of credit
facilities and bank credit lines.
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ALLIANZ SE BONDS' OUTSTANDING AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND INTEREST EXPENSES IN 2015

1. SENIOR BONDS?

2.241% bond issued by Allianz e

4.0% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam Volume €1.5BN
Volume €1.5BN Year of issue 2015
Year of issue 2006 Maturity date 7/7/2045
Maturity date 23/11/2016 ISIN DE 000 A14 JON 8
ISIN XS 027 588 026 7 Interest expenses €25MN
Interest expenses €62 MN 4.375% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam
1.375% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam Volume €1.4BN
Volume €0.5BN Year of issue 2005
Year of issue 2013 Maturity date PERPETUAL
Maturity date 13/3/2018 ISIN XS 0211637839
ISIN DE 000 ATHG1) 8 Interest expenses €64 MN
Interest expenses €7 MN 5.375% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam
4.75% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam Volume €0.8BN
Volume €1.5BN Year of issue 2006
Year of issue 2009 Maturity date PERPETUAL
Maturity date 22/7/2019 ISIN DE 000 AOG NPZ 3
ISIN DE 000 ATA KHB 8 Interest expenses €43 MN
Interest expenses €74 MN 5.5% bond issued by Allianz e
3.5% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam Volume USD 1.0 BN
Volume €1.5BN Year of issue 2012
Year of issue 2012 Maturity date PERPETUAL
Maturity date 14/2/2022 ISIN XS 085 787 250 0
ISIN DE 000 A1G ORU 9 Interest expenses €53 MN
Interest expenses €54 MN 4.75% bond issued by Allianz se
3.0% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam Volume €1.5BN
Volume €0.75 BN Year of issue 2013
Year of issue 2013 Maturity date PERPETUAL
Maturity date 13/3/2028 ISIN DE 000 A1Y CQ2 9
ISIN DE 000 ATH G1K 6 Interest expenses €72 MN
Interest expenses €24 MN 3.25% bond issued by Allianz e
4.5% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam Volume CHF 0.5 BN
Volume GBP 0.75 BN Year of issue 2014
Year of issue 2013 Maturity date PERPETUAL
Maturity date 13/3/2043 ISIN CH 023 483337 1
ISIN DE 000 ATH G1L 4 Interest expenses €17 MN
Interest expenses €50 MN 3.375% bond issued by Allianz S
Total interest expenses for senior bonds €270 MN Volume €1.5BN
Year of issue 2014

2. SUBORDINATED BONDS? Maturity date PERPETUAL
5.75% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam SIN DE 000 A13 R7Z 7
Volume €2.0BN Interest expenses €52 MN
Year of issue 2011 Total interest expenses for subordinated bonds €527 MIN
Maturity date 8/7/2041
ISIN DE 000 A1G NAH 1 3. ISSUES REDEEMED IN 2015
Interest expenses €116 MN 6.5% bond issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v., Amsterdam
5.625% bond issued by Allianz SE Volume €1.0BN
Volume €1.5BN Year of issue 2002
Year of issue 2012 Maturity date 13/1/2025
Maturity date 17/10/2042 ISIN XS 015952750 5
ISIN DE 000 ATRE1Q 3 Interest expenses €2 MN
Interest expenses €86 MN Sum of interest expenses €799 MIN
1 — For further information on Allianz St debt (issued or guaranteed) as of 31 December 2015, please refer Interest EXpenses from external debt

to notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements. not presented in the table €50 MN
2 — Senior bonds provide for early termination rights in case of non-payment of amounts due under the bond Total interest expenses from external debt €849 MN

(interest and principal) as well as in case of insolvency.
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3 —The terms of the subordinated bonds do not explicitly provide for early termination rights in favor of the

bondholder.
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Allianz Group consolidated cash flows

ANNUAL CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

€MN
32,232
23,663
2656 g7q
o — . .
(3,189) (2,837)
(20,394)
(26,927)
Net cash flow Net cash flow Net cash flow Change in cash
provided used ininvesting  used in financing and cash
by operating activities activities equivalents'
activities
W 2014 M 2015

1 —Includes effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents of € 548 MN and € 541 MNin 2015
and 2014, respectively.

Net cash flow provided by operating activities amounted to € 23.7 BN
in 2015, down by € 8.6 BN compared to the previous year. This consists
of net income plus adjustments for non-cash charges, credits and
otheritemsincluded in net earnings and cash flows related to the net
change in operating assets and liabilities. Net income after adding
back non-cash charges and similar items went down by € 0.4 BN to
€10.5 BN in 2015. Operating cash flows from net changes in operating
assets and liabilities, including otheritems, fell by € 8.1 BN to € 13.2 BN.
This was driven by lower reserves for insurance and investment con-
tracts in our Life/Health business segment, mainly in the United
States, Germany, Italy, and France. We also recorded net cash outflows
(after net cash inflows in 2014) from our financial assets and liabilities
held for trading, stemming from our Life/Health business segment in
Germany and in the United States. This was partially offset by higher
net cash inflows from repurchase agreements and collateral received
from securities lending transactions —in particular at Allianz SE—and
by higher reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses mainly in
our Property-Casualty business segment at Allianz SE (Reinsurance),
Italy and France.
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Net cash outflow used in investing activities decreased by € 6.5 BN
to €20.4 BN in 2015. This was mainly due to lower net cash outflows
from available-for-sale investments, especially in our Life/Health
business segment in Germany, the United States, and France. This
was partly offset by Allianz Sk, Allianz Korea, and our banking activi-
ties in Italy. In addition, we recorded higher cash inflows from loans
and advances to banks and customers, primarily at Allianz SE and
Allianz Korea. This was only partly offset by our Life/Health business
segment in the Netherlands.

Net cash outflow used in financing activities amounted to € 2.8 BN
(2014: € 3.2 BN) and was mainly driven by net cash inflows from liabil-
ities to banks and customers (after net cash outflows in 2014). This
was, in particular, attributable to our Banking operations in Italy and
our Life/Health business in the United States. Higher dividend pay-
ments to our shareholders and lower net cash inflows from our refi-
nancing activities! partly offset these effects.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by € 1.0 BN to € 14.8 BN as of
31 December 2015, mainly stemming from our Life/Health business
segment in Germany.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

€MN
as of 31 December 2015 2014
Balances with banks payable on demand 7,764 6,657
Balances with central banks 388 397
Cash on hand 225 184
Treasury bills, discounted treasury notes, similar
treasury securities, bills of exchange and checks 6,465 6,625
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,842 13,863
1 — Refers to cash flows from certified liabilities and subordinated liabilities.
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Reconciliations

The previous analysis is based on our consolidated financial state-
ments and should be read in conjunction with them. In addition to
our figures stated in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (1Frs), the Allianz Group uses operating profit and
internal growth to enhance the understanding of our results. These
additional measures should be viewed as complementary to, rather
than a substitute for, our figures determined according to IFRS.

For further information, please refer to note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Composition of total revenues
Total revenues comprise statutory gross premiums written in Property-
Casualty and Life/Health, operating revenues in Asset Management,

and total revenues in Corporate and Other (Banking).

COMPOSITION OF TOTAL REVENUES

€MN
2015 2014
Property-Casualty
Gross premiums written 51,597 48,322
Life/Health
Statutory premiums 66,903 67,331
Asset Management
Operating revenues 6,479 6,388
consisting of:
Net fee and commission income 6,488 6,380
Net interest income’ (5) 3)
Income from financial assets and liabilities
carried at fair value through income (net) (8) 5
Other income 4 6
Corporate and Other
thereof: Total revenues (Banking) 577 556
consisting of:
Interest and similar income 546 590
Income from financial assets and liabilities
carried at fair value through income (net)? 16 10
Fee and commission income 565 513
Interest expenses, excluding interest expenses
from external debt (212) (255)
Fee and commission expenses (340) (305)
Consolidation effects within Corporate
and Other 2 3
Consolidation (365) (344)
Allianz Group total revenues 125,190 122,253

1—Represents interest and similar income less interest expenses.
2 —Includes trading income.
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Composition of total revenue growth

We believe that an understanding of our total revenue performance
is enhanced when the effects of foreign currency translation as well
as acquisitions, disposals, and transfers (or “changes in scope of
consolidation”) are analyzed separately. Accordingly, in addition to
presenting nominal total revenue growth, we also present internal
growth, which excludes these effects.

RECONCILIATION OF NOMINAL TOTAL REVENUE GROWTH
TO INTERNAL TOTAL REVENUE GROWTH

%

Changes in Foreign

Internal scope of currency Nominal

growth consolidation translation growth
2015
Property-Casualty 2.9 0.7 3.2 6.8
Life/Health (4.9) 0.0 4.2 (0.6)
Asset Management (11.4) 0.0 12.8 1.4
Corporate and Other 45 (0.7) 0.0 3.7
Allianz Group (2.1) 03 4.2 24
2014
Property-Casualty 3.0 2.1 (1.4) 3.7
Life/Health 19.5 (0.4) (0.3) 18.6
Asset Management (8.5) (2.5) 0.0 (10.8)
Corporate and Other (2.2) 3.2 0.0 1.0
Allianz Group 10.6 0.5 (0.8) 10.4
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Life/Health Insurance Operations

OPERATING PROFIT

The reconciling item scope comprises the effects from out-of-scope
entities in the profit sources reporting compilation. Operating profit
from operating entities that are not in-scope entities is included in
the investment margin. Currently, 20 entities comprising 96.5% of
Life/Health total statutory premiums are in scope.

Expenses
Expenses comprise acquisition expenses and commissions as well
as administrative and other expenses.

The delta shown as definitions in acquisition expenses and com-
missions represents commission clawbacks, which are allocated to the
technical margin. The delta shown as definitions in administrative
and other expenses mainly represents restructuring charges, which
are stated in a separate line item in the group income statement.

ACQUISITION, ADMINISTRATIVE, COMMISSIONS AND OTHER EXPENSES'

€MN

2015 2014
Acquisition expenses and commissions? (4,915) (4,912)
Definitions 32 28
Scope (379) (319)
Acquisition costs incurred? (5,262) (5,203)
Administrative and other expenses? (1,695) (1,610)
Definitions (134) (115)
Scope 118 112
Administrative expenses
on reinsurance business ceded 4 14
Administrative and other expenses (net)34 (1,707) (1,599)

1 — Prior year figures changed in order to reflect the roll out of profit source reporting to Malaysia.

2 —As per Group Management Report.

3 —As per notes to the consolidated financial statements.

4 — Excluding one-off effects from pension revaluation. For further details, please refer to note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impact of change in Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC)
Impact of change in DAC includes effects of change in DAC, unearned
revenue reserves (URR) and value of business acquired (voBA) and is
the net impact of the deferral and amortization of acquisition costs
and front-end loadings on operating profit.

URR capitalized: Capitalization amount of unearned revenue
reserves (URR) and deferred profit liabilities (DPL) for FAS 97 LP.

URR amortized: Total amount of URR amortized includes scheduled
URR amortization, true-up and unlocking.

Both capitalization and amortization is included in the line item
premiums earned (net) in the group income statement.

Policyholder participation is included within change in reserves
for insurance and investment contracts (net) in the group income
statement.
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CAPITALIZATION AND AMORTIZATION OF DAC’

€MN

2015 2014
Capitalization of DAC2 1,741 1,904
Definition: URR capitalized 603 566
Definition: policyholder participation® 880 908
Scope 141 123
Capitalization of bAc? 3,364 3,502
Amortization, unlocking and true-up of DAC? (2,073) (1,516)
Definition: URR amortized (249) (13)
Definition: policyholder participation3 (1,006) (1,033)
Scope (105) (86)
Amortization, unlocking and true-up of bAc* (3,432) (2,648)

1 — Prior year figures changed in order to reflect the roll out of profit source reporting to Malaysia.

2 — As per Group Management Report.

3 — For German Speaking Countries, policyholder participation on revaluation of DAC/URR capitalization/
amortization.

4— As per notes to the consolidated financial statements.

RECONCILIATION TO NOTES'

€MN

2015 2014
Acquisition expenses and commissions2 (4,915) (4,912)
Administrative and other expenses? (1,695) (1,610)
Capitalization of DAC? 1,741 1,904
Amortization, unlocking and true-up of DAC? (2,073) (1,516)
Acquisition and administrative expenses (6,942) (6,134)
Definitions 125 341
Scope (224) (169)
Commissions and profit received
on reinsurance business ceded 115 88
Administrative expenses
on reinsurance business ceded 4 14
Acquisition and administrative expenses (net)3# (6,922) (5,860)

1 — Prior year figures changed in order to reflect the roll out of profit source reporting to Malaysia.

2 — As per Group Management Report.

3 —As per notes to the consolidated financial statements.

4 — Excluding one-off effects from pension revaluation. For further details, please refer to note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Risk and Opportunity Report

—The Allianz risk management approach is designed to add value by focusing

on both risk and return.

—The Allianz Group is well capitalized and its solvency ratios are resilient.

Allianz risk profile
and management assessment

RISK PROFILE AND MARKET ENVIRONMENT

The Allianz Group is exposed to a variety of risks through its core
insurance and asset management activities. These include market,
credit, insurance, operational, business, and strategic risks. The three
largest risks in terms of their contribution to Allianz’s risk profile are:

— Market risk, especially interest rate risk due to the duration
mismatch between assets and liabilities for long-term savings
products as well as equity risk, which we take to benefit from the
expected risk premium;

— Creditand credit spread risks driven by assets backing long-term
savings products;

— Property-Casualty premium and reserve risks resulting from
natural and man-made catastrophes as well as from claims
uncertainty.

Allianz’s risk profile is driven by our strategic risk appetite and
steered by the risk management practices and limits which are
described later in this report. The risk profile and relative contribu-
tions have changed in 2015, due to changes in the market environ-
ment, management actions, and model changes driven by regulatory
developments and feedback Allianz received during the internal
model approval process. These model changes are described in the
section Model changes in 2015.

In the following paragraphs we provide an overview of major
developments and risks that may affect Allianz’s portfolio.

Financial markets and operating environment

The European Central Bank is continuing its expansive monetary
policy in order to fight low inflation rates and stimulate the Eurozone
economy. As a result, financial markets are characterized by histori-
cally low interest rates and risk premia, prompting investors to look
for higher-yielding — and potentially higher-risk — investments. In
addition to sustained low interest rates, the challenges of implement-
ing long-term structural reforms in key Eurozone countries and the
uncertainty about the future path of monetary policy may lead to
continued market volatility. This could be accompanied by a flight to

112 Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group

quality, combined with falling equity and bond prices due to rising
spread levels, even in the face of potentially lower interest rates. Also,
possible asset bubbles (as observed in the Chinese equity market)
might spill over to other markets, contributing to increasing volatility.
Therefore, we continue to closely monitor the political and financial
developments in the Eurozone — such as in Greece during 2015 — in
order to manage our overall risk profile to specific event risks.

The persisting geopolitical risks, including the conflicts in the
Middle East, are manageable for the Allianz Group, since our direct
exposure to the affected regions remains relatively small in the context
of our overall investment portfolio. Nevertheless, we are monitoring
these developments, since a significant deterioration may lead to
spill-over effects on the global financial markets, triggering negative
impacts on our business and risk profile.

Over the pastyears, Allianz Group and its operating entities have
developed operational contingency plans for various crisis scenarios.
We continue to conduct scenario analysis on a regular basis to bolster
our financial and operational resilience to strong shock scenarios. In
addition, we continue to optimize our product design and pricing in
the Life/Health business segment with respect to guarantees and sur-
render conditions. Continuous monitoring as well as prudent risk
positions and contingency planning remain priorities for our man-
agement.

Regulatory developments
With the approval of our partial internal model! in November 2015,
the uncertainty about our future Solvency 11 capital requirements has
been significantly reduced. Nevertheless, some uncertainty about the
future capitalization requirements of Allianz remains, since the
future capital requirements applicable for Global Systemically
Important Insurers (so-called G-siis) are still not finalized. Finally, the
potential for a multiplicity of different regulatory regimes, capital
standards, and reporting requirements will increase operational
complexity and costs.

In any case, the Solvency 11 regime will lead to higher volatility
in solvency ratios compared to Solvency 1, due to the market value
balance sheet approach.

1 — From a formalistic perspective, the German Supervisory Authority deems our model to be “partial” because
it does not cover all of our operations: some of our smaller operations report under the standard model
and others under the deduction and aggregation approach.
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MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT

The Allianz Group’s management feels comfortable with the Group’s
overall risk profile and has confidence in the effectiveness of its risk
management framework to meet the challenges of a rapidly changing
environment as well as day-to-day business needs. This confidence
is based on several factors, which are outlined in more detail in the
sections that follow and are summarized below:

— Due to its effective capital management, the Allianz Group is
well capitalized and met its internal-, rating agency- and regula-
tory-solvency targets as of 31 December 2015. Allianz is also con-
fident that it will be able to meet the capital requirements under
the new regulatory regimes. Allianz remains one of the highest-
rated insurance groups in the world, as reflected by our external
rating agencies.

— The Group’s management also believes that Allianz is well posi-
tioned to deal with potential future adverse events, in part due
to our strong internal limit framework defined by the Group’s
risk appetite and risk management practices including our
approved partial internal model.

— The Group has a conservative investment profile and disciplined
business practices in the Property-Casualty, Life/Health and
Asset Management business segments, leading to sustainable
operating earnings with a well-balanced risk-return profile.

— Finally, the Group has the additional advantage of being well
diversified, both geographically and across a broad range of
businesses and products.

Capitalization

For the benefit of shareholders and policyholders alike, Allianz’s aim
is to ensure that the Group is adequately capitalized at all times and
that all operating entities meet their respective regulatory capital
requirements. Furthermore, risk capital and cost of capital are
important aspects taken into account in business decisions.

Our risk capital reflecting our risk profile plays a significant role
in the management of capital across the Group. In addition, we take
into account the external requirements of regulators and rating
agencies. While capital requirements imposed by regulators consti-
tute a binding constraint, meeting rating agencies’ capital require-
ments and maintaining strong credit ratings are strategic business
objectives of the Allianz Group.

We closely monitor the capital position of the Group and its
operating entities along each of these dimensions, and apply regular
stress tests based on standard adverse scenarios. This allows us to
take appropriate measures to ensure our continued capital and sol-
vency strength.
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REGULATORY CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Allianz Group is a financial conglomerate within the scope of the
E.U. Financial Conglomerates Directive and the related German law
in force since 1January 2005. The law requires that a financial con-
glomerate calculates the capital available to meet its solvency
requirements on a consolidated basis, which we refer to as “eligible
capital”. For the 2015 financial year, the requirements for our insur-
ance business are based on Solvency I. These capital requirements,
as well as the definition and calculation of eligible capital, will be
replaced by the Solvency 11 rules once the new regulation becomes
binding on 1January 2016. Allianz expects to be well capitalized also
under these future regulatory requirements.

CONGLOMERATE SOLVENCY"

€BN

as of 31 December 2014
Eligible capital 49.8
Requirement 27.6

Solvency ratio 181%

1 — Off-balance sheet reserves are accepted by the authorities as eligible capital only upon request. Allianz S
has not submitted an application so far. Excluding off-balance sheet reserves, the conglomerate solvency
ratios would be 191 % and 172 % as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

The conglomerate solvency ratio increased by 19.6 percentage
points.!

EXTERNAL RATING AGENCY CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Rating agencies apply their own methodology to evaluate the relation-
ship between the required risk capital of a company and its available
capital resources. An assessment of capital adequacy is usually an
integral part of the rating process. Moody's, Standard & Poor’s and
AM. Best affirmed their Allianz Group's rating in 2015.

The Allianz Group has one of the highest ratings amongst its
peers. The following table provides the ratings of the Allianz Group
awarded by major rating agencies.

1 — For further details on changes in eligible capital and solvency requirement, please refer to Balance Sheet
Review from page 98.
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RATINGS OF THE ALLIANZ GROUP

Insurer financial Counterparty credit Commercial paper

Ratings’ strength rating rating (short-term) rating
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Standard AA AA AA AA A-1+ A-1+
& Poor’s Stable Stable Stable Stable  (affirmed
outlook  outlook outlook  outlook December
(affirmed (affirmed 2015)
December December
2015) 2015)2
Moody's Aa3 Aa3 Aa3 Aa3 Prime-1  Prime-1
Stable Stable Stable Stable  (affirmed
outlook  outlook outlook  outlook? October
(affirmed (affirmed 2015)
October October
2015) 2015)2
A.M. Best A+ A+ aa- aa- Notrated Notrated
Stable Stable
outlook outlook®
(affirmed (affirmed
September September
2015) 2015)

1 —Includes ratings for securities issued by Allianz Finance 11 B.v. and Allianz Finance Corporation.
2 — Rating reflects senior unsecured debt.
3 —Issuer credit rating.

As part of the long-term financial strength rating, Standard & Poor’s
has a rating for “Enterprise Risk Management” (ERM). Since 2013,
Standard & Poor’s has assigned Allianz its highest possible rating —
“very strong” — for the ERM capabilities of our insurance operations.
This indicates that Standard & Poor’s regards it as “unlikely that
Allianz Group will experience major losses outside its risk tolerance”.
Standard & Poor’s stated that the assessment is based on Allianz’s
strong risk management culture, strong controls for the majority of
key risks, and strong strategic risk management. In addition, Stan-
dard & Poor’s reviewed our internal risk capital framework, for the
first time in 2012 and since then on an annual basis. Based on this
review, Standard & Poor’s has given further credit to the capital posi-
tion of the Allianz Group since the fourth quarter of 2012 by taking
into account the results based on our internal risk capital framework
when determining the capital requirements to meet specific rating
classes.

SOLVENCY Il REGULATORY CAPITALIZATION

The Allianz Group’s own funds as well as the capital requirements are
based on the market value balance sheet approach as the major eco-
nomic principle of Solvency 1I rules.! From 1January 2016 onwards,
the Solvency 11 capitalization will replace the capitalization based on
Solvency 1 as the regulatory binding one. Our objective is to maintain
available capital at the Group level that is above the minimum indi-
cated requirements and consistent with our risk profile, risk appetite
and capital management strategy. Our capitalization based on these

1 — Own funds and capital requirement are calculated under consideration of volatility adjustment and yield
curve extension, as described in Yield curve and volatility adjustment assumptions on page 116.
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requirements is shown in the following table. Our u.s.-based life busi-
ness, Allianz Life of North America (Az Life), is included on the basis
of third-country equivalence treatment?.

ALLIANZ GROUP: SOLVENCY Il REGULATORY CAPITALIZATION

€BN

as of 31 December 2015 2014
Own funds 72.7 66.0
Capital requirement 36.4 34.6

Capitalization ratio 200% 191%

Compared to year-end 2014, our Solvency I capitalization increased
9 percentage points to 200 %, which was mainly driven by an increase
in own funds only partly compensated for by an increase in risk cap-
ital. The change in own funds was driven by positive contributions of
existing and new business as well as the issuance of a subordinated
bond, partially offset by negative impacts from model changes and
transferability restrictions. The change in risk capital was mainly
driven by higher exposure due to business growth and model changes
necessary in the context of our internal model application. Impacts
of model changes on our risk profile are presented in the section
Model changes in 2015. This increase in risk capital was also partially
offset by actions to reduce our sensitivity to market movements, in
particular our sensitivity to interest rates.

The following table summarizes our Solvency 1l regulatory capi-
talization ratios disclosed over the course of the year 2015.

ALLIANZ GROUP: SOLVENCY Il REGULATORY CAPITALIZATION RATIOS

%

31 December 30 September 30June 31 March 31 December
2015 2015 2015 2015 2014

Capitalization
ratio 200 200 212 192 191

The solvency ratio as of 31 December 2015 reflects regulatory model
changes necessary for the go-live of Solvency 11in 2016. These changes
are described in detail in the section Model changes in 2015.

The following table presents the sensitivity of our predicted Sol-
vency I capitalization ratio under certain standard financial scenar-
ios. These are defined by reasonably possible individual movements
in key market parameters, while keeping all other parameters con-
stant, with the effects impacting both the available capital and the
internal risk capital.

2 — Third-country equivalence treatment for Az Life means that the entity is included at Group level with 150 %
of the local statutory capital requirement for life insurance companies (“Company Action Level RBC").
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ALLIANZ GROUP: SOLVENCY Il REGULATORY CAPITALIZATION RATIOS

%
as of 31 December

Base capitalization ratio
Interest rates up by 0.5 %’
Interest rates down by 0.5 %!
Equity prices up by 30%
Equity prices down by 30%

Combined scenario:
Interest rate down by 0.5 %'
Equity prices down by 30%

2015

200

208

185

208

190

176

2014

191
205
170
199
179

158

1 — Non-parallel interest rate shifts due to extrapolation of the yield curve beyond the last liquid point in line

with forthcoming Solvency i rules.

ALLIANZ GROUP: ALLOCATED RISK ACCORDING TO THE RISK PROFILE (TOTAL PORTFOLIO BEFORE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS)

RISK PROFILE

With Solvency 11 becoming the binding regulatory regime and the
approval of our partial internal model, risk is measured and steered
based on the risk profile underlying our regulatory capital require-
ment. By that we allow for a consistent view on risk steering and
capitalization under the Solvency 1t framework. This is supplemented
by economic business scenarios and sensitivities.

This Risk and Opportunity Report outlines the Group’s risk fig-
ures, reflecting its risk profile based on pre-diversified risk figures and
group-diversification effects. Pre-diversified risk figures reflect the
diversification effect within each modeled risk category (i.e. market,
credit, underwriting, business, and operational risk) but does not
comprise the diversification effects across risk categories. Group-
diversified risk figures also capture the diversification effect across

all risk categories.

As of 31 December 2015, the group-diversified risk reflecting our
risk profile before non-controlling interests of €36.4 BN (2014:
€35.3 BN!) represented a diversification benefit? of approximately 27 %
(2014:27%") across risk categories and business segments. The group-
diversified risk is broken down as follows:

€MN
Market risk Credit risk Underwriting risk Business risk Operational risk Diversification Total

as of 31 December 2015 20147 2015 20147 2015 20147 2015 20147 2015 20147 2015 20147 2015 20147

Property-Casualty 5,690 6,050 2,406 2,379 10,101 10,109 937 987 2,274 2,166  (6,663) (6,751) 14,745 14,941

Life/Health 16,516 14,290 6,141 5,408 1,502 1,425 3,687 3,646 2,019 2,110 (7,784) (6,893) 22,081 19,986

Asset Management 146 146 26 26 - - - - 686 686 - - 857 857

Corporate and Other 2,922 2,663 667 701 355 67 - - 580 707 (924) (784) 3,600 3,354

Total Group 25,274 23,150 9,240 8,514 11,958 11,601 4,623 4,634 5,559 5669 (15371) (14,428) 41,283 39,139
Tax (4,860) (3,826)
Total Group 36,423 35,313

1—2014 risk profile figures recalculated based on model changes in 2014, as described in Model changes in
2015 from page 118. With Solvency Il becoming the regulatory binding regime, the breakdown reflects
Allianz's regulatory capital requirements, including the third-country equivalence treatment of Az Life.

Detailed discussions of movements in respective risks are provided

in the sections that follow.

Annual Report 2015 — Allianz Group

1—2014 risk profile figures recalculated based on model changes in 2015 as described in Model changes in

2015 from page 118.
2 —Diversification before tax.
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Internal risk capital framework

We define internal risk capital as the capital required to protect us
against unexpected, extreme economic losses, which forms the basis
for determining our Solvency 11 regulatory capitalization and the
associated risk profile. On a quarterly basis, we calculate and aggre-
gate internal risk capital across all business segments, based on a
common standard for measuring and comparing risks across the
wide range of different activities that we undertake as an integrated
financial services provider.

GENERAL APPROACH

We utilize an approach for the management of our risk profile and
solvency position that reflects the forthcoming Solvency 11 rules. This
comprises our approved partial internal model covering all major
insurance operations!. Other entities are reflected based on their
standard model results as well as on sectoral or local requirements,
in accordance with the Solvency 11 framework. Our partial internal
model is based on a best-practice technical platform with an up-to-
date methodology covering all modeled sources of quantifiable risks.

INTERNAL RISK CAPITAL MODEL

Our partial internal risk capital model is based on a Value-at-Risk
(VaR) approach using a Monte Carlo simulation. Following this
approach, we determine the maximum loss in the portfolio value of
our businesses in the scope of the model within a specified time-
frame (“holding period”) and probability of occurrence (“confidence
level”). We assume a confidence level of 99.5% and apply a holding
period of one year. In the risk simulation, we consider risk events from
all modeled risk categories (“sources of risk”) and calculate the port-
folio value based on the net fair value of assets and liabilities under
potentially adverse conditions.

The risk capital is defined as the difference between the current
portfolio value and the portfolio value under adverse conditions
dependent on the 99.5% confidence level. Because we consider the
impact of a negative or positive event on all sources of risks and cov-
ered businesses at the same time, diversification effects across prod-
ucts and regions are taken into account. The results of our Monte
Carlo simulation allow us to analyze our exposure to each source of
risk, both separately and in aggregate. In addition, in particular for
market risks, we analyze several pre-defined stress scenarios, based
either on historically observed market movements or on hypothetical
market movement assumptions. This modeling approach, therefore,
also enables us to identify scenarios that may have a positive impact
on our solvency situation.

1—As mentioned under Solvency 11 capitalization, Az Life is taken into account by means of third-country
equivalence into the Group capitalization.
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When calculating the fair values of assets and liabilities, the assump-
tions regarding the underlying risk-free yield curve are crucial in
determining and discounting future cash flows. We apply the method-
ology provided by the European Insurance and Occupational Pensions
Authority (ElopA) within the technical documentation (EIOPA-
BoS-15/035) for the extension of the risk-free interest rate curves
beyond the last liquid tenor2.

In addition, we adjust the risk-free yield curves by a volatility
adjustment for all business segments, except unit-linked business
with guarantees in most markets where a volatility adjustment is
defined by EIOPA. This is done to better reflect the underlying eco-
nomics of our business, as the cash flows of our insurance liabilities
are, to a large degree, predictable. The advantage of being a long-term
investor, therefore, is the opportunity to invest in bonds yielding
spreads over the risk-free return and earning this additional yield
component. Being a long-term investor mitigates to a great extent the
risk of forced selling of debt instruments at a loss prior to maturity.
Therefore, we reflect this mitigation using a volatility adjustment
spread risk offset, and view the more relevant risk to be default and
migration risk rather than credit spread risk.

Since efficient valuation and complex, timely analysis is required, we
replicate the liabilities of our Life/Health insurance business as well
as for our internal pension obligations. This technique enables us to
represent all options and guarantees, both contractual and discre-
tionary, by means of standard financial instruments. In the risk cal-
culation we use the replicating portfolio to determine and revalue
these liabilities under all potentially adverse Monte Carlo scenarios.

Our partial internal risk capital model considers concentration, accu-
mulation, and correlation effects when aggregating results at Group
level. This reflects the fact that not all potential worst-case losses are
likely to materialize at the same time. This effect is known as diversi-
fication and forms a central element of our risk management frame-
work.

We strive to diversify the risks we are exposed to in order to limit
the impact of any single source of risk and help increase the chances
that the positive developments outweigh the negative. The degree to
which diversification can be realized depends in part on the level of
relative concentration of those risks and the joint movement of
sources of risk.

Where possible, we derive correlation parameters for each pair
of market risks through statistical analysis of historical market data,
considering quarterly observations over several years. In case historical
market data or other portfolio-specific observations are insufficient
or not available, correlations are set according to a well-defined

2 —Due to late availability of the El0PA publication, the risk-free interest rate term structure used might be
slightly different from the one published by ElOPA.



C— Group Management Report

Risk and Opportunity Report and Financial Control

131 Controls over Financial Reporting and
Risk Capital

Group-wide process. Correlations are determined by the Correlation
Settings Committee, which combines the expertise of risk and busi-
ness experts. In general, we set the correlation parameters to represent
the joint movement of risks under adverse conditions. Based on these
correlations, we use an industry-standard approach, the Gaussian
copula approach, to determine the dependency structure of quantifi-
able sources of risk within the applied Monte Carlo simulation.

Our partial internal risk capital model also includes assumptions on
claims trends, liability inflation, mortality, longevity, morbidity, policy-
holder behavior, expense, etc. We use our own internal historical
data for actuarial assumptions wherever possible and also consider
recommendations from the insurance industry, supervisory authori-
ties, and actuarial associations. The derivation of our actuarial
assumptions is based on generally accepted actuarial methods. With-
in our internal risk capital and financial reporting framework, com-
prehensive processes and controls exist for ensuring the reliability of
these assumptions.

SCOPE

By design, our partial internal risk capital model takes into account
the following risk categories: market risk, credit risk, underwriting
risk, business risk, and operational risk — whenever these risks are
present. A further breakdown of the risk categories can be found in
the section on internal risk assessment. With the exception of the
Asset Management business segment, all business segments are
exposed to the full range of stated risk categories. By contrast, the
Asset Management business segment is mainly exposed to opera-
tional and market risk and to a lesser extent to credit risk.

Allianz’s partial internal risk capital model covers all major insur-
ance operations!. This includes the relevant assets (including bonds,
loans, mortgages, investment funds, equities and real estate) and
liabilities (including the cash flow run-off profile of all technical
reserves as well as deposits, issued debt, and other liabilities). For
with-profit products in the Life/Health business segment, options
and guarantees embedded in insurance contracts —including policy-
holder participation rules — are taken into account.?

Smaller entities within the European Economic Area which are
not covered by the partial internal model are reflected based on their
standard model results. At Group level, the capital requirements for
smaller insurance operating entities outside the European Economic
Area that have only an immaterial impact on the Group’s risk profile
are treated with book value deduction?.

1 —As mentioned under Solvency I capitalization, Az Life is taken into account by means of third-country
equivalence into the Group capitalization.

2 — For further information about participating life business, please refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

3 —Under book value deduction, the book value of the respective entity is deducted from eligible own funds
of the Group.
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Risk capital related to our European banking operations is allo-
cated to the Corporate and Other business segment, based on the
approach applied by banks under the local requirements with respect
to the Basel regulation (Basel standards). Capital requirements for
banks represent an insignificant amount of approximately 1.5 % (2014:
1.3%*) of our total pre-diversified risk. Therefore, risk management
with respect to banking operations is not discussed in more detail.

For our Asset Management business segment, we assign internal
risk capital requirements based on the sectorial regulatory capital
requirements as envisaged in Solvency 1. The Asset Management
business is mainly affected by operational risks. However, since most
of our Asset Management business is not located within the Euro-
zone, at the Group level it also bears foreign exchange rate risk. Our
Asset Management business is covered by adequate risk controlling
processes, including regular reporting and qualitative risk assess-
ments (such as Top Risk Assessment) to the Group. However, since it
is mainly affected by the previously mentioned two risk types (opera-
tional and foreign exchange rate), and due to the fact that the impact
on total pre-diversified risk capital is minor, risk management with
respect to Asset Management is not discussed in more detail.

Our partial internal risk capital model expresses the potential “worst-
case” amount in economic value that we might lose at a certain con-
fidence level. However, there is statistically a low probability of 0.5%
that actual losses could exceed this threshold at Group level in the
course of one year.

We use model and scenario parameters derived from historical
data, where available, to characterize future possible risk events. If
future market conditions differ substantially from the past, for exam-
plein an unprecedented crisis, our VaR approach may be too conser-
vative or too liberal in ways that are too difficult to predict. In order to
mitigate reliance on historical data, we complement our VaR analysis
with stress testing. Our ability to back-test the model’s accuracy is
limited because of the high confidence level of 99.5%, the one-year
holding period as well as the fact that for some insurance risk events
—such as natural catastrophes — only limited data are available.

Furthermore, as historical data is used where possible to cali-
brate the model, historical data cannot be used for validation. Instead,
we validate the model and parameters through sensitivity analyses,
independent internal peer reviews and, where appropriate, external
reviews by independent consulting firms, focusing on methods for
selecting parameters and control processes. To ensure proper valida-
tion we established an Independent Validation Unit (1vu) within
Group Risk responsible for validating our partial internal model
within a comprehensive model validation process. Overall, we believe
that our validation efforts are effective and that the model adequately
assesses the risks to which we are exposed.

4—2014 risk profile figures recalculated based on model changes in 2015, as described in Model changes in
2015 from page 118.
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As described in a previous section, insurance liability values in
the risk calculation are derived from replicating portfolios of standard
financial market instruments in order to allow for effective risk man-
agement. This replication is subject to the set of available replicating
instruments and might, therefore, be too simple or too restrictive to
capture all factors affecting the change in value of liabilities. As with
other model components, the replications are subject to independent
validation and to suitability assessments as well as to stringent data
and process quality controls. Therefore, we believe that the liabilities
are adequately represented by the replicating portfolios.

Since the partial internal risk capital model takes into account
the change in the economic fair value of our assets and liabilities, it is
crucial to estimate the market value of each item accurately. For some
assets and liabilities it may be difficult, if not impossible — notably in
distressed financial markets —to obtain either a current market price
or to apply a meaningful mark-to-market approach. For such assets
we apply a mark-to-model approach. Non-standardized derivative
instruments — such as derivatives embedded in structured financial
products — are represented by the most comparable standard deriva-

tive types or by means of sensitivities, because the volume of non-
standard instruments is not material at either the local or Group
level. For some of our liabilities, the accuracy of their values depends
on the quality of the actuarial cash flow estimates. Despite these
limitations, we believe the estimated fair values are appropriately
assessed.

MODEL CHANGES IN 2015
In 2015, our partial internal model has been adjusted, based on both
regulatory developments and feedback received during the ongoing
consultations with regulators as part of our internal model approval
process. For the sake of clarity, all model changes and the resulting
changes to our risk profile are presented jointly within this section,
based on data as of 31 December 2014. This also comprises changes
in the model scope, for example the third-country equivalence treat-
ment of Az Life, in order to reflect the risk profile according to the new
regulatory binding capital requirement, effective from 1 January 2016.
In all subsequent sections the figures after the model changes
will form the basis for the movement analysis of our risk profile in 2015.

ALLIANZ GROUP: IMPACT OF MODEL CHANGE, ALLOCATED RISK ACCORDING TO RISK PROFILE (TOTAL PORTFOLIO BEFORE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS)

€MN
Market risk Credit risk Underwriting risk Business risk Operational risk Diversification Total

as of 31 December 20147 20142 20147 20142 20147 20142 20147 20142 20147 20142 20147 20142 20147 20142

Property-Casualty 6,120 6,050 2,374 2,379 9,619 10,109 917 987 1,797 2,166 (7,246) (6,751) 13,582 14,941

Life/Health 18,569 14,290 7,817 5,408 1,626 1,425 4,404 3,646 2,035 2,110 (10,161) (6,893) 24,291 19,986

Asset Management 521 146 128 26 - - - - 668 686 - - 1,317 857

Corporate and Other 2,891 2,663 699 701 65 67 - - 645 707 (883) (784) 3,417 3,354

Total Group 28,102 23,150 11,018 8,514 11,311 11,601 5,321 4,634 5,146 5,669 (18,291) (14,428) 42,607 39,139
Tax (4,180) (3,826)
Total Group 38,427 35,313

1—2014 risk profile figures as reported previously.
2 —2014risk profile figures recalculated based on new model.

The change in model scope to reflect our risk profile according to the
Solvency 11 capital requirements was the most significant driver for
changes in the modeling of our risk capital. Thereof, the change to
include Az Life on the basis of third-country equivalence treatment
was the main contributor, with the main impact on market and cred-
itrisks. In addition, Allianz Benelux and Allianz Compania de Seguros
were switched from the partial internal model to the standard model.
Finally, we included some smaller entities (Turkey, Taiwan and Brazil)
based on their standard model figures while they had previously been
taken into account by book value deduction.

Otherwise, changes to our partial internal model focused on the
following risk categories:
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Market risk was significantly affected by the change in model scope.
In addition, the modelling of how impairments within special funds
are treated was updated to better reflect the management of special
funds. Furthermore, the assumptions on dynamic lapses were
adjusted, based on updated lapse evaluations, to better reflect policy-
holder behaviorin a low interest rate environment. Also the modelling
of cash flows related to Surplus funds under emergency scenarios
was enhanced to better reflect the Surplus fund value. Finally, there
are regulatory required add-ons on Group level allocated to segments
and risk types. The different model changes decreased the total market
risk by € 5.0 BN to € 23.1 BN.
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In 2015, no new model changes were implemented to the credit risk
model. Only annual updates of rating transition matrices and asset
correlations based on extended time series were introduced. Never-
theless, the model change related to modeling of the loss-absorbing
capacity of technical provisions in the traditional life business had
also animpact on creditrisk, leading to a decrease of € 0.3 BN. In total,
credit risk decreased on a pre-diversified basis by € 2.5 BN to € 8.5 BN,
primarily driven by the changes in model scope.

The decrease in underwriting risk both in the Life/Health and the
Property-Casualty business segment is mainly due to the change in
model scope.

The decrease in business risk in the Life/Health business segment is
mainly due to the change in model scope and parametrization
changes for dynamic lapses.

In 2015, a central model change regarding a more conservative defini-
tion of operational risk capital led to an overall increase in opera-
tional risk capital.

Model changes in 2015 resulted in a € 0.3 BN decrease of own funds,
mainly driven by changes in unavailability deductions partly offset
by regulatory and model changes as well as scope changes. The scope
changes refer to the new in-scope entities Brazil, Turkey and Taiwan
and increased own funds by € 1.1 BN. The unavailability deductions
increased by € 1.7 BN, mainly driven by lower capital requirements
which limit the transferability. Remaining changes relate to model
changes effecting the valuation of technical provisions.

Internal risk assessment

RISK PROFILE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

As we are an integrated financial services provider offering a variety
of products across different business segments and geographic
regions, diversification is key to our business model. Diversification
is a key element in managing our risks efficiently by limiting the eco-
nomic impact of any single event and by contributing to relatively
stable results and our risk profile in general. Therefore, our aim is to
maintain a balanced risk profile without any disproportionately large
risk concentrations and accumulations.

With respect to investments, top-down indicators such as stra-
tegic asset allocations are defined and closely monitored to ensure
balanced investment portfolios. Furthermore, we have a limit system
in place which is defined at Group level separately for the Life/Health
and the Property-Casualty business segments as well as at operating
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entity level. The limits comprise economic limits, in particular finan-
cial VaR and credit VaR as derived from the internal risk capital frame-
work, complemented by stand-alone interest rate and equity sensi-
tivity limits as well as by limits on foreign exchange exposures. In
addition we introduced capitalization limits, defining target Solvency
1 capitalization ratios on Group as well as operating entity level after
applying shock scenarios.

Our limit-setting process ensures that prevailing statutory
restrictions regarding the composition of investments are taken into
account. Most statutory restrictions apply at the local level, where the
statutory restrictions as binding constraints enter the limit-setting
processes. In addition, guidelines are derived by the Group center for
certain investments, for example concerning the use of derivatives,
and compliance with the guidelines is controlled by the respective
risk and controlling functions.

In order to further limit the impact of any financial market
changes and to ensure that assets adequately back policyholder lia-
bilities, we have additional measures in place. One of these is asset/
liability management, linked to the internal risk capital framework,
which incorporates risks as well as return aspects stemming from our
insurance obligations. In addition, we are using derivatives mostly to
either hedge our portfolio against adverse market movements or to
reduce our reinvestment risk — for example by using forwards or
swaptions.

Furthermore, we have put in place standards for hedging activi-
ties due to exposures to fair value options embedded in life insurance
products. Life/Health operating entities carrying these exposures are
required to follow these standards, including making a conscious
decision on the amount of hedging.! The hedging of risks stemming
from investments is also an element applied to manage and limit
risks efficiently. For example, protective puts are used to limit the
downward exposure of certain investments2.

We also closely monitor concentrations and accumulation of
non-market risks on a stand-alone basis (i.e. before diversification
effects) within a global limit framework in order to avoid substantial
losses from single events such as natural catastrophes, terror or
credit events.

In order to manage counterparty concentration risk, we run a
Group-wide country and obligor group limit management frame-
work (CRisP3), which covers credit and equity exposures and is based
on data used by the investment and risk experts at the Group and
operating entity levels. This limit framework forms the basis for dis-
cussions on credit actions and provides notification services with a
quick and broad communication of credit-related decisions across
the Group. Clearly defined processes ensure that exposure concen-
trations and limit utilizations are appropriately monitored and man-
aged. The setting of country and obligor exposure limits from the

1 — For further information about the risk concentration in the Life/Health business segment, please refer to
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

2 — For further information on derivatives used for hedging, please refer to note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

3 — Credit Risk Platform.
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Group’s perspective (i.e. the maximum concentration limit) takes
into account the Allianz Group’s portfolio size and structure as well
as our overall risk strategy.

It is the ultimate responsibility of the Board of Management to
decide upon limit budgets. The Board of Management delegates
authorities for limit setting and modification to the Group Finance
and Risk Committee and Group Chief Risk Officer by clearly defining
maximum limit amounts. All limits are subject to annual review and
approval according to the delegated authorities.

RISK BASED STEERING

Allianz steers its portfolio using a comprehensive view of risk and
return, i.e. results based on the partial internal risk model including
scenario-based analyses are used actively for decision making: on the
one hand, economic risk and concentrations are actively restricted
by means of limits as outlined above and on the other hand, there is
a comprehensive analysis of the return on risk capital (RORC). The
latter allows us to identify profitable lines of business and products
on a sustainable basis, which provide reasonable profits on allocated
risk capital over the life time of the products. Therefore, it is a key
criterion for capital allocation decisions.

In addition, central elements of Allianz’s dividend policy are
linked to the Solvency 11 capitalization based on our partial internal
model. This shows that the partial internal model is fully integrated
in the business steering of Allianz and that the application of the par-
tial internal model satisfies the so-called “use-test” under Solvency 11.

In the following sections we explain the evolution of the risk pro-
file per modeled risk category. All risks are presented on a pre-diver-
sified basis and concentrations of single sources of risk are discussed
accordingly.

QUANTIFIABLE RISKS

As aninherent part of our insurance operations, we collect premiums
from our customers and invest them in a wide variety of assets.
Thereby, the Allianz Group holds and uses many different financial
instruments. The resulting investment portfolios back the future
claims and benefits to our customers. In addition, we invest share-
holders’ capital, which is required to support the risks underwritten.
As the fair values of our investment portfolios depend on financial
markets, which may change over time, we are exposed to market
risks. The following table presents our Group-wide risk figures related
to market risks by business segment and source of risk.

ALLIANZ GROUP: RISK PROFILE — MARKET RISK BY BUSINESS SEGMENT AND SOURCE OF RISK (TOTAL PORTFOLIO BEFORE TAX AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS)

pre-diversified, € MN

Interest rate Inflation Credit spread Equity Real estate Currency Total

as of 31 December 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
Property-Casualty 526 3,431 576 914 544 58 6,050
Life/Health 5,934 528 2,973 3,804 1,003 48 14,290
Asset Management 20 - - 20 20 86 146
Corporate and Other 452 221 408 1,272 96 213 2,663
Total Group 6,932 4,181 3,957 6,011 1,663 405 23,150

Share of total Group pre-diversified risk 43.2%

Our total pre-diversified market risk showed an increase of € 2.1 BN
mainly driven by equity and credit spread risk in the Life/Health seg-
ment. The increase in equity risk was mainly driven by higher expo-
sure. This was partly offset by a decrease in interest rate risk, pre-
dominantly due to management actions aiming at reducing our
interest rate sensitivity by asset/liability management (ALM) mea-
sures. This, however, also contributed to some extent to the increase
in credit spread risk, for example due to some duration extension on
the asset side. The decrease in inflation risk was mainly driven by the
hedging of inflation exposure and higher discount rates, resulting in
lower market values of inflation-sensitive liabilities and internal
pension liabilities. Real estate risk increased mainly due to higher
exposure.
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Interest rate risk

As interest rates may fall below the rates guaranteed to policyholders
in some life/health markets, and given the long duration of insurance
obligations, we are specifically exposed to interest rate risk because
we have to reinvest maturing assets prior to the maturity of life con-
tracts. This interaction of our investment strategy and obligations to
policyholders forms an integral part of our internal risk capital
framework. In addition, our ALM approach is closely linked to the
internal risk capital framework and designed to achieve investment
returns over the long term in excess of the obligations related to
insurance and investment contracts.
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These risks are reflected in the risk profile and managed by
interest rate sensitivity limits. A significant part of the Life/Health
business segment’s pre-diversified interest rate risk lies in Western
Europe —76.5% as of 31 December 2015 (2014: 83.4%) —, mainly to cover
traditional life insurance products with guarantees.

We manage interest rate risk from a comprehensive corporate
perspective: While the potential payments related to our liabilities in
the Property-Casualty business segment are typically shorter in
maturity than the financial assets backing them, the opposite usu-
ally holds true for our Life/Health business segment due to the long-
term life insurance contracts. In part, this provides us with a natural
hedge on an economic basis at the Group level.

As of 31 December 2015, our interest-rate-sensitive investments
excluding unit-linked business — amounting to a market value of
€419.3 BN! —would have gained € 30.6 BN or lost € 32.8 BN in value in
case of interestrates changing by (100) and +100 basis points, respec-
tively.

As described above, the risk related to interest rates lies in the
fact that, in the long run, yields that can be achieved by reinvesting
may not be sufficient enough to cover the guaranteed rates. In con-
trast, opportunities may materialize when interest rates increase.
This may result in higher returns from reinvestments than the guar-
anteed rates.

Inflation risk

As an insurance company we are exposed to changing inflation rates,
predominantly due to our non-life insurance obligations. In addition,
internal pension obligations contribute to our exposure to inflation.
Since inflation increases both claims and costs, higher inflation rates
will lead to greater liabilities. Inflation assumptions are already taken
into account in our product development and pricing and the risk of
changing inflation rates is incorporated in our partial internal model.

Equity risk

The Allianz Group’s insurance operating entities usually hold equity
investments to diversify their portfolios and take advantage of
expected long-term returns. Strategic asset allocation benchmarks
and investment limits are used to manage and monitor these expo-
sures. In addition, equity investments fall within the scope of CRisP
to avoid a disproportionately large concentration of risk.

As of 31 December 2015, our investments excluding unit-linked
business that are sensitive to changing equity markets —amounting
to a market value of € 44.2 BN2 — would have lost € 12.9 BN in value
assuming equity markets declined by 30%.

1 — The stated market value includes all investments whose market value is sensitive to interest rate move-
ments (excluding unit-linked business) reflecting the Solvency Il framework, and therefore is not based
on classifications given by accounting principles.

2 —The stated market value includes all investments whose market value is sensitive to equity movements
(excluding unit-linked business) reflecting the Solvency Il framework, and therefore is not based on clas-
sifications given by accounting principles.
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Risks from changes in equity prices are normally associated with
decreasing share prices and increasing equity price volatilities. As
stock markets also might increase, opportunities may arise from
equity investments.

Credit spread risk
Our internal risk capital framework fully acknowledges the risk of
declining market values for our fixed-income assets, such as bonds,
due to the widening of credit spreads. However, for our risk manage-
ment and appetite we also take into account the underlying econom-
ics of our business model; for example, the application of the volatil-
ity adjustment in our internal risk capital framework to partially
mitigate spread risk, as described in the section on yield curve
assumptions.

The advantage of being a long-term investor therefore gives us
the opportunity to invest in bonds yielding spreads over the risk-free
return and earning this additional yield component.

Currency risk

Based on our foreign exchange management limit framework, cur-
rency risk is monitored and managed at the operating entity and
Group level. As our operating entities are typically invested in assets
of the same currency as their liabilities, the major part of foreign cur-
rency risk results from the economic value of our non-Euro operating
entities. If non-Euro foreign exchange rates decline against the Euro
from a Group perspective, the Euro-equivalent net asset values also
decrease. However, at the same time the capital requirements in Euro
terms from the respective non-Euro entity also decrease, partially
mitigating the total impact on the capitalization.

Real estate risk

Despite the risk of decreasing real estate values, real estate is a suitable
addition to our investment portfolio, due to good diversification
benefits as well as to the contribution of relatively predictable cash-
flows in the long term. As of 31 December 2015, about 3.5% (2014: 3.1%3)
of the total pre-diversified risk was related to real estate exposures.

The Allianz Group monitors and manages credit risk exposures and
concentrations to ensure it is able to meet policyholder obligations
when they are due. This objective is supported by the internal credit
risk model and the CRisP as described under the section on the risk
profile. Group-wide credit data is collected following a centralized
process and using standard obligor and obligor group mappings.
Credit risk is measured as the potential economic loss in the
value of our portfolio due to changes in the credit quality of our coun-
terparts (“migration risk”) or the inability or unwillingness of the
counterparty to fulfill contractual obligations (“default risk”). Our
internal credit risk modeling framework covers counterparty risk and

3 —2014 figure recalculated based on model changes in 2015 as described in Model changes in 2015 from
page 118.
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country risk. Counterparty risk arises from our fixed-income invest-
ments, cash positions, derivatives, structured transactions, receiv-
ables from Allianz agents and other debtors, as well as reinsurance
recoverables and credit insurance. Country risk exposure is calcu-
lated as cross-border exposure to all obligors domiciled abroad from
the respective operating entities’ perspective.

The internal credit risk capital model is a state-of-the-art tool
which provides bottom-up analysis. The major drivers of credit risk
for each instrument are exposure at default, ratings, seniority, col-
lateral and maturity. Additional parameters assigned to obligors are
migration probabilities and obligor asset correlations reflecting
dependencies within the portfolio. Ratings are assigned to single obli-
gors via an internal rating approach, which is based on long-term
ratings from rating agencies. It is dynamically adjusted using market-
implied ratings and the most recently available information.

The loss profile of a given portfolio is obtained through a Monte-
Carlo simulation, taking into account interdependencies and expo-
sure concentrations per obligor segment. To reflect portfolio specific
diversification effects, the loss profiles are calculated at different
levels of the Allianz Group structure (pre-diversified). They are then
fed into the overall partial internal risk capital model for further
aggregation across sources of risk to derive group-diversified internal
credit risk.

By managing our credit risk on the basis of our limit manage-
ment and credit risk modeling frameworks, we have composed a
well-diversified credit portfolio. Our long-term investment strategy to
hold investments through the cycle to maturity enables us to keep
our portfolio stable even under adverse market conditions. It also
gives us the opportunity to earn planned excess returns throughout
the entire holding period of the investments. In our credit insurance
business, proactive credit management offers opportunities to keep
losses from single credit events below expected levels and therefore
strongly supports writing business that contributes to a balanced
Group credit portfolio.

ALLIANZ GROUP: RISK PROFILE — ALLOCATED CREDIT RISK BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
(TOTAL PORTFOLIO BEFORE TAX AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS)

pre-diversified, € MN

as of 31 December 2015 20141
Property-Casualty 2,406 2,379
Life/Health 6,141 5,408
Asset Management 26 26
Corporate and Other 667 701
Total Group 9,240 8,514
Share of total Group pre-diversified risk 16.3% 15.9%

1— 2014 risk profile figures recalculated based on model changes in 2015.

Throughout 2015 the credit environment was mostly stable. There
were limited rating actions, as the economic situation and outlook
were already reflected in current rating levels, compared to the eco-
nomic disruptions of previous years. The credit risk for the Group
increased, mainly due to reduced loss-absorbing capacity of technical
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provisions in the traditional life business, which increased the credit
risk after policyholder participation. Additionally, for the purpose of
asset/liability management under the low-yield environment the
amount of long-duration assets has grown, which further contrib-
uted to the increase of credit risk, particularly in the Life/Health busi-
ness segment.

The following table displays the sensitivities of credit risk to cer-
tain scenarios: a deterioration of credit quality measured by issuer
rating! downgrades and the decline of recovery rates in the event of a
default (Loss-Given-Default, LGD). The sensitivities are calculated by
applying each scenario to all exposures individually, but keeping all
other parameters constant.?

ALLIANZ GROUP: IMPACT OF SELECTED CREDIT SCENARIOS ON CREDIT RISK®

pre-diversified, € MN

Total
as of 31 December 2015 20142
Base case 9,240 8,514
Rating down by 1 notch 10,135 9,313
Rating down by 2 notches 11,485 10,560
LGD up by 10% 9,780 8,988

1 —Anotch is referred to rating sub-classes, such as “AA+", “AA”, “AA-" at Standard & Poor's scale or “Aa1”,
“Aa2", "Aa3" at Moody's scale.

2 —2014risk profile figures recalculated based on model changes in 2015.

The majority of credit risk and the impact of sensitivity analysis can
be allocated to long-term sovereign debt as well as senior unsecured
bonds with lower investment grade borrowers.

The different components of Allianz credit risk exposure are
described in the table below:

ALLIANZ COMPONENTS OF CREDIT RISK EXPOSURE

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

Premiums collected from our customers and shareholders’ capital, which is required
to support the risks underwritten, are invested to a great extent in fixed-income
instruments. These investment portfolios ultimately cover the future claims to our
customers. However, for certain life insurance products, losses due to credit events can
be shared with the policyholder, as described in the context of market risks.

REINSURANCE PORTFOLIO

Credit risk to external reinsurers appears when insurance risk exposures are transferred
by us to external reinsurance companies to mitigate insurance risk. Potential losses can
arise either due to non-recoverability of reinsurance receivables already present at the
as-of date or default on benefits that are under reinsurance treaties in-force.

CREDIT INSURANCE PORTFOLIO

Credit risk arises from potential claim payments on limits granted by Euler Hermes to
its policyholders. Euler Hermes protects its policyholders (partially) from credit risk
associated with short-term trade credits advanced to clients of the policyholder. If the
client of the policyholder is unable to meet its payment obligations, Euler Hermes
indemnifies the loss to the policyholder.

1 — Credit risk calculations are based on issuer (borrower) ratings as opposed to issue (instrument) ratings.
The difference between issue and issuer ratings is primarily due to collateralization and seniority and is
reflected in Loss-Given-Default (LGD).

2 —Scenarios are applied only to investment and reinsurance exposure positions in portfolios of Allianz
operating entities.
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Credit risk — investment

As of 31 December 2015, credit risk arising from the investment port-
folio accounted for 88.2 % (2014: 92.7 %) of our total Group pre-diversi-
fied internal credit risk. Credit Risk in the Life/Health business seg-
ment is primarily driven by long-term assets covering long-term
liabilities. Typical investments are government bonds, senior corpo-
rate bonds, covered bonds, self-originated mortgages and loans, as
well as a modest amount of derivatives. Due to the nature of the busi-
ness, the fixed-income securities in the Property-Casualty business
segment tend to be short- to mid-term, which explains the lower
Credit Risk consumption in this segment.!

RATING DISTRIBUTION OF ALLIANZ GROUP'S FIXED-INCOME PORTFOLIO" — FAIR VALUE

Allianz has a well-diversified portfolio of Exchange- and otc-
traded derivatives that are used as part of an efficient exposure man-
agement. The counterparty credit risk arising from derivatives is low,
since the derivatives usage is governed by the Group-wide internal
guidelines for collateralization of derivatives that stipulate master
netting and collateral agreements with each counterparty and require
high quality and liquid collateral. In addition, Allianz closely moni-
tors the credit ratings of counterparties and exposure movements.
Central clearing of certain classes of 0TC derivatives as required by
the European Market Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR) and additional
reporting duties will contribute to further reducing counterparty
credit risk and operational risk at Allianz.

As of 31 December 2015, the rating distribution based on issue
(instrument) ratings of our fixed income portfolio was as follows:

€BN

Type of Government &

issuer Agency Covered Bond Corporate Banks ABS/MBS Short-term Loan Other Total

as of

31 December 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
AAA 44.8 51.8 57.7 57.2 2.4 1.1 1.1 1.5 16.0 17.3 0.1 - - - 122.1 128.8
AA 95.9 84.0 23.8 20.2 11.3 10.3 6.2 6.6 3.0 24 1.1 1.4 0.1 0.1 141.4 125.2
A 15.8 15.5 11.4 23.1 49.8 45.6 14.6 16.8 1.7 2.0 0.6 0.9 0.8 0.9 94.6 104.8
BBB 52.9 50.9 5.0 6.0 81.9 72.8 7.3 5.6 0.6 0.7 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.6 148.7 137.2
BB 3.9 2.7 0.5 1.0 9.5 7.2 1.6 1.5 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 - - 15.8 12.7
B 1.6 0.8 - 0.1 3.0 3.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 - - - - 4.8 4.3
CCC - - - - 0.3 0.1 - 0.1 - - - - - 0.4 0.3
CcC - - - - 0.1 0.1 0.1 - 0.1 0.2 - - - - 0.2 0.3
C - - - - 0.1 0.1 - - 0.1 - - - - 0.1 0.1
D 0.1 0.1 - - 0.4 0.4 - - - - - - - 0.5 0.5
Not rated 2.5 3.4 0.3 0.1 6.2 4.3 0.4 0.2 - 0.5 0.3 2.8 1.7 12.7 10.0
Total 217.5 209.3 98.7 107.6 164.9 145.1 313 324 21.6 229 3.0 3.6 4.3 33 5414 524.3

1 —In accordance with the Group Management Report, figures stated include investments of Banking and
Asset Management. Table excludes private loans. Stated market values include investments not in scope
of the Solvency Il framework.

Credit risk - reinsurance

As of 31 December 2015, 0.4% (2014: 0.4 %) of our total Group pre-diver-
sified internal credit risk was allocated to reinsurance exposures — of
which 52.0% (2014: 58.5%) was related to reinsurance counterparties
in the United States and Germany.

1 —Additionally, 4.8% (2014: 2.4%) of our total Group pre-diversified internal credit risk is allocated to receiv-
ables, potential future exposure for derivatives and reinsurance, and other off-balance sheet exposures.
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A dedicated team selects our reinsurance partners, focusing on
companies with strong credit profiles. We may also require letters of
credit, cash deposits, or other financial measures to further mitigate
our exposure to credit risk. As of 31 December 2015, 86.0% (2014: 82.9%)
of the Allianz Group's reinsurance recoverables were distributed
among reinsurers that had been assigned at least an “A-" rating by
Standard & Poor’s or A.M. Best. As of 31 December 2015, non-rated
reinsurance recoverables represented 13.3% (2014: 15.7%). Reinsurance
recoverables without a Standard & Poor’s rating include exposures to
brokers, companies in run-off, and pools —where no rating is available.
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REINSURANCE RECOVERABLES BY RATING CLASS!

€BN
as of 31 December 2015 2014
AAA 0.04 0.03
AA+to AA- 6.64 6.06
A+to A- 4.68 4.35
BBB+ to BBB- 0.08 0.17
Non-investment grade - -
Not assigned 1.76 1.97
Total 13.19 12.59

1—Represents gross exposure broken down by reinsurer.

Credit risk — credit insurance
Our credit insurance portfolio is modeled by Euler Hermes based on
a proprietary model component, which is a local adaptation of the

central internal credit risk module and is reviewed by Group Risk. The
result is integrated in the Group's internal credit risk to capture the
concentration and diversification effects. As of 31 December 2015,
6.5% (2014: 4.5%) of our total Group pre-diversified internal credit risk
was allocated to Euler Hermes credit insurance exposures, for which
the relative increase is primarily driven by the re-allocation of credit
risk from the investment portfolio, where exposure size has decreased
following the reduced scope of Allianz entities in the partial internal
model.

Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk consists of premium and reserve risks in the Prop-
erty-Casualty business segment as well as biometric risks in the Life/
Health business segment. For the Asset Management business seg-
ment and our banking operations, underwriting risks are not rele-
vant. The following table presents the pre-diversified risk calculated
for underwriting risks stemming from our insurance.!

ALLIANZ GROUP: RISK PROFILE — ALLOCATED UNDERWRITING RISK BY BUSINESS SEGMENT AND SOURCE OF RISK (TOTAL PORTFOLIO BEFORE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS)!

pre-diversified, € MN

Premium Premium Premium
natural catastrophe terror non-catastrophe Reserve Biometric Total

as of 31 December 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Property-Casualty 543 523 17 26 4,579 4,461 4,926 4,970 37 130 10,101 10,109
Life/Health - - - - - - - - 1,502 1,425 1,502 1,425
Asset Management - - - - - - - - - - - -
Corporate and Other - - - - - - - - 355 67 355 67
Total Group 543 523 17 26 4,579 4,461 4,926 4,970 1,894 1,621 11,958 11,601

Share of total Group pre-diversified risk 21.1% 21.7%

1 — As risks are measured by an integrated approach on an economic basis, internal risk profile takes reinsur-
ance effects into account.

Property-Casualty risk changes are mainly driven by exposure and
model updates as well as foreign currency translation effects. For bio-
metric risk there were only minor movements.

Underwriting risk Property-Casualty

Our Property-Casualty insurance businesses are exposed to premium
risk related to the current year’s new and renewed business, as well
as reserve risks related to the business in force.

Premium risk

As part of our Property-Casualty business operations, we receive pre-
miums from our customers and provide insurance protection in
return. Changes in profitability over time are measured based on loss
ratios and their fluctuations.2

1 —2014 risk profile figures recalculated based on model changes in 2015.
2 — Please refer to the section Property-Casualty Insurance Operations — Property-Casualty insurance opera-
tions by reportable segments from page 78 for a regional breakdown of loss ratios over the past two years.
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We face the risk that underwriting profitability is lower than
expected. The volatility of the underwriting profitability measured
over one year defines our premium risk for the Allianz Group.

PROPERTY-CASUALTY LOSS RATIOS' FOR THE PAST TEN YEARS

%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Loss ratio 66.2 66.0 65.9 683 699 69.1 69.5 68.0 66.1 65.0
Loss ratio
excluding
natural
catastrophes 64.6 65.1 63.0 66.6 655 659 684 66.3 64.1 644

1 —Represents claims and insurance benefits incurred (net), divided by premiums earned (net).

Premium risk is subdivided into natural catastrophe risk, terror risk,
and non-catastrophe risk. We calculate premium risk based on actu-
arial models that are used to derive loss distributions. Premium risk is
actively managed by the Allianz Group and its local operating entities.
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Assessing the risks as part of the underwriting process is a key ele-
ment of our risk management framework. There are clear under-
writing limits and restrictions, centrally defined and in place across
the Group. In addition to the centrally-defined underwriting limits,
thelocal operating entities have limits in place that take into account
their business environments. Excessive risks are mitigated by exter-
nal reinsurance agreements. All these measures contribute to a
limitation on risk accumulation.

Natural disasters, such as earthquakes, storms and floods, rep-
resent a significant challenge for risk management due to their accu-
mulation potential and occurrence volatility. In order to measure
such risks and better estimate the potential effects of natural disasters,
we use special modeling techniques in which we combine portfolio
data (such as the geographic distribution and characteristics of
insured objects and their values) with simulated natural disaster sce-
narios to estimate the magnitude and frequency of potential losses.
Where such stochastic models do not exist, we use deterministic,
scenario-based approaches to estimate potential losses.

The top five perils contributing to the natural catastrophe risk as
of 31 December 2015 were: Europe windstorm, Germany hail, Germany
flood, u.s. hurricane and U.k. flood.

Reserve risk

We estimate and hold reserves for claims resulting from past events
that have not yet been settled. If the reserves are not sufficient to
cover claims to be settled in the future due to unexpected changes,
we would experience losses. The volatility of past claims measured
over a one-year time horizon defines our reserve risk.

In general, our operating entities constantly monitor the devel-
opment of reserves for insurance claims on a line-of-business level.!
In addition, the operating entities generally conduct annual reserve
uncertainty analyses based on similar methods used for reserve risk
calculations. Allianz s performs regular independent reviews of
these analyses and Allianz SE representatives participate in the local
reserve committees’ meetings.

Underwriting risks in our Life/Health operations (biometric risks)
include mortality, disability, morbidity, and longevity risks. Mortality,
disability, and morbidity risks are associated with the unexpected
increase in the occurrence of death, disability, or medical claims on
our insurance products. Longevity riskis the risk that due to changing
biometric assumptions, the reserves covering life annuities and
group pension products might not be sufficient.

We measure these risks within our partial internal risk capital
model by distinguishing between the different sub-components,
whenever relevant or material: absolute level, trend, volatility around
the best estimate assumptions, and pandemic risks. Depending on
the nature and complexity of the risk involved, our health business is
represented in the partial internal model, according to Property-

1 —For further information, please refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Casualty or Life/Health calculation methods, and is therefore included
in the relevant Property-Casualty and Life/Health figures accordingly.
However, most of our health business is attributable to the Life/
Health business segment. Due to effective product design and the
diversity of our products, there were no significant concentrations of
underwriting risks within our Life/Health business segment as of
31 December 2015.2

Life/Health underwriting risk arises from profitability being
lower than expected due to changes in actuarial parameters. As prof-
itability calculations are based on several parameters — such as his-
torical loss information, assumptions on inflation or on mortality,
and morbidity — the realized parameters may differ from the ones
used for calculation. For example, higher inflation than that incorpo-
rated in the calculations may lead to a loss. However, deviations can
also occur in the opposite direction and be beneficial and lead to
additional profit. For example, a lower morbidity rate than expected
will most likely result in lower claims.

Business risks include cost risks and policyholder behavior risks and
are mostly driven by the Life/Health business segment and to a lesser
extent by the Property-Casualty business segment. Cost risks are
associated with the risk that expenses incurred in administering
policies are higher than expected or that new business volume
decreases to a level that does not allow Allianz to absorb its fixed
costs.

In the Life/Health business segment, policyholder behavior risks
arerisks related to the unpredictability and adverse behavior of policy-
holders in exercising their different contractual options: early termi-
nation of contracts, surrenders, partial withdrawals, renewals, and
annuity take-up options. Assumptions on policyholder behavior are
setin line with accepted actuarial methods and are based on our own
historical data, to the extent available. If data is not available,
assumptions are based on industry data or expert judgment.

ALLIANZ GROUP: RISK PROFILE — ALLOCATED BUSINESS RISK BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
(TOTAL PORTFOLIO BEFORE TAX AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS)

pre-diversified, € MN

as of 31 December 2014
Property-Casualty 987
Life/Health 3,646

Asset Management -
Corporate and Other -
4,634
8.7%

Total Group

Share of total Group pre-diversified risk

For business risk in our Life/Health business segment there were only
minor movements.

2 — For further information about insurance risk in the Life/Health business segment, please refer to note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.
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As for underwriting risks, a positive deviation from the under-
lying parameters will lead to additional returns. For example, lower-
than-expected expenses in our Property-Casualty business will lead
to an improved combined ratio.

Operational risks representlosses resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, from personnel and systems, or from external
events — including legal and compliance risk, but excluding losses
from strategic and reputational risk.

Allianz has developed a consistent Group-wide operational risk
management framework that focuses on the early recognition and
proactive management of operational risks in all “first line of defense”-
functions. The framework defines roles and responsibilities, risk pro-
cesses, and methods and has been implemented in our operating
entities. Local risk managers as the “second line of defense” ensure
this framework is implemented in their respective operating entity.
They identify and evaluate relevant operational risks and control
weaknesses via a dialogue between the “first line of defense” and the
risk function. Furthermore, operational risk events are collected in a
central risk event database. In 2015, Allianz also delivered internal loss
data on an anonymized basis to the “Operational Riskdata eXchange
Association (0Rx)”, a global operational loss data insurance consor-
tium, to improve its internal control system and to validate opera-
tional risk parameters in the future. An analysis of the causes of inter-
nal and external losses exceeding € 1 MN is carried out to provide
comprehensive and timely information to senior management and
to share with operating entities, so they can implement measures
aimed at avoiding or reducing future losses.

The risks related to non-compliance or other misconduct are
addressed via various dedicated compliance programs. Written poli-
cies detail the Allianz Group’s approach towards the management of
these areas of risk. The implementation and communication of those
compliance programs are monitored by the Group Compliance func-
tion at Allianz SE. In close cooperation with the Risk function of the
Group, the risk-mitigating measures are taken and enforced by a
global network of dedicated compliance functions throughout the
Allianz Group. With respect to financial statements, our internal con-
trol system is designed to mitigate operational risks.!

1 — For additional information regarding our internal control over financial reporting, please refer to Controls
over Financial Reporting and Risk Capital from page 131.
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ALLIANZ GROUP: RISK PROFILE — ALLOCATED OPERATIONAL RISK BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
(TOTAL PORTFOLIO BEFORE TAX AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS)

pre-diversified, € MN

as of 31 December 2014
Property-Casualty 2,166
Life/Health 2,090
Asset Management 686
Corporate and Other 707
Total Group 5,669
Share of total Group pre-diversified risk 10.6%

Major failures and disasters also at our outsourcing providers, which
could cause a severe disruption to our working environment, repre-
sent significant operational risks for the Allianz Group. Our Business
Continuity and Crisis Management framework strives to protect criti-
cal business functions from these shocks and enables them to carry
out their core tasks on time and at the highest standard. Regularly
enhanced, business continuity and crisis activities are embedded in
the company’s risk management processes.

Allianz works on a Cyber and Information Security program on
an ongoing basis, in order to better respond to current external devel-
opments and to further strengthen the internal control environment
around related operational risks.

The decrease shown in the operational risk is driven by the regular
update of local parameters.

OTHER RISKS

There are certain risks that cannot be fully quantified across the
Group using our partial internal risk capital model. For these risks we
also pursue a systematic approach with respect to identification,
analysis, assessment, monitoring, and steering. In general, the risk
assessment is based on qualitative criteria or scenario analyses. The
most important of these other risks are strategic, liquidity and repu-
tational risk.

Strategic risk is the risk of an unexpected negative change in the
company’s value arising from the adverse effect of management
decisions on business strategies and their implementation.

Strategic risks are evaluated and analyzed in the strategic and
planning dialogue between Allianz Group and its operating entities.
To ensure proper implementation of strategic goals in the current
business plan, strategic controls are carried out by monitoring
respective business targets. We also constantly monitor market and
competitive conditions, capital market requirements, regulatory
conditions, etc., to decide whether to make strategic adjustments. In
addition, strategic decisions are discussed in various Board of Man-
agement level committees (e.g. Group Capital Committee, Group
Finance and Risk Committee). The assessment of the associated risks
is a fundamental element in these discussions.
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Liquidity riskis defined as the risk that requirements from current or
future payment obligations cannot be met or can only be met on the
basis of adversely altered conditions. Liquidity risk can arise primarily
if there are mismatches in the timing of cash flows on the asset and
liability side. Detailed information regarding the Allianz Group's
liquidity risk exposure, liquidity and funding - including changes in
cash and cash equivalents — is provided in Liquidity and Funding
Resources from () page 105 onwards and notes 17, 23, 24 and 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The main goal of planning and managing Allianz sg’s liquidity
position is to ensure that we are always able to meet payment obliga-
tions. To comply with this objective, the liquidity position of Allianz SE
is monitored and forecast on a daily basis. Strategic liquidity planning
over time horizons of 12 months and three years is reported to the
Board of Management regularly.

The accumulated short-term liquidity forecast is updated daily
and is subject to an absolute minimum strategic cushion amount
and an absolute minimum liquidity target. Both are defined for the
Allianz SE cash pool in order to be protected against short-term
liquidity crises. As part of our strategic planning, contingent liquidity
requirements and sources of liquidity are taken into account to
ensure that Allianz S is able to meet any future payment obligations
even under adverse conditions. Major contingent liquidity require-
ments include non-availability of external capital markets, combined
market and catastrophe risk scenarios for subsidiaries, as well as
lower-than-expected profits and dividends from subsidiaries.

Our insurance operating entities manage liquidity risk locally,
using asset/liability management systems designed to ensure that
assets and liabilities are adequately matched. The local investment
strategies particularly focus on the quality of investments and ensure
a significant portion of liquid assets (e.g. high-rated government
bonds or covered bonds) in the portfolios. This also allows us to meet
increased liquidity requirements in the case of unlikely events. We
employ actuarial methods for estimating our liabilities arising from
insurance contracts. In the course of standard liquidity planning we
reconcile the cash flows from our investment portfolio with the esti-
mated liability cash flows. These analyses are performed at the oper-
ating entity level and aggregated at the Group level.

Regarding our Asset Management business, forecasting and
managing liquidity is a regular process designed to meet both regula-
tory requirements and Group standards. This process is supported by
the liquidity management framework implemented in Allianz Asset
Management.

In addition, we launched a projectin 2015 to develop an enhanced
liquidity risk framework taking stress situations into account and
allowing for a group-wide consistent aggregation. The framework will
be rolled out to the Group during 2016 and will further strengthen the
Allianz liquidity position and resilience to stress scenarios.
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Allianz’s reputation as a well-respected and socially aware provider
of financial services is influenced by our behavior in a range of areas
such as product quality, corporate governance, financial performance,
customer service, employee relations, intellectual capital, and corpo-
rate responsibility. Reputational risk is the risk of an unexpected drop
in the value of the Allianz SE share price, the value of the in-force busi-
ness, or the value of future business, being caused by a decline in our
reputation.

With the support of Group Communications, Group Compliance
and the EsG Office!, Group Risk defines sensitive business areas and
applicable risk guidelines, which are mandatory for all operating
entities in the Allianz Group. All affected Group and operating entity
functions cooperate in the identification of reputational risk. Group
Communications is responsible for the risk assessment, based on a
Group-wide methodology. In 2015, Allianz has embedded conduct risk
triggers for products and services into the reputational risk manage-
ment process.

Single reputational risk management decisions are integrated in
the overall risk management framework and reputational risks are
identified and assessed as part of a yearly Top Risk Assessment, during
which senior management also decides on a risk management strat-
egy and related actions. This is supplemented by quarterly updates.
In addition, reputational risk is managed on a case-by-case basis.
Single cases with a potential impact on other operating entities or the
Group have to be reported to the Allianz Group for pre-approval.

Risk governance

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

As a provider of financial services, we consider risk management to
be one of our core competencies. It is therefore an integral part of our
business process. Our risk management framework covers, on a risk-
based approach, all operations including IT, processes, products, and
departments/subsidiaries within the Group. The key elements of our
risk management framework are:

— Promotion of a strong risk management culture, supported by a
robust risk governance structure.

— Consistent application of an integrated risk capital framework
across the Group to protect our capital base and support effective
capital management.

— Integration of risk considerations and capital needs into man-
agement and decision-making processes through the attribution
ofrisk and allocation of capital to the various business segments.

1 —The Allianz Environmental, Social, Governance (ESG) Board and ESG office are constituted as advisor to
the Board of Management of Allianz se and will further elevate environmental, social, and governance
aspects in corporate governance and decision-making processes at the Allianz Group.
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This comprehensive framework ensures that risks are identified, ana-
lyzed, assessed, and managed in a consistent manner across the
Group. Our risk appetite is defined by a clear risk strategy and limit
structure. Close risk monitoring and reporting allows us to detect
potential deviations from our risk tolerance at an early stage at both
the Group and operating entity levels.

For the benefit of shareholders and policyholders alike, our risk
management framework adds value to Allianz SE and its operating
entities through the following four primary components:

Risk underwriting and identification: A sound risk underwriting
and identification framework forms the foundation for adequate risk-
taking and management decisions such as individual transaction
approvals, new product approvals, and strategic asset allocations.
The framework includes risk assessments, risk standards, valuation
methods, and clear minimum standards for underwriting.

Risk reporting and monitoring: Our comprehensive qualitative
and quantitative risk reporting and monitoring framework provides
senior management with the transparency and risk indicators to help
them decide on our overall risk profile and whether it falls within del-
egated limits and authorities. For example, risk dashboards, internal
risk allocation, and limit consumption reports are regularly pre-
pared, communicated and monitored.

Risk strateqy and risk appetite: Our risk strategy clearly defines
ourrisk appetite. It ensures that rewards are appropriate for the risks
taken and that the delegated authorities are in line with our overall
risk-bearing capacity. The risk-return profile is improved through the
integration of risk considerations and capital needs into decision-
making processes. This also keeps risk strategy and business objec-
tives consistent with each other and allows us to take opportunities
within our risk tolerance.

Communication and transparency: Finally, transparent and
robust risk disclosure provides the basis for communicating this
strategy to our internal and external stakeholders, ensuring a sustain-
able positive impact on valuation and financing. It also strengthens
the risk awareness and risk culture throughout the entire Group.

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

As a key element of our risk management framework, Allianz’s
approach to risk governance enables an integrated management of
local and global risks and ensures that our risk profile remains con-
sistent with our risk strategy and our capacity to bear risks.

Within our risk governance system, the Supervisory Board and Board
of Management of Allianz SE have both Allianz St and Group-wide
responsibilities and have set up committees to provide them with
support. Examples include:
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Supervisory Board

The Risk Committee of the Supervisory Board monitors the effective-
ness of the Allianz risk management and monitoring framework.
Furthermore, it focuses on risk-related developments as well as gen-
eral risks and specific risk exposures.

Board of Management

The Board of Management formulates business objectives and a cor-
responding, consistent risk strategy. The core elements of the risk
framework are set out in the Allianz Group Risk Policy, which is
approved by the Board of Management.

— The Group Capital Committee supports the Board of Manage-
ment with recommendations regarding the capital structure,
capital allocation, and investment strategy, including the strate-
gic asset allocation.

— The Group Finance and Risk Committee (GFRC) ensures over-
sight of the Group’s and Allianz SE’s risk management frame-
work, acting as a primary early-warning function by monitoring
the Allianz Group’s and Allianz SE’s risk profiles as well as the
availability of capital. The GFRC also ensures that an adequate
relationship between return and risk is maintained. Addition-
ally, the GFRrC defines risk standards, forms the limit-setting
authority within the framework set by the Board of Management
and approves major single financing and reinsurance trans-
actions.

A comprehensive system of risk governance is achieved by setting
standards related to organizational structure, risk strategy and appe-
tite, written policies, limit systems, documentation, and reporting.
These standards ensure the accurate and timely flow of risk-related
information and a disciplined approach towards decision-making
and execution at both the global and local level.

As a general principle, the “first line of defense” rests with busi-
ness managers in the local operating entities and Allianz Investment
Management units. They are responsible, in the first instance, for
both the risks of and returns on their decisions. Our “second line of
defense” is made up of our independent, global oversight functions
such as Risk, Actuarial, Compliance and Legal. Audit forms the “third
line of defense”. On a periodic basis, Group Audit independently
reviews risk governance implementation, performs quality reviews of
risk processes, and tests adherence to business standards, including
the internal control framework